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GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1  Vision

 A nation housed in sustainable human settlements 

1.2  Mission

           Department of Human Settlements Outcome 8, to read: 

”To facilitate the creation of sustainable human 
     settlements and improved quality of household life.”

1.3  Values
The Department’s core values, based on the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 

Accountability
Fairness and equity
Choice, quality and affordability
Sustainability
nnovation.

1.4  Organisational structure
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1.5  Legislative mandates
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No 108 of 1996)

The legislation that the Department of Human Settlements has promulgated and implemented falls squarely 

Section 26: Access to adequate housing a basic human right; Govt to ensure environment conducive to 
the progressive realisation of the right; Schedule 4: National and Provincial Governments have concurrent 

Housing Act, 1997 (Act No107 of 1997)
The Department of Human Settlements is carrying out its legislative imperative as set out in the Housing 
Act, 1997 through existing and future legislation and the Housing Code requires the Minister of Housing to 
determine national housing policy and programmes and negotiate funding for such programmes. In addition 
the Act requires of the Minister of Housing to establish housing institutions. 

Comprehensive Plan for the Creation of Sustainable Human Settlements (BNG)

of the Department of Housing, to promote the achievement of a non-racial, integrated society through the 
development of sustainable human settlements and quality housing. Key to realising the objectives of BNG 

The Housing Consumers Protection Measures Act, 1998 (Act No 19 of 1998)
This Act provides for the establishment of a statutory body for homebuilders. The National Home Builders 
Registration Council registers builders engaged in certain categories of house construction and regulates 
the home building industry by formulating and enforcing a code of conduct. The Department monitors im-
plementation of the Act continuously. 

The Housing Development Agency Act, 2008 (Act No 23 of 2008)
This Act provides for the establishment of a statutory body to identify, facilitate the acquisition and the 
holding of land and landed properties; facilitate the planning processes and coordinate funding for the land 

in the end has to fast-track the housing-development process. The Agency has been establishment and the 

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999  - as amended by  Act No 29 of 1999)

-

adherence of its housing entities to the Act on a continuous basis.

The Social Housing Act, 2008 (Act No 16 of 2008) 
-
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The Division of Revenue Act, 2011 (Act No 6 of 2011)

gazetted.

The Rental Housing Act, 1999 (Act No 50 of 1999)

housing property. It creates mechanisms that promote the provision of rental housing and the proper func-

Home Loan and Mortgage Disclosure Act, 2000 (Act No 63 of 2000)
-
-

mation it needs to identify possible discriminatory lending patterns. The Act has been in operation since  

Inclusionary Housing Bill

for in-principle approval.

Sectional Titles Schemes Management Bill
-

tered by the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform. The Bill has been passed by Parliament.

Community Schemes Ombud Service Bill
This is linked to the Sectional Titles Schemes Management Bill and provides for a dispute resolution mecha-
nism for sectional titles and other residential community schemes. The Bill has been passed by Parliament.  

Against the background of the analysis of trends and emerging challenges in the housing environment, the 

of the Human Settlements Strategy.

Intergovernmental Relations Framework (Act No 13 of 2005)
The Act is meant to facilitate coordination by the three spheres of Government - national, provincial and 
local governments - in the implementation of policy and legislation.

Policy mandates
The Minister of Human Settlements’ policy development mandate stems from the Housing Act, 1997  

inter alia provides that:

establish and facilitate a sustainable national housing development process. For the purposes of subsec-
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housing development.

In addition the Housing Act, 1997 provides for the authority of the Minister of Human Settlements to insti-

Minister of Human Settlements may only be utilised in terms of the provisions of national housing pro-

-

adoption of the outcome - Sustainable Human Settlements and Improved Quality of Household Life.

Based on the expansion of the mandate of the Department, there are initiatives in the Department to publish 
a Green Paper on Human Settlements.

 Sectional Titles Schemes Management Bill
 Community Schemes Ombud Service Bill
 Rental Housing Amendment Bill.

1.6  Entities reporting to the Minister

SERVCON HOUSING SOLUTIONS

-

2007 the institution undertook to assist provinces through a normalisation and regularisation programme.  

Servcon is in the process of closure. The closure is guided by an approved closure plan. A Joint Transition 

THUBELISHA HOMES
-

-

developed and approved. A Closure Steering Committee oversees the closure process of Thubelisha 
Homes.

NATIONAL HOME BUILDERS REGISTRATION COUNCIL (NHBRC)
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homebuilders. Since its inception, it has been striving to regulate and provide better services to consumers 
through the registration of homebuilders, the enrolment of homes and home inspections. The institution 

customer service delivery. The Council is committed to continuous training of staff members to enhance 
the NHBRC’s performance culture. The restructuring process continues and is expected to be completed 

geo-technical and inspection services and internal quality assurance monitoring through the introduction of 

NATIONAL HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION (NHFC)

broadest range of organisations.

-

NATIONAL URBAN RECONSTRUCTION AND HOUSING AGENCY (NURCHA)

dable housing programme and the infrastructure-and-community facilities programme. The institution differen- 

-

construction support services.

-
-

tors through the existing programmes.

to secure contractor capacity for future construction projects.
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RURAL HOUSING LOAN FUND (RHLF)

-

The institution intends to continue to support and maintain its existing portfolio of intermediaries through 

alternative community-based organisations. The entity intends to address end-user credit affordability by 

SOCIAL HOUSING FOUNDATION (SHF)
The SHF is a Section 21 company established to broadly develop and build capacity for social housing, 

social housing.

-

services to various public and private stakeholders.

The Social Housing Act provides for the establishment of the Social Housing Regulatory Authority to regu-
late social housing institutions receiving public funds and to regulate the assessment, approval, administra-
tion and disbursement of institutional investment and capital grants to social housing institutions.

housing sector in South Africa.  

be absorbed by the Department and the Social Housing Regulatory Authority respectively. 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (HDA)

The purpose of the Agency is to respond to the requirements of the Comprehensive Plan by identifying, 
acquiring, developing land; and the disposal of land and landed properties.

Government across all spheres. It also provides project management expertise in human settlement 
projects and facilitates the development of projects through accelerated and innovative project packaging.

acquisitions, special projects management and the development of a spatial and management information 
system.
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THE SOCIAL HOUSING REGULATORY AUTHORITY (SHRA)

sector, to regulate all social housing institutions obtaining or having obtained public funds and to give statu-
tory recognition to social housing institutions. 

A priority of the Regulatory Authority is to capacitate the organisational structure in order to enable the insti-

housing regulations and to disburse and monitor the utilisation of capital and capacity grants to the social 
housing sector.

social and rental housing is achieved. A substantial reprioritisation of funding for social and rental hou-

1.7  Minister’s statement
Our goal of creating Sustainable Human Settlements is steadily taking shape albeit

There is greater clarity on the nature and severity of the problems confronting the country’s residential 
    drive.

 Accelerated delivery of quality houses remains undiminished.

 Strategic municipalities being given authority to drive human settlements.

    Human Settlements Grant in an 80/20 arrangement.

    Management Act.

 The convening of the Special Presidential Coordinating Council on Human Settlements.
 Launching of projects that give better shape to our Human Settlements Goal.

“And yet critical barriers remain…”

-
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 Exploring alternative funding models.
 Paying attention to capacity problems, including project management and bulk infrastructure.

 Focusing attention on alignment of critical mandates and functions.

Minister of Human Settlements

1.8  Deputy Minister’s statement

-

leadership and direct support to me as his Deputy Minister.

Z Kota-Fredericks - MP
Deputy Minister of Human Settlements
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The constitutional obligation to provide adequate shelter is the foundation of all strategies and policies of the 
Department of Human Settlements. The adoption of the comprehensive plan for the development of sus-

on poorly located land that is far from economic activity and social services, to the provisioning of amenities 
to support the creation of functional communities, through access to transport, social services and jobs.

FROM HOUSING TO HUMAN SETTLEMENTS
The principles of human settlement development outlined by policy necessitated a re-look at the Hou-
sing Act of1996. This resulted in efforts to repeal the Housing Act and for it to be replaced by the Human  

This occurred in the space of the development of the Human Settlements 2030 Vision. Vision 2030 seeks 

INSTITUTIONAL CHANGES IN THE HOUSING SECTOR

-
-

ties, Buffalo City and Mangaung, accredited to Level 1.

Department’s turnaround strategy to support the Government outcome related to human settlements. The 
-

Regulatory Authority and the Housing Development agency. The Social Housing Regulatory Authority is ex-

restructuring grant for social housing. The rationalisation of public entities reporting to the Department of 

THE OUTCOMES APPROACH

programme has continued to entrench segregated spatial patterns, marginalising the poor from economic  

poverty in poor households and communities. Through effective land use, choice of tenure and mixed-
income developments, the Department of Human Settlements anticipates improved outcome from the 
housing-subsidy programme.

-

of basic service, housing opportunities, and improving access to the property market, the Department of 
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for housing development.

UPGRADING INFORMAL SETTLEMENTS
Given the trend in migration, the role of metropolitan municipalities in the upgrading of informal settle-

-

capital budgets of large cities to ensure integrated national, provincial and municipal planning to support the 
creation of sustainable human settlements and improve quality of household life.

To provide support and assistance to implement the upgrading of informal settlements, a national upgra-

capacity building programme by providing technical support to municipalities.

-
sitioning the Department of Human Settlements as an economic driver for social stability and cohesion. The 

successfully honoured; the same applies for participation in the various clusters in coordinating Government 

the Department of Human Settlements. 

approved and the supportive budgets in terms of the Housing Act and supportive legislation in the coordina-

T Zulu
Director-General: Department of Human Settlements
31 May 2011
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INFORMATION:PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

2.1  Overall performance
2.1.1  Voted funds

Programme Main appropriation
(R’000)

Adjusted
appropriation

(R’000)

Actual amount 
spent

(R’000)

Over-/Under
expenditure

(R’000)
1. Administration 176 200 221 188 188 577 32 611
2. Housing Policy,   
    Research and
    Monitoring

45 900 43 871 32 636 11 235

3. Housing Planning
    and Delivery 
    Support

206 800 207 196 158 375 48 821

4. Housing Develop 
    ment Finance

15 598 100 15 674 395 15 624 981 49 414

5. Strategic Relations
    and Governance

174 400 145 109 87 384 57 725

Total 16 201 500 16 291 759 16 091 953 199 806

Responsible Minister Minister of Human Settlements
Administering Depart-
ment Department of Human Settlements

Director-General of Human Settlements

2.1.2  Aim of the vote

communicate and monitor the implementation of housing policy and human settlements. 

2.1.3  Summary of Programmes
2.1.3.1  Programme 1:  Administration
Purpose: provide strategic leadership, administrative and management support services to the Department. 

2.1.3.2  Programme 2: Housing Policy, Research and Monitoring
Purpose: to develop and promote policies on human settlement and housing supported by a responsive 
research agenda and to monitor and assess the implementation, performance and impact of national  
housing policies and programmes. 

2.1.3.3  Programme 3: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

for effective housing and human settlement programmes. 

2.1.3.4  Programme 4: Housing Development Finance 
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2.1.3.5  Strategic Relations and Governance 

entities; and to provide timely and integrated business information to the Department. 

2.1.4  Key strategic objective achievements
Apart from providing strategic leadership, administrative and management support services and oversight, 

 Develop and promote policies on human settlements and housing, supported by a responsive research 
 agenda; and to monitor and assess the implementation, performance and impact of national housing  
    policies and programmes. 

     effective housing and human settlement programmes. 

stated above:

and/or turnaround. In pursuit of this exercise the department roped in the services of an outside consultant. 

-
tion of the meaning of Human Settlements and translation into the Departmental functional areas.

The following outcomes are expected of the service provider:
Scenario generation and planning: It is expected of the service provider to facilitate the generation and 

planning options.

Strategy generation: It is expected of the service provider to facilitate the development of the Departmental 

planning and human settlement.

Organisational design: the organisational design becomes an expression of Departmental strategy. It is 
expected of the service provider to facilitate the development of the organisational structure based on func-

E-communication and IT solutions: It is expected of the service provider to advise/assist the Department in 
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Intergovernmental relations: Given the Department’s legislated function as aptly captured in the Constitution 
and in the Housing Act of 1996, it is expected of the service provider to facilitate an organisational-design 

monitoring and evaluation of delivery in the human settlements sector.

-
sion also informed the preparation of the MTEF budget proposals and outlining of the output estimates and 

three year strategic and operational plans.

adjust their operational plans and performance targets. The revised and adjusted operational plans and 

suggested by the Auditor-General.

Accreditation of municipalities
Though an ongoing accreditation capacity support programme, all accreditation priority municipalities are  

perform the functions. To date, all six metro municipalities have been assessed to determine compliance 

capacity to administer national housing programmes.

Accreditation of municipalities takes into account the capacity of municipalities to deliver infrastructure, 

applied for:
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Province Municipality Delegated Housing Functions
Gauteng City of Johannesburg, L1: Subsidy-budget planning and allocation and priority 

programme management and administration:
This includes housing-subsidy budgetary planning across pro-
grammes and projects; planning of subsidy/fund allocations; 

-

L2: Programme management and administration:
This includes project evaluation and approval, contract adminis-
tration, subsidy registration, programme management - including 

-

Eastern Cape Nelson Mandela Metro L2: Programme management and administration:
This includes project evaluation and approval, contract adminis-
tration, subsidy registration, programme management - including 

quality assurance.

KwaZulu-Natal L2: Programme management and administration:
This includes project evaluation and approval, contract adminis-
tration, subsidy registration, programme management - including 

quality assurance.

Western Cape L1: Subsidy-budget planning and allocation and priority 
programme management and administration:
This includes housing-subsidy budgetary planning across pro-
grammes and projects; planning of subsidy/fund allocations; 

-

L2: Programme management and administration:
This includes project evaluation and approval, contract adminis-
tration, subsidy registration, programme management - including 

quality assurance.

Northern Cape Frances Baard
Pixley Ka Seme

L1: Subsidy-budget planning and allocation and priority 
programme management and administration:
This includes housing-subsidy budgetary planning across pro-
grammes and projects; planning of subsidy/fund allocations, 

-

L2: Programme management and administration:
This includes project evaluation and approval, contract adminis-
tration, subsidy registration, programme management - including 

quality assurance.

-
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Funding reform

Grant, the Municipal Infrastructure Grant and other critical funding streams may remove some of the main 
obstacles to the achievement of integrated planning for sustainable human settlements.

For municipalities to play a greater role in the development of sustainable human settlements, the plan-

of integrated and inclusionary residential development, planning and delivery of public facilities, private 

accountability at local level and broaden opportunities for cross-subsidisation and creative funding.

Accreditation of metropolitan municipalities in particular, as they have been undertaking some of the hou-

of backlog eradication.

suitable projects ready for implementation. Projects developed in terms of other approved Human Settle-
ments Programmes also assist households currently residing in informal settlements and therefore contri-

-

investigating the possibility of utilising savings on its operational budget for the approximate amount of R19  

2011.The IT platforms are functional and operational at:http://www.upgradingsupport.org.

provision of rental housing through the Social Housing Programme, the Institutional Subsidy Programme 

respective targets have been reached. The budget allocation for SHRA has been increased to R1.1 billion 
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As far as the provision of basic services is concerned, progress has been made to provide additional house-

accelerate delivery in this regard.

release for human settlements purposes. The Joint Coordinating Technical Committee on the Release of 
State Land is an operation to ensure continued performance.The release of Properties held by SOEs is 
subject to compensation.The model of compensation is currently being investigated. 

Regarding the increase of urban densities, various housing policies such as the Social Housing Policy, the 
-

ting buildings in residential units or refurbishment thereof in decent rental accommodation.Municipalities 

-

-

As far as the Mortgage Insurance Guarantee Scheme is concerned, approvals from the NHFC Board and 
-

FLISP

loans and succeeded in realising more than 75 percent of the annual target.

Key areas where action is needed

-
tion.
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entity to be involved in the provision of institutional subsidy, community residential or private rental hou-

and ensure provision of private rental. 

percentages in terms of progress are reported from various role players. It is crucial that this be addressed 

-

Evaluation in this regard.

-

the disposal of Transnet’s non-core property assets for human settlements.

Guidelines for Human 
Settlement Planning and Design - CSIR Red Book; former proposal on medium density; 

May 2011.

of Performance Monitoring and Evaluation.

-
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FSC discussions led by National Treasury, the performances as mentioned in theHome Loan and Mortgage  

output.

-
get. DHS and NHFC have initiated compliance processes to obtain approval from National Treasury. The  

Performance Report.

2.1.5  Overview of the service delivery environment during 2010/2011 

-

national development objectives. 

1. Alignment
2. Funding models for human settlement development
3. Capacity
4. Resource mobilisation
5. Legislative and policy reform.

continue in the Department.

-

arrangement is the beginning of the process to consolidate all grants required for the mandate of the  
Department. This development also puts South Africa in the forefront of progressive human settlements and 

human settlements sector.

A key development impacting on the human settlements development sector is the conclusion of a perform-

Settlements and Provincial Members of Executive Councils responsible for human settlements. The key 

The adoption of the outcome-based approach in Government thus enjoins the Department and sector to 

effective. The approach also makes it incumbent on the Department to improve intergovernmental relations 
to ensure that the stated outcomes required of the department, are achieved. 
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One of the key matters affecting the performance of the Department and achievement by the Department of 

and evaluate proactive measures and steps taken by the Department to eradicate fraud, corruption and 

corruption and maladministration.

Global Economic Developments and their Impact on South Africa.

and Remittances Fact Book 2010.

The Rand exchange rate continued to be strong against major currencies since March 2010 to January 
2011. Although this presents a challenge to demand for our exports, it played a positive role in cushioning 

a barrel. 

Oil and petrol prices

Figure1 ). For the period January 2010 to 

Source: Department of Minerals and Energy, March 2011



29

Building cost

of building materials increased by 17.1 percent in the year to January 2009 and 2.3 percent in the year to 

According to ABSA’s Housing Review
-

building cost increase recorded in the third quarter of the same year. The report further indicated that the 

in the third 
quarter last year revealed that 84 percent of the subsidy allocated for top structure only covers building 

that it does not alienate contractors even further, causing their exodus in the subsidy market. International 

investigation of building costs should be done for accurate adjustment.

The differences in the building material cost in different provinces also add to the challenges. 

Cement prices
Cement is the major building product in the building industry, in particular the building of Government- 

on the delivery of Government-subsidised housing, as higher material costs adds to the total building cost 
-

mine the cost of their 50kg bag of cement, revealed an increase ranging from 6.8 to 13 percent since the 
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prices on average in both cheap and expensive cement differed from province to province. Eastern Cape 

-

depict changes in mortgage repayment as interest rates changes for a house valued at R200 000.

Source: SA Reserve Bank; and Department of Human Settlements 2011.

Credit Defaults

decreased slightly to 46.3 percent in the third quarter, from 46.9 percent in the second quarter of 2010 

-
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Economic growth and unemployment

form of assistance, including housing assistance. 

Developments in the property market in South Africa

picking up faster than other segments as affordability improves, due to favourable interest rates. The level of 

and 1.3 percentin the luxury-house segment - in nominal terms this suggests that the level of demand is 
not far removed from that of supply; an indication that people are still sceptical to buy expensive properties, 

Overview of the affordable housing market
Volume of stock 
The property market analyst Lightstone indicated that the affordable-housing market currently represent  

indicates that there is still a shortfall in the number of properties required to meet the demand. Lightstone 

of 1 million properties valued in the range R100 000 to R200 000. The report furthermore indicates that 
the property market is very concentrated in key nodes, as more than half the housing stock is in Gauteng, 

Contribution of Government-subsidy housing in the property market

Government-subsidised houses accounting for 1.2 million properties in the deeds registry; and 

-
er level of the affordable maket segment stems from Government stock. Considering that Government- 

Government’s contribution to the affordable market is underestimated. This calls for an improvement of the 

99-year-lease conversions are currently bonded. The total value of outstanding bonds in the Government-
subsidised housing market is just over R50 billion - according to Lightstone. The average transfer price for 
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2.1.6  Overview of the organisational environment during 2010/2011

-

-
ment of personnel from the then housing institutions, Thubelisha and Servcon.

2.1.7 Key policy developments and legislative changes
In continuing to support Government’s constitutional obligation to provide access to adequate housing, 
the development of sustainable communities remains the strategic anchor of the National Department of 

At the service delivery level, the implementation of the comprehensive plan for sustainable human settle-
ments requires provincial human settlement departments, municipalities and human settlement institutions 

budget structure, creating the Strategic Relations and Governanceprogramme and strengthening the Hou-
sing Planning and Delivery SupportProgramme, to provide support for the development and implementation 
of these service delivery models. 

Key challenges faced by the housing sector are inadequate intergovernmental coordination for accelerated 
-

tives, and the lack of capacity to monitor and evaluate the implementation of housing programmes. 

create for households in other segments of the housing market. 

Key policy developments
-

Over the MTEF period, the Department of Human Settlements seeks to provide policy implementation 



33

Department continues to provide assistance to provinces and municipalities in their planning of priority 
housing projects. 

The Department developed and launched a number of instruments to guide the implementation of the 
Comprehensive Plan for Sustainable Human Settlements in all three spheres of government. These include 
monitoring, evaluation, impact assessment policy, implementation guidelines and the operating system for 
the policy and guidelines. The Department has also initiated a project-monitoring process to measure the 
performance of provincial human settlements departments against targets set in their business plans to 

-

the current social, economic and political context. In crafting the pointers for success and the approaches 

Ministry needs to respond.

Some of the challenges are: Planning - inadequate planning, lack of coordination and integration of different 
government functions. Social cohesion and social capital - to a large extent housing delivery still negates 
the role of civil society and the citizens themselves, therefore undermining social capital and building depen-

functioning human settlements that offer livelihood opportunities and building social cohesion. 

By attending to the policy gaps outlined, it is hoped that the collective capacities of our economy can 
be brought together, from individuals, the private sector and the State, to resolve the enormous housing  
challenges that affect us all, so that all households realise their constitutional right of access to adequate 
housing on a progressive basis. 

-

developed in July 2009 to provide policy coordination, ensure accountability and improve planning across 

the alignment of norms and standards across sectors to improve intergovernmental coordination. 

The Department also leads the Human Settlements and Basic Services Task Team in support of the Depart-

and monitors performance on the delivery of human settlements.

Legislative changes

Sectional Titles Schemes Management Bill

 passing. The primary aim of the Bill is to provide for the establishment of bodies corporate to  
  manage and control sections and common property in sectional titles and the determination of  
 applicable rules. In addition, the Bills intends to establish a Sectional Titles Advisory Council to advise  
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     of Provinces for deliberation and passing.  

Community Schemes Ombud Service Bill

  community schemes, to render consumer education on community schemes and to take custody of  
  community schemes governance documentation. The Department has realisedthat there is an ever- 

     for deliberation and passing.  

Rental Housing Amendment Bill

The outcomes approach

subsidy programme has continued to entrench segregated spatial patterns, marginalising the poor from  

poverty in poor households and communities.

The human settlements outcome in Government’s programme of action is Outcome 8: sustainable human 
settlements and improved quality of household life. Aimed at accelerating the delivery of basic services and 
housing opportunities and improving the property market, the Department of Human Settlements, together 

Through effective land utilisation, choice of tenure and mixed income developments, the Department of  
Human Settlements anticipates improved outcomes from the housing subsidy programme.

Informal settlement upgrading
Given the trends in migration and urbanisation, the role of metropolitan municipalities in the upgrading 

capital budgets of large cities to ensure integrated national, provincial and municipal planning to support the 
creation of sustainable human settlements and improve the quality of household life.
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To provide support and assistance in implementing the upgrading of informal settlements, a national  

support to municipalities.

Development.

Norms and Standards in respect of Permanent Residential Structures. In regard to policy enhancements 

development is not applicable.

In regard to integrated development needs, it is planned to change the current Integrated Residential  

people across all income segments, resulting in naturally integrated areas.

The adjustment of the Ministerial National Norms and Standards in respect of Permanent Residential Struc-

also planned.

-
sive Plan for the Development of Human Settlements. As part of Outcome 8, the priority given to informal 
settlement upgrading, and in particular the provision of secure tenure and access to basic services to  

by the Department in relation to the unblocking of stalled housing projects derives its mandate from deci-
sions of MinMEC and approval of the Departmental Structure during an intense Departmental restructuring  
exercise.

2011, in the launching of the National Planning Vision Statement and Plan. The Department has an im-

material conditions, institutions and governance, nation building and the economy. A key policy requirement 

national planning vision statement and plan to be launched.

2.1.8.1  Collection of Departmental revenue

rance.
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2007/08
Actual
(R’000)

2008/09
Actual
(R’000)

2009/10
Actual
(R’000)

2010/11 Devia-
tion from 

target
(%)

Target
(R’000)

Actual
(R’000)

Tax revenue - - - -  
Non-tax revenue 265 320 135 203 146 72
Sale of goods and services produced by 
the Department 222 74 90 154 123 80

Interest, dividends and rent on land 43 246 45 49 23 47

128 - - - - 0

282 2 072 612 981 2 680 273

Total Departmental Receipts 675 2 392 749 1 184 2 826 239

2.1.9 Departmental expenditure

    Programme

Voted for 
2010/11 
(R’000)

Roll-
overs
and

adjust-
ments
(R’000)

Virements
(R’000)

Total voted
(R’000)

Actual
expendi-

ture
(R’000)

Vari-
ance

(R’000)
1. Administration 176 175 35 822 9 191 221 188 188 577 32 611
2. Housing policy, research and  
    monitoring 45 907 1 779 -3 815 43 871 32 636 11 235

3. Housing planning and delivery
    support 206 831 18 390 -18 025 207 196 156 375 48 821

15 598 126 51 069 25 200 15 674 395 15 624 981 49 414
5. Strategic relations and
    governance 174 442 -16 782 -12 551 145 109 87 384 57 725

Total 16 201 481 90 278 - 16 291 759 16 091 953 199 806

Programme 1: Administration

    from SITA;
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-
tions and Governance for the development of a turnaround strategy for the Department; and a virement of  
R13.4 million to Programme 4, Housing Development Funding, for SERVCON to fund part of its closure 
costs.

The total budget of Programme 1 amounted to R221.1 million. The variance of R32.6 million can be attri-

-

Programme 2: Housing Policy, Research and Monitoring

fund the expanded mandate; a virement of R315 000 to Programme 4, Housing Development Funding, for 

The variance of R11.2 million can be attributed to the cost-saving measures reducing travel and subsis-

over. Total spending on Programme 2 amounted to R32.6 million.

Programme 3: Housing Planning and Delivery Support
-

estimate process for salary increases.

-
ernance for the development of a turnaround strategy for the Department; and a virement of R9.8 million to 
Programme 4, Housing Development Funding, for SERVCON to fund part of its tax liability. 

The total budget of Programme 3 amounted to R207.1 million. The programme spent a total of R158.4 mil-

Programme 4: Housing Development Funding

Development Grant, R133.8 million to the Housing Disaster Relief Grant, R100 million to the Rural House-
hold Infrastructure Development programme and R277 million to the Department’s entities. In the adjust-
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salary increases. 

The total budget of Programme 4 amounted to R15.674 billion. The programme spent a total of R15.625billion. 
The variance of R49.4 million can be attributed to delays in the implementation of projects on the Rural 

could also not be incurred.

Programme 5: Strategy Relations and Governance

-

its expanded mandate; and a virement of R6 million to Programme 4, Housing Development Funding, for  
SERVCON to fund part of its closure costs.

The total budget of Programme 5 amounted to R145.1 million. The programme spent R87.4 million. The 
variance of R57.7 million can mainly be attributed to delays in appointing service providers to maintain and 

-

did not yield good results and subsequently the Department approached SITA as an interim arrangement to 
assist the Department. Another contributing factor is the cost-savings measures that resulted in a reduction 
in foreign visits and the curtailment of media campaigns.

2.1.10  Transfer payments

Table: Transfer to public entities
Name of institution Amount transferred

R’000
Estimated expenditure

R’000

NHFC - 1
Social Housing Foundation 6 621 6 621
Social Housing Regulatory Authority 186 771 186 771
Rural Housing Loan Fund 49 500 49 500
Housing Development Agency 69 300 69 300
SERVCON 41 600 34 000
Total 353 792 353 793

NB: Full details of the services, as well as the narrative of the performance of the institutions, are outlined  
       in Part 4 of this report.
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2.1.11 Conditional grants and earmarked funds

lopment Grant and the Housing Disaster Relief Grant. 

Human Settlement Development Grant (HSDG)
The goal of the HSDG is to facilitate the development of sustainable human settlements, through the  
provision of a conditional grant to fund housing programmes approved in terms of the national housing code.

priority project from the Departmental budget savings, resulting in the total available having increased to 

Human Settlements Development Grant  Allocations
2010/11

Total Adjusted 
Voted Allocation

Province

Voted Al-
location

Adjustment during year Total Avail-
able to 

ProvincesNational
Appropriate
additional

PT Adjust-
ments

National Ad-
justments

Total Adjusted 
Voted Alloca-

tion
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

  Eastern Cape 1 598 646 - - 39 000 1 637 646 1 637 646
  Free State 1 300 691 - - 1 037 691 1 037 691
  Gauteng 3 771 831 15 000 - 100 000 3 886 831 3 886 831

2 714 109 - 77 024 2 634 109 2 711 133
  Limpopo 1 234 750 - 11 400 130 000 1 364 750 1 376 150
  Mpumalanga 975 863 - 35 170 - 975 863 1 011 033
  Northern Cape 273 260 - - 174 000 447 260 447 260

1 288 770 - 203 1 188 770 1 188 973
1 868 843 - 83 878 - 1 868 843 1 952 721

Total 15 026 763 15 000 207 675 - 15 041 763 15 249 438

ting a transfer of 100 percent of the voted amount. The spending performance from the beginning of the 

ensure service delivery in the country, funds be shifted from provinces that persistently underperform,to 
provinces that display the ability to perform.These performing provinces had projects and commitments that 
needed additional funding.
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of Finance on February 15, 2011 under Gazette Number 34027.

March 2011. 

The Housing Disaster Relief Grant (HSD Grant)

year, a 10.8 percent decrease from the 2009/2010 allocation of R150 million.  

Grant.

Grant Province
2010/11
voted

Total Adjusted Voted 
Allocation

Tr
an

sf
er

s t
o 

Pr
ov

-
in

ce
s a

s p
er

 to
ta

l 
ad

ju
st

ed

Sp
en

t b
y P

ro
vin

ce
s

Sp
en

t a
s %

 o
f t
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al 
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le 

to
 P

ro
v-
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ce

s
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en
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s %

 o
f 

tra
ns
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r a

s p
er

 to
ta

l 
ad

ju
st

ed

Un
sp

en
t a

s a
t 2

8 
Ma

rc
h 

20
11

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % % R’000
Human Settlements Development Grant

  Eastern Cape 1 598 646 1 637 646 1 637 646 1 637 646 1 503 816 92 91.8 133 830
  Free State 1 300 691 1 037 691 1 037 691 1 037 691 1 037 685 100 100.0 6
  Gauteng 3 771 831 3 886 831 3 886 831 3 886 831 3 855 064 99 99.2 31 767

2 714 109 2 634 109 2 711 133 2 634 109 2 711 234 100 102.9
  Limpopo 1 234 750 1 364 750 1 376 150 1 364 750 1 264 584 92 92.7 111 566
  Mpumalanga 975 863 975 863 1 011 033 975 863 1 011 033 100 103.6 -
  Northern Cape 273 260 447 260 447 260 447 260 472 944 100 103.7

1 288 770 1 188 770 1 188 973 1 188 770 1 040 163 87 87.5 148 810
1 868 843 1 868 843 1 952 721 1 868 843 1 940 037 99 103.8

Total 15 026 763 15 041 763 15 249 438 15 041 763 14 836 560 97 98.6 329 000
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Table 1: Overall spending analysis as at 31 March 2011

-

reported to have the increased spending on that Grant. The spending on this Grant has drastically  
increased compared to the previous year. 

2.1.12  Capital Investment, maintenance and asset management plan
None

2.2  Programme performance

2.2.1  Programme 1: Administration
Purpose
The purpose of the programme is to provide strategic leadership and administrative and management sup-

and its stakeholders.

-

Technology Systems and also Corporate Support.

Measurable objective
Administration is a non-core, but an essential component in the Department of Human Settlements.  
It renders support services to other line functions. 

KwaZulu-Natal Disaster Relief Grant

  Month
Total 

Alocation
Transferred

Amount
Expendi-

ture
Amount

Spent as 
% of 

transferred
funds

Spent as % 
of total 

available

Variance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
  April - 11 150 753 7 1 10 397
  May - 11 150 5 918 53 4 5 232
  June - 11 150 3 638 33 3 7 512
  July - 11 150 2 176 20 2 8 974
  August - 11 150 895 8 1 10 255
  September - 11 150 5 787 52 4 5 363
  October - 11 150 2 594 23 2 8 556
  November - 11 150 2 443 22 2 8 707
  December - 11 150 2 598 23 2 8 552
  January - 11 150 861 8 1 10 289
  February - 11 150 106 139 952 79 -94 989
  March - 11 150 - - - 11 150
  Total 133 800 133 800 133 802 100 100 -
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Executive Support Services provide executive support.
Chief Directorate: Internal Audit, Risk Management and Special Investigations coordinate the 

   provision of Internal Control, Risk Management and Special Investigations services.
Corporate Support 

Human Resource Management manage and administer human resources, provide organisational 
    design and performance management, labour relations and human resources development.

Information Technology and Systems provide information technology systems, services, infra-
 structure and business application support in the Department.

Legal Services provide legal services in the Department, including the drafting of legislation on human 
    settlements.

Service delivery objectives and indicators
Recent outputs
The Branch: Corporate Services
activities as set out in the Departmental operational plan. 

Chief Directorate: Human Resources Management had to conduct 

explained to the Department of Public Service and Administration upon request.

Notable service delivery achievements of the Chief Directorate: Legal Services 

    provinces.

   the decision taken by the High Court declaring its housing policy unconstitutional, requiring the City to  

   Court amended the eviction order imposed during 2008.
 The Chief Directorate created a legal-founded environment by providing legal opinions and advice to 

    the Department.
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The Chief Directorate: Information Technology and Systems (GITO) has managed to achieve the 

started. Although several of these ad hoc
did take up resources and time planned for other projects. Huge improvements in the delivery of IT services 

-

sessions have been held and correspondence sent to all Departmental personnel to make users understand 

and tactical, to technical risks.

In terms of Human Resources Management, 

capacity for the function of sanitation at the regional level. 

appointment of interns also assisted in embellishing capacity albeit at an administrative level.

Notable achievements of the Chief Directorate:Corporate Support include: 

The Chief Directorate: Corporate Support implemented the compliance procedures as outlined in 
various prescripts that govern the environment around records, security and property management. Threat 

-
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The Human Settlement Sector Records Management Forum successfully carried out its planned projects, 
including the conducting of a macro-appraisal of the Human Settlement sector subsidy records to ensure 
their proper management.

The Chief Directorate successfully transferred assets and records of the three closed Housing Institutions 

SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

translate
and objectives.

-
tion, thus giving meaning to the Human Settlements mandate. 

To this end, the programme facilitated the establishment of the Special Presidential Coordinating Council 

the Human Settlements space. 

economic amenities are planned and conceived, before projects are implemented.

institutions,commonly referred to as the gap market -
tise this category for purposes of improving access to home loans and improvement of quality of household 
life.

-
ment and decisive thinking, support and implementation in the realisation of Outcome 8 objectives and 
improvement of household life. 
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During  2010/2011, the programme through the sub-programme, Internal Audit Risk Management and 
Special Investigations, developed and implemented the approved internal audit plans, risk management 
and antifraud and corruption strategies.

-

-

-

and responsibilities as per Treasury Regulations. Concerns raised by the Audit Committee in the meetings 
-

-
ately managed and controlled.

 Subsidies - municipal employees 

       defrauded the Housing Subsidy System.

 Subsidies - Government employees

        defrauded the Housing Subsidy System. 

        commenced.

       both Government and municipal employees.
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 Housing Contracts

         Value of the project: R968 130.31 

         Amount involved: R8 110 500.00 

 Syndicates
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Service delivery achievements

Programme 1:  Administration
Sub-Programme:  Legal Services

Programme Strategic Goal:  To provide strategic leadership; and administra-
tive and management support services to the department

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

Human Settlements 
legislative develop-
ment, monitoring 
and research

Percentage  of ap-
proved Legislative 

100% Legislative The Sectional Titles 
Schemes Management 
Bill and the Community 
Schemes Ombud Service 

-
ment.  Proclamation on the 

-

Act signed by the Presi-
-

tered by the Department 
of Rural Development and 
Land Reform.

Tabling of the Housing 
Amendment Bill before 

year.
Promulgation of the Rental 
Housing Amendment Act 

and extensive consultation 
undertaken.
The Social Housing Regu-

submitted to Parliament for 
consultation.
The Housing Development 
Agency Regulations are 

Percentage of 
monitored implemen-
tation of Legislative 

100% monitored 
implementation of 

Successful monitoring 
of the implementation of 
the Housing Consum-
ers Protection Measures 
Act, Rental Housing Act, 
Social Housing Act, and 
the Housing Development 
Agency Act. The tabling of 
the Housing Amendment 

deferred to the 2011-2012 

Management of 
Litigation and Legal 
Advisory Services

Percentage of 
completed  legal 
documents

100% completed legal 
documents

100% completed legal 
documents

Percentage of com-

rules and procedures

100% managed litiga-
tion matters

100% managed litigation 
matters

Legal compliance 
audit

Performance of legal 
compliance audits
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Programme 1:  Administration
Sub-Programme: Human Resources Management

Programme Strategic Goal: To provide strategic leadership and 
adminis-trative and management support services to the department

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for
variance

Target Actual
To manage and co-ordi-
nate Human Resources 
Development

 Annual Training Report Develop and implement 

implemented.
12 Reports on the Train-
ing and Skills Deve-
lopment Committee’s 
activities

4 Reports on the Training 
and Skills Development 
Committee’s activities

The Training and Skills 
Development Commit-
tee had 4 meetings to 

To manage and co-
ordinate an organisational 
design processes and 
Individual performance
assessment processes

Approved aligned 
structure

Re-aligned structure in Not achieved This is kept in 
abeyance until the 
strategic alignment 
in the Turn-around 

Approved Individual 
Performance Assess-
ment Report

Individual Performance 
Assessments

100% of all submitted 

To ensure effective  
Human Resource
Administration processes

Effectively managed  
recruitment and
selection processes

Fill funded vacant posts 
to ensure 94% capacity

Not achieved

of posts pending the 
turn-around process. 
Only critical funded 

100% compliance on 
conditions of service 

100% compliance on 
Conditions of Service 
as determined by the 

100% conditions of 
service implemented 
as per regulatory 

Approved policies and 
guidelines monitor the implemen-

tation of policies and 
guidelines

Policies on Recruit-
ment and Selection 
and Study Aid have 
been submitted to the 
DBC for perusal and 
discussion.
Resettlement policy 

the Director-General 
and a copy has been 
submitted to the DBC 
for note-taking.

To promote labour rela-
tions in the Department Bargaining Chamber 

activities
Bargaining Chamber 
activities

Managed labour cases/ 
activities

To ensure the effective 
facilitation of LR cases/ 
activities

All submitted labour 

attended to
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Programme 1:  Administration
Sub-Programme: Corporate Support

Programme Strategic Goal: To provide strategic leadership and adminis-
trative and management support services to the department

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

To manage the develop-
ment and implemen-
tation of protective 
security functions

Compliance to all 
security standards

Compliance to physical 
and personnel security 
measures

100% compliance to 
physical and personnel 
security measures

To facilitate the provi-
sion of properties and 
facilities

The acquisition of

reasonable accom-

Occupational Health 
and Safety regula-
tions

acquired acquired. providing space needs of 
the additional staff com-
plement absorbed into the 
Department after Thubeli-

To provide management 
of departmental records

Number of reports 
on compliance to 
National Archives 
requirements

Number of reports on 
compliance to National 
Archives requirements

Four reports submit-
ted on compliance 
to National Archives 
requirements

Programme 1:  Administration
Sub-Programme: Information TechnologyServ-
ices

Programme Strategic Goal: To provide strategic leadership and admin-
istrative and management support services to the Department

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

Manage access to 
information technology 

Implemented, tested 
and maintained DRP

Establish and test a 
disaster recovery site

Achieved - centralised 
storage and backup 
solution implemented.
Testing completed.  
Maintenance is ongo-
ing.

Implemented Infra-
structure optimisation e-mail management 

solution
e-mail management 
solution implemented.

Provision of IT solutions 
to enhance productivity 
and business processes

Implemented business 
process automation

Implement business 
process mapping

Partially achieved - 
draft business process 
mapping requirements 
report completed.

Business process
-

mented.

Developed, revised and 
approved IT policies

ITIL-based service 
desk policy developed 
and approved 

Information technology 
capacity, performance 

-
cies approved.

Revision of ICT strategy 
put in abeyance pen-
ding the outcome of the 
Turnaround Strategy.

Developed and ap-
proved SITA business 
agreement

12 SLA meetings and 
reports

Partially achieved - 5 
SLA meetings held and 
reports compiled.

not held.
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Programme 1:  Administration 
Sub-Programme: Executive Support

Programme Strategic Goal: To provide strategic leadership and admin-
istrative and management support services to the Department

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

Manage the provision of 
administration and logis-
tical support services

Administrative and 
logistical support 
provided

Administrative and 
logistical support 
provide

Administrative support 
provided

Manage the interface 

Cabinet

Parliamentary and 
Cabinet liaison

Parliamentary and 
Cabinet liaison

Liaison and interface
-

ment, Cabinet and 
Parliament managed

Manage the provision 
of secretariat support 
services

Record of proceedings Record of proceedings 

according to prescripts

Strategic decision 
record and prescripts 
produced and com-
piled.

Coordinate the pro-
gramme of the DG

Coordinate programme
Department, the sec-
tor and stakeholder 
coordinated

Coordinate programme Monitor participation of 
Department at FOSAD 
Clusters

Departmental participa-
tion at FOSAD moni-
tored and managed

Coordinate programme Coordinate pro-
gramme

The DG‘s programme 

Manage interface 

Cabinet

Facilitate interaction of 

Parliament

Interaction of Depart-
the Department, Parlia-

effectively managed

Comments on Cabinet 
memos

Comments on Cabinet 
memos submitted a 
day before Cabinet 
meetings

Comments on Cabinet 

provided before Cabi-
net meetings

Coordination of Cabi-
net memo committee

The Cabinet Memo 
-

dinated

Coordinate response 
to Parliamentary ques-
tions

Response to Parlia-
mentary questions

Departmental re-
sponses to Parliamen-

coordinated

Communicate Cabinet 
resolutions

Communicate Cabinet 
resolutions

Cabinet resolutions 

to the Department for 
implementation
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Programme 1:  Administration
Sub-Programme: Internal Audit, Risk Manage-
ment and Special Investigations Unit (SIU)

Programme Strategic Goal: To provide strategic leadership and admin-
istrative and management support services to the Department

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual  

Evaluate the  adequacy, 
effectiveness and ef-

internal control, risk man-
agement and governance 
processes

Approved internal audit 
plan

-
mented internal audit 
plan

-
mented the internal 
audit plan 

Completed 14 planned 
internal audit projects 
and 2 special request 
audits

3 quarterly reports 
issued

2 Projects resched-

2011 due to capacity 
constraints

Fourth Quarterly 

quarter Departmental 
Performance report to 

monitor the implementa-
tion of risk management 
policy and strategy 

An approved  risk man-
agement strategy

An approved  risk man-
agement strategy

An approved  risk 
management strategy

An approved depart- An approved depart- 2010/2011 depart-

approved

Risk assessment for 

year has not yet been 
conducted because the 
Departmental Strategic 
Plan for 2011/12 is 

-
tion and adoption of 
the outcome of the  De-
partmental turnaround 
strategy

Annual report inputs on 
risk management

Annual Report inputs 
on risk management 

Annual Report inputs 
on risk management 
provided

implementation of anti-
corruption strategy  and 

An approved anti-
corruption strategy  and 

An approved anti-
corruption strategy  and fraud policy and fraud-

prevention plan 

and implemented

Report on impact 
analysis and evaluation 
of the policies submit-
ted to DG

Report on impact 
analysis and evaluation 
of the policies submit-
ted to DG

Impact analysis not 
done

Capacity constraints 

Annual report inputs 
on the implementation 
of anti-fraud and anti-
corruption strategy.

Annual report inputs 
on the implementation 
of anti-fraud and anti-
corruption strategy

Inputs are incorpo-
rated in the 2010/ 
2011 Annual Report of 
the department:  See 
page 22 of the Annual 
Report.
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Reasons for major variances
In terms of Human Resources Management

-

commenced and is at various levels of processing.

the structure has been put in abeyance, pending the outcome of the Turnaround Strategy process.

In terms of Corporate Support -
tions from external stakeholders. These include the implementation of records management policies and 

Archives and Records Service.

The Chief Directorate Information Technology and Systems

of surging demand for IT services and over-stretched resources.

migration of the MIS and IT Directorates. Since the departure of these senior personnel, the acting Director: 

this is the only one that currently speaks to the core business requirements of the Department. The other 

ding the outcome of said strategy. These include the revision of the ICT strategy and the mapping of Busi-
ness Processes to IT services.

to its account by SITA, causing delays in projects as constant handovers of projects added to the overall 
confusion at SITA.

-

As IT is a dynamic and ever-changing environment, several ad hoc projects, that also had a negative impact 

2.2.2  Programme 2: Housing Policy, Research and Monitoring
Purpose
Develop and promote policies for human settlement and housing, supported by a responsive research 
agenda. Monitor and assess the implementation, performance and impact of national housing policies and 
programmes.
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Measurable objective
Compiling an enabling policy for adequate housing for all South Africans in sustainable human settlements; 
improving the housing policy and programmes based on the analysis of accurate, strategic and statistically 
sound information and data, monitored through operational and other systems.

Service delivery objectives and indicators
Recent outputs

 The Ministerial National Norms and Standards for Permanent Residential Structures
The Ministerial National Norms and Standards have been enhanced through the replacement of the 

   Builders Registration Council’s Building Manual to ensure parity and uniformity in the industry.

   The annual housing subsidy quantum is continuously monitored to ensure that the minimum National  
   Norms and Standards can be achieved at any given moment. This is achieved through analysing the  

  Stellenbosch, also referred to as the BER Building Cost Index. The said index recorded a general    

   tabled for consideration. 

 Promoting the National Housing Code

  Policy advice and assistance to stakeholders
   Policy advice, assistance and interpretation are continuously being offered to stakeholders through  

 Economic Impact of Government Housing Programmes

   March 31, 2011 for comments. 

   The study has been completed.

   delivery? 

   published in the Human Settlement Review, Volume 1, Number 1, September 2010.

    current housing policies and programmes.
The report is completed.
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 Assessment of the performance of Government-subsidised housing as an asset

  The research forms part of the Department’s expedition in exploring the value alternative technologies  
   could have in creating sustainable human settlements. The aim of the study is to establish the percep- 

   most likely to be accepted. The study has been commissioned and to date a report on data collected is  
   complete. 

 Research support 

   come 8 for presentation to the Presidential Coordinating Council.

   the Rural Housing Programme.

 reference for research projects and making presentations about completed research projects. 

 of Housing Consumer Education Programme. 

 sentations to the Alternative Technology Indaba. An outline for the papers detailing the questions to be

 Directorate therefore assisted the province in redrafting the paper and editing it for publication in the  

 vided information for possible jobs created during 2010, for the Director General’s report to the Portfolio  
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 Scheme Conference taking place in September 2011.   

 the Housing Sector

 MEIA Information System

 Impact assessment studies

   Furthermore, similar impact evaluation studies commenced in the Eastern Cape Province, Duncan   

 Monitoring reports

Quarterly project-level monitoring conducted in 285 projects in all provinces.
Quality of construction of housing units in Matatiele, Mount Frere, Mount Ayliff and Flagstaff in the 

       Alfred Nzo and Oliver Tambo Districts in the Eastern Cape.

       in the Eastern Cape.

 Practice Note Report, 2010

   Division of Revenue Act, 2010, in respect of the performance of Provincial Human Settlements Depart- 
   ments in terms of the Conditional Grant to National Treasury.

Development of a Human Settlement Index

selected from the criteria set out in the HSI Concept Document. The selected indicators are categorised 

management, economic development and governance.
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from Statistics South Africa, Department of Social Development, Department of Health, Department of 

Outcome 8

targets to Cabinet.

Participation in discussion forums
National Research Task Team

Four discussion forums

agenda, policy recommendations from a variety of research projects and discussions, aligning key research 

-
Five (5) reports 

were completed; this includes four quarterly National Research Task Team Reports and an Annual Report 
on the National Research Task Team.

The Alternative Technology Indaba

discussed the contribution of innovative and alternative technologies in human settlements. The conference 
report for the Indaba on alternative technologies has been completed.

and the Department of Human Settlements regarding Outcome 8 of the Government’s Programme of Ac-

determined in the Delivery Agreements, the quarterly reporting format and the reporting process to  
Cabinet.
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of Performance Monitoring and Evaluation in the Presidency; Data Forum on Outcome 8 at the Department 
of Performance Monitoring and Evaluation in the Presidency; GIS Forum on Outcome 8 at the Department 
of Performance Monitoring and Evaluation in the Presidency; POA System Training regarding Outcome 

engagements.

Publications
Human Settlements Review

sourced from a spectrum of academics and researchers. The articles focused on innovative and alternative 
building technologies.

Four analysis reports on trends in the broader macro and micro economic environment, building industry 

delivery of housing is taking place and advise the management of their potential impact on the housing 
delivery.   

A booklet and a CD titled Directory of Exhibitorsfor Alternative Building Technologies Indaba has been 
published.

Shortfalls

planned time. 

-
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Service Delivery Achievements

   Programme: Housing Policy Research and Monitoring

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual  

Develop national
human settlement 
policy

Submission of  policy 
for approval

Develop three policy 
proposals

Ministerial Technical 
Standards, regarding 

housing sector

A detailed policy 

developed for a 

Human Settlements 
Policy and a Human 
Settlements Bill

The policy on the 
housing-subsidy
scheme quantum 
for the 2011/2012 

developed

Promote national
human settlement
policy

Housing Policy and 
Strategy and regional 
housing policy models 
presented to all key 
housing stakeholders

Familiarise key stake-

settlement policies 
through at least nine 

on human settlement 

Provinces and their re-
spective Municipalities

research
Number of research 

themes in the research 
agenda

themes in the research 
agenda

produced
A Terms of Reference for 
a survey on the extent of 

Government employees 

A social impact as-
sessment of housing 
programmes as pursued 

-

led to a duplication of 

by the Chief Directorate: 
Monitoring and Evalu-
ation.

Required percentage 
of  research  papers 
completed

100% of research 
requests completed

100% of requests 

completed.
Eight research 
request received and 
completed
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  Programme: Housing Policy Research and Monitoring

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target Reason for 

varianceTarget Actual  
A  functional research 
nucleus

Maintain and resource 
the research nucleus research nucleus.

Electronic Research Nucleus 
Test site placed on DHS Portal

Establish centers of 
excellence for human 
settlements for policy 
research

National Research 
Foundation

research
Number of research 
reports on the identi-

research agenda

-

themes in the research 
agenda

the usage of alternative building 
technologies in human settle-

The use of Alternative Technolo-
-

for publishing.
-

ers in polygamous marriages 
might be discriminated against, 
by the current housing policies 

completed.
A study to determine the costs 

in informal settlements- a report 
on data collected from Gauteng, 

-
pleted.
A study to understand the per-

alternative building technologies  
- a report on data collected from 
Gauteng and Northern Cape 

published paper 

additional studies 

be completed dur-
ing the 2011/2012 

Monitor and evaluate 
the planning, imple-
mentation and per-
formance of national 
housing policies and 
programmes

Approved monitoring, 
evaluation and impact 
assessment policy, 
implementation guide-
lines and System

Approved MEIA Policy 
and guidelines  for 
2010/2011

Approved MEIA Policy and 
guidelines for 2010/2011

Number of:
 Monitoring reports
 Technical construc- 

   tion reports
reports

reports

granted for the 
establishment of 

-

discontinued
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Number of research 
outputs disseminated outputs disseminated for the dissemination of 

-
tional Research Task Team 

Alternative Building Tech-

from 29 to 30 September 
2010.

-

completed.

Volume 1, Number1, Sep-

Variance: Additional 
outputs disseminated

research on housing
Number of research 

themes in the research 
agenda

Three research reports 

themes in the research 
agenda

Assessment of the Economic 
Impact of Government Hous-

completed.
Assessment of the Perform-
ance of Government-
subsidised Housing as an 
Asset:  A preliminary report 
completed.

Directory of Exhibitors: Alter-
native Building Technologies 

A booklet and a CD has 

Full percentage of
research  papers 
completed

100% of research 
requests completed

100% of requests received, 

requests received and 
completed

to determine trends 
in the broader macro 
and micro economic 
environment; deter-
mine the impact

reports on trends in the 
broader  macro and 
micro economic envi-
ronment; determine the 
impact thereof

reports trends in the broader macro 
and micro economic environ-
ment; and the impact thereof 

  Programme: Housing Policy Research and Monitoring

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual  
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  Programme: Housing Policy Research and Monitoring

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target Reason for 

varianceTarget Actual  
Number of occupancy 
audit reports Occupancy Audit 

could not continue 

funding and the 
-

tinued
Assess the impact 
of national housing 
policies, programmes 
and projects

Number of impact 
assessment reports

The second study 
only commenced 
in the third quarter 
and data collection 
is still in progress
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Reasons for major variances

2.2.3  Programme 3: Housing Planning and Delivery Support
Purpose

effective housing and human settlement programmes. To coordinate and monitor the implementation of 
priority projects and the sanitation programme.

Measurable objective
Provide effective implementation and delivery support for sustainable human-settlement development 

as promote universal access to sanitation services by managing and administering the sanitation 
programme.

Service delivery objectives and indicators
Recent outputs

-
-

pecially in light of Cabinet Lekgotla pronouncements. The Cabinet Lekgotla of January has placed re-

-
structure Departments. These agreements then cascade to provincial departments of Human Settlements 

-
ferred provider of capacity development services, by Provincial Departments of Human Settlements and 
some municipalities. The Chief Directorate has put in place a training and capacity development strategy 

-
tion of human settlements policies require a combination of technical, policy-making, administrative and 

To ensure that human-settlement practitioners protect and promote the public interest in the discharge of 

of a human settlement professional body. 

-
popo, Free State and in Mpumalanga. The Chief Directorate have continued to support provinces that are 
participating in this programme to enhance the effectiveness of the South African Cuban Technical Support 
Programme, to ensure value for money. 
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Approval to advertise for the 2011 academic intake and the transfer of funds, to advertise in both print and 

Die Beeld
Daily Sun

Lesedi

SABC Limpopo combo
SABC Mpumalanga combo.

Processing of all invoices for payments: Student invoices from institutions of higher learning have been 
processed for payment.

The Department hosted the 2011 induction from 28 to 30 

Visits to institutions of higher learning: Visits to institutions of higher learning to monitor students’ progress 

listen to students’ challenges and to support them. 

The South African Cuban Technical Support Programme (SACTSP)

-
ment.

the programme.

credible provincial plans, to ensure the effective implementation of the SACTSP programme and to ensure 
value for money.

-
ern Cape and the Free State.

Knowledge management

-
cial departments.
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Provincial Capacity Development Business Plan
-

addressed on the importance of identifying capacity gaps and the development of credible Capacity Deve-
lopment Plans for their departments.

-

-

necessary.

to share best practices and challenges on the implementation of Capacity Development Business Plans.

Implementation of the Sustainable Communities Support Programme 

through the Sustainable Development Executive Training Programme. Accredited training materials have 

Implementation of the Consumer Education Programme 

enhanced, aligned to the human settlements mandate and to service delivery.

Implementation of the Councilor Training Programme 

-
ment.
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The sub-programme has a targeted approach to all three spheres of government through three directo-
rates: National Planning, Provincial Planning; and Municipal Planning. Although the proceeding tasks do not  

    Grant Business Plan.

    revisions.
 National Programme and Resource Manual for Housing Chapters of Integrated Development Plans 

 National Housing Conditional Grant Business Plan for 2010/2011 submitted for approval.

 Support rendered to municipalities in the revision and implementation of housing-sector plans.

the third quarter.

ders are currently held. In addition, there is no donor funding being undertaken.

PLANNING FRAMEWORKS
-

Revised Provincial and National Conditional Grant Business Plans 

  in Quarters 1, 2 and 3. 

In quarter 4, 
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   provincial response to Outcome 8, especially in terms of budgeting.  

 Provincial Annual Performance Plans (APPs)/ Multi-Year Housing Development Plans (MYHDPs)
First drafts of the APPs

 Standard reporting framework on delivery plans for provinces

   ready for implementation.

 Technical Guide for Human Settlement Planning and Design (Red Book)

   approval, this script has been put on hold, pending the outcome of the Departmental policy and legis- 

 National Programme and Resource Manual for Human Settlement Chapters of Integrated Develop
    ment Plan. 

The Terms of Reference to appoint a service provider to audit the Housing Chapter of the IDP 

 Land Use Management Bill

   given input to the Bill.

 Guideline for Spatial Development Framework
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    comment from provinces.

 applications do not have motivational memoranda and specialists’ studies. Consultants have been  
 requested to provide the outstanding information in order for the Department to provide informed  
  comments. 

PROVINCIAL WORKSHOPS

 Steering committees: APP/MYHDP Steering Committee for Limpopo Province  

  steering committee members are NDHS, Limpopo Department of Housing and Local Government and  

 Last Quarterly Performance Reviews: Provinces  

   as to enable them to achieve national targets. 

 Human Settlements Planning Forum

   spheres of government could share best practice.

   sent to sectors and institutions.

NON-COPMPLIANCE ISSUES: Engagements of Provinces that did not submit the APPs

At this point in time, only Limpopo Province has submitted the APP after receiving the letter of non- 
compliance.

Additional critical planning initiatives
 Human Settlement Indaba 
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   massively in informing on, inter alia, Vision 2030 and turn-around strategy of the NDHS. This occurred 

   ment of sustainable human settlements. 

 Indicators for Part D of the APP

   an annexure to Part D and they intend to provide a direction to the provinces in terms of tracking their  

   sustainable human settlements. 

   Grants:Urban Settlement Development Grant (USDG)

   February 15, 2011 to the March 3, 2011. 

   Municipalities: Hands-on support to municipalities

 IDP Analysis
  Municipal Planning participated in the Preparatory Meeting for National Integrated Development Plan- 
   ning Analysis Induction convened by the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs    

    issues during the municipal IDP Analysis.

   2010 IDP Analysis sessions. The Municipal Planning Directorate formed part of the Infrastructure and  
  the Service Delivery Team, purposely, to evaluate implementation of Integrated Development Plans  

   through appropriate municipal development strategies and plans. 

   if municipalities have established and addressed capacity challenges.

  Development Planning Analysis Induction convened by CoGTA to provide inputs through a detailed set  

 Housing Chapters of IDPs
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   and Limpopo Provinces. The alignment of Outcome 8 Priorities emphasising its implication on  

   priorities such as land availability, rental and social-housing stock, informal settlements upgrading and  

   District Municipality at the request of the Eastern Cape Department of Human Settlements in prepara- 
   tion for the Provincial Summit on Integrated Sustainable Human Settlements.

SECTORAL ALIGNMENT
National Depart-

   ment of Rural Development and Land Reform 
 CoGTA and SALGA during the process of exploring an appropriate model for municipalities.

   Management Information Systems and Monitoring and Evaluation.

Programme Implementation Sup-
port has focused its activities on the provision of support for the unblocking of stalled housing projects, the 
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and milestones of the Outcome 8 Delivery Agreement. It managed to provide assistance to provinces, mu-
nicipalities and individuals in 41 different projects during the year.

Providing access to basic services and secure tenure through informal settlement upgrading, to  
400 000 households currently residing in informal settlements, is a major output of the Outcome 8 Delivery 

the Sub-programme has been involved extensively in the establishment, management and promotion of the 
-

-

HDA during 2011/2012.

practitioners to understand the housing development process, to better plan projects, to manage projects 

-

The programme through the sub-programme Social/Rental Housing and Peoples Housing Process 
managed the implementation of People’s Housing Process and Social/Rental Housing programmesand 
provided regulatory support and oversight over the Social/Rental Housing and PHP sectors.

scale; effective measures through legislative 
sing accommodation. 
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Appointed a service provider to develop the Implementation Guidelines for the enhanced PHP Policy 

Conducted an audit on all PHP blocked projects and developed an Action Plan to address PHP blocked 
    projects.

    and jointly came up resolutions to ensure the up-scaling of PHP as one of the Human Settlements deli- 
    very programmes.

    for the PHP sector and presented it to the PHP National Reference Group.

    Local Government and Housing, and Habitat for Humanity in Diepsloot.

Engaged provinces and developed recommendations for the resolution of old debt.

    tation of the enhanced PHP Policy projects.

The programme through the sub-programme Priority Projects Facilitation continued to manage the Prio-

Zanemvula Project in the Eastern Cape

Thubelisha Homes, the Eastern Cape Provincial Department of Human Settlements and the Housing  
-
-

ern Cape Provincial Department of Human Settlements to facilitate the closure of Thubelisha Homes. 
This process has largely been completed, legitimate claims by contractors have been paid and aspects  

Settlements.

The Duncan Village Project, in the Eastern Cape 

development, illegal occupations of houses in Reeston 796 and dynamics at local level. The approval by 
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The Khutsong Project in Gauteng Province
The lack of funding is impacting very negatively on the capability to address the RoD requirements, as 

in the Khutsong project, as it is carrying the costs of funding the construction of concrete house aprons; the 
costs are exceeding the outdated, approved subsidy quantum. The municipality submitted an application for 

Department, but, to date, has not received any response. The municipality has indicated that the Project 
could soon come to a standstill as it cannot continue to carry these costs. The Project stoppage could result 
in community unrest.

The Klarinet Project located in the Emalahleni in Mpumulanga Province
The project is currently behind schedule due to funding constraints but the construction of 435 housing units 

is being placed on providing subsidised units for the aged and the disabled. 

The Sweetwaters Project situated in Gauteng Province

in the area has reached its capacity and cannot accommodate this Project. In order to address this problem, 
-

been established for each precinct and they are meeting regularly. An overall Communication Strategy is 
being developed to keep the public informed of the progress made in the Project. The cost of construct-

threaten the completion of this component of the Project. Some challenges are being experienced regarding 

being taken at provincial level in both these instances.

The Lerato Park Project situated in the Northern Cape
-

tion agent has insisted on a higher level of services and the province and local authority have acceded to 
this request and no top structures have yet been built. Absa has also indicated that the project cannot pro-
ceed unless the bulk infrastructure for the Sol Plaatjie Municipality is upgraded and the capacity increased. 

requirements can be accommodated in the existing bulk infrastructure capacity. The Chief Directorate has 

contractual agreements so that delivery on the project can proceed.

The Thornhill Integrated Housing Development, situated in the Eastern Cape Province
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The Cornubia Project, situated in KwaZulu-Natal Province

-
ship establishment process is being held up by the reluctance of the Department of Agriculture to approve 
the resoning of the Agricultural land for residential use for the subsequent phase.

The Lephalale Project in the Limpopo Province

ding costs calculated and a funding model is being developed.

The Diepsloot Project in Gauteng

The unavailability of suitable land for human settlements developments remains a major challenge hamper-
ing progress on the Priority Projects. The projects affected include the Duncan Village Project, the Khutsong 

loads generated from major projects is another major challenge and impacts negatively on projects like the 
Thornhill, and Duncan Village Projects. 

Lack of funding to meet the provisions of the RoD requirements on the Khutsong Project is hampering 

all the requirements. Importantly, this project is in need of the top-up adjustment on the old subsidy quantum 

to come to a halt.

The programme through the sub-programme Stakeholder Mobilisation -

-
tlements upgrade and yielded 140 completed units using the subsidy. In Coligny the cement company of 
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the region Afrisam further made contributions by upgrading a community facility for early childhood in the 
community. 

Annual Report is prefaced and the detail is listed hereunder.

Social Contract and Rural Compact

-

Negotiations with targeted stakeholders

Human Settlements, the Dipaliseng Local Municipality and GBG Mines.

Support the National Quarterly Forums and the Social Compacts Task Teams

Stakeholder newsletter

accordingly.

Stakeholder database

The Department has initiated a process to kickstart an enabling environment for small/medium  
construction entrepreneurs. During the period of April 2010 to June 2010 the Department hosted Emerging  

nationally by all provincial departments. 
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-

utilising alternative technology systems. Lastly, to collaborate on research and best practices. Thus far, the 
Department has received and still receives assistance in Eastern Cape, Gauteng, Free State, Limpopo, 

-

Violence Against Women and Children - 
-

secured from Veralli Energy Solutions.

built for Impala Platinum employees utilising the Finance Linked Subsidy programme for employees earn-

On 19 August 2010 the President of South Africa, His Excellency Mr Jacob Zuma, visited the area of Struis-

one another. During this visit, the President visited nine families in Struisbaai and six families in Arniston. He 

Marthinus a family house. On February 16, 2011, the municipality offered the family an accessible muni-

-
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Women and youth mobilisation
Framework for the Empowerment and Participation of Women in Human Settlements Delivery

State and Gauteng to provide advisory support and guidance in terms of implementation of the target.

Women’s initiatives - Women’s Build

-
-

munity members, before handing over the houses during the closing ceremony.Various stakeholders from 

of cement and pledged to renovate the community crèche. Other key stakeholders include FNB, ABSA,  
-

List of National pledges for Women’s Build 2010 Project

COMPANY NAME PLEDGE
Afrisam 7000 Bags of cement

Painting of 1 complete house
 20 x 20lt paint

Safety hats x 150
Safety gloves x 250

NHBRC Safety hats
Safety gear, 

Group Five 
Everite

Host 2 houses

ABSA

4 x Solar heater geysers

Mino Global Properties Host 3 alternative-technology houses

NHFC

FNB Host a house
Financial management course
Furniture for 2 completed houses
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ABSA - 30 employees
Afrisam - daily team of 18 employees
FNB - 120 employees
Group Five - 45 employees

Women’s Build Aftercare Programme

councilors handed over the sponsored items and visited the houses constructed on the October 30, 2010.

Establishment of Provincial Women Forums
-

National Women in Human Settlements Forum

coordinated and hosted in Pretoria.

Mentorship
A draft Incubator-and-Mentorship Programme has been developed and incorporated in the emerging con-

Advisory support

.
activities of the National Gender Forum:

Mock Trial
National Gender Machinery meetings.

-

Challenges experienced in terms of reporting and performance include the lack of system for accurate 

16 Days of Activism Campaign on No Violence against Women and Children

rendered to Free State Province. All provinces submitted inputs regarding their plan for the 16 days. High-
level delegation of Ministers from various National Departments and from provinces and local councilors 
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attended the closing ceremony in Durban, KZN on December, 10. The Deputy Minister of Human Settle-

COMPANY NAME CONTRIBUTION
Dezzo Holdings

Employment of Magcaba’s son
Educational support for Magcaba’s daughter from Grade 8 -12 
through company’s Adopt-a-Scholar Programme 

Stedone Civils 1 x House for Nxusi family
Everite/Group Five

Catering for 30 volunteers on-site
Department of Agriculture, Forestry and 
Fisheries

Food garden for Magcaba and Nxusi families
Food garden for Dhladla family

Department of Cooperative Governance Free basic services 
Registration of families as indigent 

Department of Social Development Food parcels/Social relief
Family counseling

Framework for the Empowerment and Participation of Youth in Human Settlements Delivery 

YouthBuild Project (Ivory Park)

ders constructed 76 houses to commemorate the 1976 youth uprisings. The youth and various stakehol-

communication, implementation support, monitoring and evaluation, corporate support sections participated 

from various stakeholders for tools, training and material. The President of the Republic of South Africa 

Exit opportunity

Global as exit opportunity for the youth.
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Advisory support
-

16 Days of Activism Build.

-

-

developing the Department’s response regarding the pronouncements made by the State President.

extended.

meeting include Afrisam to sponsor by providing a Project Manager to the Human Settlements Builds or 
other projects. As such, both parties agreed to enter in to a Memorandum of Agreement.

National Youth Forums

IMPLEMENTATION SUPPORT
-

various legislation and Parliamentary Acts have been issued that address aspects of sanitation, including 

and environmental protection. 

It has become increasingly evident that in South Africa there is a need to revise current policy to accom-
modate aspects to the delivery of sanitation that have arisen as a result of the changed service delivery 

the delay on procurement to appoint the professional service provider. Stakeholder consultation took place; 
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-

-

-

SALGA. The purpose of the drafting team is to analyse all inputs received from stakeholders and ensure 
that they are adequately captured in the revised policy.

policy components faced by municipalities in tackling sanitation improvement, so as to then gather addi-

ADVOCACY AND INFORMATION DISSEMINATION

Apart from the municipal one-on-one engagements, draft municipal plans/packages have been developed, 

-

-

kind of support that is currently being provided to municipalities, generally on free basic sanitation services. 
The process of aligning the Sanitation Costing Guideline, Sanitation Technology Options Guideline and 

progress made nationally to deliver sanitation infrastructure, hygiene education and other related activities. 

-
-
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INTER-DEPARTMENTAL COORDINATION

-
-

lated, based on the number of household served multiplied by 5 people staying in the house. Health and 

-
tad helped to promote health and hygiene and to guard against illegal dumping. All provinces have launched 

-

JOB CREATION
-

youth; 40 learners have been registered in the SMMEs database in Inkomazi Local Municipality. In addition, 

-

job-creation related projects.

CAPACITY BUILDING AND TRAINING
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3 and 4.

of the Department of Higher Education. The training of process controllers took place in Gauteng and 32 
-

-

of Technology, titled: The evaluation of the user acceptance and functioning of mobile communal sanitation 

regarding the turnaround time to approve the business plan, since it is behind schedule. 

MONITORING AND EVALUATION

-

-
ments.

-

Site visits to attend to the Accelerated Community Infrastructure Programme and Municipal Infrastructure 

-

-
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-

their counterparts in various municipalities in South Africa, covering the period from April 2005 to Decem-

functionality and sustainability of sanitation structures provided by the sector from technical, social and 
institutional perspectives in all nine regions. The assessment is carried over to assess the functionality 
of sanitation facilities in terms of physical size of the sanitation structures, to assess structural integrity of 
sanitation structures in terms of determining the extent of settling and tilting, to assess the possible location 

impact of the programme at household and community level. 

-

TECHNICAL SUPPORT
-
-
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Service Delivery Achievements

  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Develop and maintain 
human settlement 
programmematic

and instruments

Human settlement 

and instruments 
are developed and 
maintained

Programme for Human 
Settlement Chapters of 
Integrated Develop-
ment Plans

Not Achieved Terms of Reference for 
appointment of a service 
provider sent to the Direc-
tor-General for approval. 

Human Settlements 
Planning

Not Achieved

been sent to the Director-
General for approval

Multi-year National 
Human Settlement 
Development Plan 
submitted

Not achieved
Housing Development 
Plans have been received. 
In order to compile the 

Settlement Development 

required
Support the imple-
mentation of human 
settlement develop-
ment design and 
spatial planning at 
provincial level

Support to PHDs i.r.o. 
human settlement 
development design 
and spatial planning is 
provided

Support, guide and 

-
tlement Development 
Plans

Target Achieved

Gauteng, Mpumalanga, 
Northern Cape, Eastern 

-
ern Cape, and Limpopo 
Provinces  supported, 

Information for the 
compilation of a Multi-

Settlement Develop-
ment Plan provided

Not Achieved
Housing Development 
Plans have been received. 

information to compile the 

Settlement Development 

required
Provide information 
to provinces and 
municipalities on the 
strategy to unblock 
stalled projects

Report on information 
sessions conducted 

Hold information ses-

on the strategy to un-
block stalled projects

Information ses-
sions held with six (6) 
provinces on June 9, 
2010 and with eight (8) 
provinces on Decem-
ber 9, 2010
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  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Develop and maintain 
human settlement 
programmematic

and instruments

Human settlement 

and instruments 
are developed and 
maintained

Programmeme for 
Human Settlement 
Chapters of Integrated 
Development Plans

Not achieved Terms of Reference for 
appointment of a service 
provider sent to the 
Director-General for ap-

Human Settlements 
Planning

Not achieved

been sent to the Director-
General for approval. 

The second is the Busi-

managed by National 
Treasury. 

National Human Set-
tlement Development 
Plan submitted

Not achieved
compile the National Hu-
man Settlement Develop-

National Conditional 
Grant Business Plan 
submitted

Target achieved

National Conditional 
Grant Business Plan 
submitted and signed by 
Director-General

Institutional alignment 
-

partments maintained

Target achieved

Institutional align-

Treasury, Department of 
Cooperative Govern-

maintained

Provide support 
to provinces and 
municipalities in diag-
nosing the reasons 
for projects being 
blocked.

Report on the reasons 
for projects being 
blocked

Report on the reasons 
for projects being 
blocked

Report compiled, 
based on information 
received from four 
(4) provinces. Five 
(5) provinces did not 
provide input.

Priority list of blocked 
projects to be under-
taken by provinces

Agree on blocked 
projects to receive 
support

Target not achieved Due to discrepancies 

HSS information provinces 

nor prioritised blocked 
projects
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Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Design, in collabora-

and municipalities, 
recovery plans / inter-
ventions to unblock 
projects

Report on recovery 
plans / interventions 
undertaken in respect 

projects

Quarterly progress 

blocked projects

Target not achieved
due to provincial failure 
to identify and prioritise 

Provide information 
to provinces and 
municipalities on the 
strategy to unblock 
stalled projects

Report on information 
sessions conducted 

Hold information ses-

on the strategy to un-
block stalled projects

debated during the 
Service Delivery Task 
Team Meeting on June 

session took place on 
December 9, 2010.

Render implementa-
tion, co-ordination 
and facilitation 
support to provinces 
and municipalities for 
projects approved 
i.t.o the Housing 
Subsidy Scheme

vinces regarding sup- 
port to be provided

and relevant stakehol-
ders to determine sup-
port to be provided

7 provinces to determine 
support to be provided

Free State and Eastern 
Cape did not respond 
to repeated requests for 
meetings

-
ing System; system 
used to prevent  some 
projects to become 
blocked

Achieved
The unit is dependent on 
Management Informa-

the development of the 

HSS. MIS could not 
procure the services of 
a service provider due 

service.
Prepare a quarterly 

projects in danger of 
becoming blocked

Achieved

projects completed

Priority list of projects 
to receive delivery
support

provinces to discuss 
projects and determine 
project support

Achieved

Northern Cape and 

Quarterly report on 
recommendations for 
support.

Achieved
-

dations completed

Support individu-
als, provinces and 
municipalities to de-
velop and implement 
strategies to improve 
project implementa-
tion

Support  to be 
provided in terms of
agreed projects/other 
matters received, that 
require assistance

Support/respond to 
each matter/project 
that need assistance 
and make proposals/
strategies  accordingly 
to resolve matters/
projects

Achieved
Project support pro-
vided in relation to all 26 
projects and proposals 
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   Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Support and facilitate 
the development of 
upgrading strategies 
and plans

provinces and relevant 
stakeholders regarding 
support to be provided 
on informal settlement 
upgrading  strategies

provinces and relevant 

and/or amend roles and 
responsibilities

Achieved

met during the Service 
Delivery Task Team 
Meeting on June 9, 

and responsibilities. The 

February 2011.

of  informal-settlement 
upgrading projects 

-
inces to receive informal 
settlement upgrading 
support

Visit provinces to 
determine list of Informal 
settlement projects to 
receive support

Achieved

visited to determine the 
list of informal settle-
ment projects needing 
support

Support provinces 
and municipalities to 
implement upgrading 
strategies and plans

Strategies or plans 

prepared and projects 
supported

Development of upgrad-
ing plans in respect 

settlements

Achieved
The Informal settle-

City of Johannesburg, 
Ekurhuleni, Maquassi 
and Nelson Mandela 

supported through 
recommended technical 
assistance

Facilitate and support 
the implementation 
of projects upgrading 
informal settlement

Achieved

-

Sakhile, Holomisa, Mad-
elakufa 1, Madelakufa 2, 
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   Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Development, manage-
ment and support 
implementation of 
Government’s Rental 
Housing Programmes

Facilitate, support and 
manage development 
of 100 000 public and 
private rental housing 
units in provinces, in 

-
tional Rental Housing 
Strategy and pending 
provinces approval 
of funding for rental 
housing

Support delivery of 
approximately 20 000 
public and private 
rental housing units in 

the National Rental 
Housing Strategy and 
pending provinces’ 
approval of funding for 
rental housing

Achieved
Support facilitation for 
the development of 20 
000 public and private 
rental units; about 5 

3 100 Social Housing 

stages of construction 
and planning in all 9 
provinces and 16 000 
units cover the pipeline. 

Technical Support 

Packaging and Capac-

provided through eleven 

Committee meetings 

project packaging and 
planning issues, SHI 
capacitation, municipal 
and provincial capacita-
tion and policy related 
matters.

Support in designa
tion and approval of 
Restructuring Zones and 

Spatial Aspects of Plan-
ning of Social Housing 

Restructuring Zones in 7 
provinces.

Further support has 
been facilitated through 
the SA/Netherlands 
Technical Assistant 
Support, an annual 
implementation plan is 
in place; 3 Oversight 

enhance the support in 
place.
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  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

supported by attending the 
-

their planning processes. EC 
is in the process of develop-

Studies have been completed 
in the Free State.

actively supported by respon-
ding to their telephonic, faxed 
letter queries.

Support to rental 
housing programme 
implementation
through development 
of approximately 
three policy enhanc-
ing Templates and- 
Guide Tools provided

compiled.

adopted

Private sector support - sup-
-

nix Project and conversion 
of project to social housing 
achieved

National discussion 

rental housing com-
plimentary initiatives 
developed

Achieved
The Discussion Paper on 
upscaling of rental housing 

approval and presented to 
MinMEC.

Draft documents and various 
reports on Housing Coop-
eratives is in place; provided 
support in the development 
of a business case and 
amendment of regulations for 
co-operatives

EEBDS stock audit reports 

vinces submitted their reports.
The compilation of EEBDS 
concept paper has not been 

reports/submissions relating 
to the conditions of the stock 

Rental Sector Meet-
ings held per annum 
through various task 
teams and forums

Achieved

tings held through various task 
team forums
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 Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target Reason for vari-

anceTarget Actual 
Regulatory support 
and oversight of the 
rental housing sec-

tenant protection 
issues

Institutional arrange-
ments  for rental 
housing sector regu-
lation and oversight 
operations in all 9 
Provincial Housing 

Oversight of performance 
of regulatory institutions 
and support regulatory 
institution for the rental 

the Rental Housing Act, 
No 55 of 1999 and the 
Social Housing Regula-
tory Authority established 
in terms of Social Housing 
Act, No 16 of 2008

Four meetings to identify 
technical support required for 
the effective management of 

The development of the 
centralised case manage-

Technical and business user 

Responded to 100 percent of 
the enquiries received from 
tenant.

Provided an administrative 
support to the establishment 
of the Social Housing Regula-
tory Authority and the process 
of establishing the regulatory 

Develop, manage, 
support implementa-

PHP and related

supported in the 
delivery of at least 20 
000 units by 2013, 
pending provinces’ 
allocation to imple-
ment PHP based on 

and Implementation 
Strategy for PHP

Support the delivery of at 
least 5 000 PHP housing 
units across the 9 PHPs 
based on the approved 

-
tion Strategy for PHP

implemented PHP in the 

hence only 3 500 units could 
be delivered. The rest of the 
provinces have not planned 
nor budgeted to implement 
PHP.

Some provinces do 
not implement PHP 

budgeting for the 
implementation of 

Manage the liaison 
and involvement 
of stakeholders in 
Human Settlement 
projects.

Social contracts 
implemented

Social contract and 
rural contract strategies 
implemented

Achieved
Social contract and rural com-
pact strategies implemented

Targeted agree-

stakeholders concluded

Not Achieved
Great Basin Gold 

suspended by the 
Mpumalanga Provin-
cial Department of 
Human Settlements 
pending outside 

Mpumalanga Provin-
cial Department of 
Human Settlements, 
the Dipaliseng Local 
Municipality and 
GBG Mines.

Targeted negotia-

House of Traditional 

did not take place 
because of lack 
of readiness and 
non-availability of 



91

  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Support the national 
quarterly forums and 
the Social compacts 
Task Teams

Support the National 
Implementation Forum 
on:
The Govan Mbeki 

Housing

Achieved

Provided support to the 
national implementation 
forum on:

The Govan Mbeki Hou-

    Housing and 
The Social Contracts 

   Task Teams
Production of the 
quarterly stakeholder compiled and circulated

Achieved

compiled and circulated 
per quarter

Bi-annually update 
stakeholder database

Develop and update 
stakeholder database

Achieved
Stakeholder database 
developed and updated 
bi-annually.

Manage the col-
laboration on projects 

-
holders

Emerging Contrac-
tors Support Project 
implemented

National Emerging 
Contractors’ Confer-
ence organised and 
Provincial Emerging 

supported

Not achieved
All 9 Provincial Depart-
ments of Human 
Settlements Emerging 

supported. National 
Emerging Contrac-
tors’ Conference not 
organised.

National Conference 

Minister’s approval and 
date for the National 
Emerging Contractors’ 
Conference

-
ship agreements 
implemented

Stakeholder implemen-
tation guidelines devel-
oped and implemented

Achieved
Stakeholder implementa-
tion guidelines developed 

-
lines attached.

Production of the 
quarterly stakeholder compiled and circulated

Achieved

compiled and circulated-
quarterly

Engaged provincial 
departments in support-
ing the implementation 

projects

Achieved

Provincial Departments:

Eastern Cape
Limpopo

Gauteng

In supporting the imple-
mentation process of 



92

  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Engaged stakeholders 
to participate in the De-
partment’s programme-
mes through provinces

Achieved
-

ing stakeholders to 
participate in the Depart-
ment’s programmemes 
throughprovinces:

   pality

  rectional Services

  Children and People

Stakeholders seek-

Department. Evidence 
attached on all engage-
ments

obtaining land for 
human settlement

Conclude agreements 
for cooperation and 
facilitation of State land 
release

Number of Implementa-
tion Protocols signed

and Minister of Rural 
Development

Fast-tracking the 
release of State land for 
human settlement

Minimum of 2 150 net 
hectares of State land 
signed off and released 
to the HDA and munici-
palities

Achieved
To date 33000 hectares 

has been submitted 
by the HDA for release 
by custodian Depart-
ment.  Referenced on 
HDA Quarter 3 Report, 
page 16;  HDA quarterly 
reports submitted to unit 
as evidence for monitor-
ing implementation of 
2 150 net hectares of 
State land

To date 33000 hectares 

has been submitted 
by the HDA for release 
by the custodian 
Department.  Refer-
enced on HDA Quarter 
3 Report,page 16;
HDA quarterly reports 

evidence of monitor-
ing implementation of 
2 150 net hectares of 
State land

National Govan Mbeki 
Human Settlements 

-
nated

Not achieved
coordinated due to the 

-
-

approval
Coordination of 
Provincial Govan Mbeki 

Provincial Govan Mbeki Not achieved
not supported due to 
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  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Cooperation protocols of 
implementation signed

Mobilised stakeholder 
-

Achieved

Activism: FNB, Travel 

Veralli
Manage the Empo-

in Human Settlement 
programmes

-
gramme implemented and implemented

Achieved

and revised commitment 
received from Gauteng, 
Eastern Cape, Free 

target.

and implemented at 
provincial level

for accurate reporting 

quota report submitted
Not Achieved System to track 

achievement of target 
not yet in operation. 

Mentorship programme 
model approved

Mentorship programme 
-

ments developed and 
implemented

Achieved
Programme developed 
and incorporated in the 
emerging contractor 

supported
100% roll-out of housing 
units delivered through 

Achieved
-

Coligny, Ditsobotla 

constructed to com-
memorate the 1956 

Stakeholders mobilized 
through sponsorships to 
support the Build. Key 
Partnerships established 

FNB, Coverland, Afri-

Mino Global, Everite 
and Group Five. These 
stakeholders hosted 
houses for the Build. 
Other Housing Institu-
tions such as NHFC, 
NHBRC and NHRLF 
also pledged support 
during the build. Prov-
inces such as Gauteng, 
Free State, Limpopo and 
KZN also participated 
actively through resource 
support in the build. 
Other key Departments 
included Department 
of Agriculture, Forestry 
and Fisheries and Social 
Development.
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  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Minister handed over the 
houses.
Aftercare programmeme 
implemented for the 

renovated a community 
crèche and FNB spon-

for community school. 
Deputy Minister handed 

16 Days Programmeme 

Disability. All prov-
inces coordinated the 
16 Houses in 16 Days 
Project. The opening 

closing Ceremony in 

stakeholders pledged 
support during 16 Days 
House Build in KZN 

This includes Everite, 
Dezzo Holdings, Ste-
done Civils, Department 
of Agriculture, Forestry 
and Fisheries, Depart-
ment of Cooperative 
Governance, Depart-
ment of Social Develop-
ment

Number of reports on National and Provincial 

Forums coordinated and 
supported

Advisory support 
rendered to sector 
stakeholders

coordinated.
Advisory support 
rendered to Department 

-

Machinery, 16 Days 
-

-

-

Provincial Forums 
structures are inactive.

held related to poor 
attendance of repre-
sentatives from other 
provinces.



95

  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target Reason for vari-

anceTarget Actual 

-
mented

implemented
Achieved
Implementation support provi- 

Cape, Free State and Mpu-
malanga

and implemented at 

developing a tool for 

by provinces
100% housing units 
delivered through youth 
initiatives during youth 
month

Achieved
100% housing units delivered 
through youth initiatives dur-

initiative in Ivory Park. Atleast 
100 youth participated in the 
construction of 76 houses to 
mark the 1976 youth uprisings 
in Ivory Park.

-

implement in provinces using 

implemented in all provinces 

provincial challenges.  NH-
BRC implementing agent and 
programmeme implemented 

-

HSS developing tool 
to capture reporting 
on youth housing 

20% target.

100% Housing units 
delivered through 
youth initiatives 
during youth month 

in Ivory Park.

-
mented in Ivory Park. Atleast 
100 youth participated in the 
construction of 76 houses to 
mark the 1976 youth uprisings 
in Ivory Park
The project is implemented 

-
burg, Gauteng Department of 

Director General actively 
participated in the construction 
of the houses. Other stake-
holders involved that pledged 
support includes construction 
CETA, NHBRC, and DAFF.

Exit Opportunity Strat-
egy developed and 
implemented

Achieved

from construction CETA and 
absorption of 10 youth from 
Mino Global, housing scholar-

Exit strategy devel-
oped and imple-
mented at provincial 
level
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Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

100% housing units 

Build Projects

100% housing units deliv-

Projects Ivory Park through 
construction of housing 
units by young people dur-
ing youth month

National and Provin-

Forums coordinated 
and supported

coordinated in Gauteng 
and Mpumalanga

Provincial forum structures 
inactive

Housing Forums sup-
ported

supported in Mpumalanga;
Special Housebuild 
constructed for Marthinus 
family in Struisbaai after 
President Zuma visited the 

-

Disability and Department 
of Correctional Services 

Advisory support 
rendered to sector 
stakeholders

Participated in a meeting 
-

and supported by Gauteng 
Department of Human 
Settlements.
Site visits done in Knysna 
and Plettenberg.

Manage training 
and skills develop-
ment aimed at 
building capacity 

Training and skills 
development pro-
grammes developed 
and implemented

Training and skills de-
velopment programme 
implemented for 

and military veterans

Training and skills 
development programme 
implemented for Govern-

Sustainability Communities 
Support Programme and 

-
munity members and

through the Sustainable 
Communities Support 

Training Programmes in 

departments implemented. 

trained. Impact Assess-
ment Tool developed; 
booklet for frequently 

developed and distributed 
to provinces.
Annexure 6.

Training for Military Vet-

as the Military Veterans 
organisations failed to 
submit a database of mili-

of Section B of the Military 
Veterans Programme 
Meeting; Minutes of Febru-

not achieved as CETA 
accreditation for NHBCC 

-

year.
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  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Support professional 

the sector

Sector professional de-
velopment programme  
implemented

Implement training pro-
gramme for emerging 
contracters.

Sector professional 
developmental pro-
grammes developed 
and implemented, 
aimed at the profes-
sionalisation of the 
sector

Not Achieved 

   from 28 to 30 January
   2011.

   the 2011 academic year  
   has been facilitated.

   received have been pro- 
   cessed for payment.

   higher learning to moni- 
   tor the performance of

   ciaries and support them  
   have been conducted.

   the senior management  
   teams of Provincial Hu- 
   man Settlements
   Departments on the
   placement of students
   have been held

The programmeme has 
been marketed during the 

-
perors Palace and during 

Inputs on the draft 
scholarship policy have 
been received from eight 

be consolidated and the 

all provinces have been 
consulted.

Target has been 
deferred pending 

Departmental Turnover 
Strategy.

The programme could 
not market the pro-
grammer through Cell 
C Career Expo Road 

shortly.

The programme could 
not market the pro-
grammer through Cell 
C Career Expo Road 

shortly.
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   Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Develop sector institu-
tional capability Institutional Capabil-

ity Development 
Programme developed 
and  implemented 

Implement and 

for Institutional Ca-
pability Development 
Programme

Institutional Capability 
Development Programme 

maintained through the 

Provided hands-on sup-
port during the develop-
ment of Capacity-Devel-
opment Business Plans 
by the Northern Cape and 

Quarterly progress reports 
on the implementation of 
Capacity Development 

evaluated and a report 
compiled for feedback and 
support.

Capacity Development 

for provinces and housing 
institutions to share best 
practices and challenges.

-

developed and approved.

The recruitment of Cuban 
technical advisors by 
Mpumalanga Province 

References for the recruit-

-
tee sessions of the South 
Africa Cuba Technical 
Support Programme 

for participating provinces 
to share best practices 
and challenges on the 
implementation of the 
programme.

develop credible provincial 
plans for the SACTSP 
programme.

Quarterly progress reports 
on the implementation of 
the SACTSP by provinces 

-
port compiled for feedback 
and support.

National Capacity 
development strategy 

to determine the 
capabilities of pro-
vincial departments 
and the development 
capacity development 

in abeyance pending 

National Department’s 
Turn-around Strategy.

The delay in the re-
-

rican Cuban Technical 
Support programme 
bilateral agreement 
delays the recruitment 
of Cuban Technical 

Cape Provincial 
department of Human 
Settlements.
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  Programme: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Provide facilitative and 
management support 
to provinces and 
munici-
palities and promote 
inter-sectoral collabo-
ration for the achieve-
ment of sustainable 
human settlements 

priority projects

Reports on national 
priority projects by
project steering 
committee meetings 
compiled and submit-
ted for noting and 
further discussion if 
required

Facilitate interac-

sector departments, 
parastatals, private 
sector and other 
relevant stakeholders 
in respect of national 
priority projects

relevant sector departments, 
parastatals, private sector and 
other relevant stakeholders 
in respect of national priority 
projects - facilitated 18 project 
steering committee meetings 
instead of 28 meetings.

Not all planned 
meetings could not 
be facilitated due to a 
staff shortage

Reports on technical 
meetings compiled 
and submitted for 
noting and further 
discussion if required

Provide technical 
and project manage-
ment support to 
the provinces and 

priority projects are 
located

Provided technical and project 
management support to the 
provinces and municipalities 

-
cated - facilitated 14 technical 
task team meetings instead of 
28 meetings

Not all planned 
meetings could not 
be facilitated due to a 
staff shortage

Progress reports of 

compiledand submit-
ted for noting and 
further discussion if 
required

Track progress on 

compiledand submit-
ted for noting and 
further discussion if 
required

projects,compiled and submit-
ted reports for noting and 
further discussion if required 
- compiled 20 instead of 22 
reports

not submitted by pro-
vinces despite several 
requests

Policies, strategies, 
norms and standards 
for provision of sanita-
tion developed

Revised basic house-
hold sanitation policy

Final draft ready for 
approval

Final draft not ready for ap-
proval. Developed discussion 
document and preliminary 

Delays in the procure-
ment of the profes-
sional service provider. 
The professional serv-

-
pointed in September 
2010 to support the 

Roll out of Free Basic 
Sanitation Strategy

30% of municipalities Roll-out of Free Basic Serv-
ices to 63% of municipalities need for Free Basic 

Services at municipal 

resources to speed up 
the process

Revision of informal 
settlement strategy

A strategy document 
approved and rolled 
out to municipalities;                                                                                                         

30 unproclaimed
settlements provided 

sanitation.

approved and rolled out removed from the 
Business Plan of the 

funding resources

Municipalities and 
sector departments 
supported in planning 
and implementation
of sanitation

Number of households 

sanitation services 

7 418 households 
served through ACIP

11 000 households 
served through RHIP

8 426 Served through Acceler-
ated Community Infrastruc-
ture Programme and 5 580 
households served through 
Rural Household Infrastruc-
ture Programme

Number of municipali-
ties implementing rural 
household sanitation 
programme

26 Municipalities 25 Municipalities -

District Municipal-
ity and not a local 
Municipality.
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     Program: Housing Planning and Delivery Support 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Skills development and 
capacity building co-
ordinated in the sanita-
tion sector

-
ment of sanitation 

-

completed

-
tion never took place 

presented by Minister 
of Higher Education 
and Training in June 

not committed for the 

-

transferred from one 
SETA to another. The 

No of jobs created 
through sanitation re-
lated projects

200 Sustainable jobs 
created

275 Sustainable jobs 
created

Health and Hygiene 
Activity Plans developed Activity Plans deve-

80% of the provinces 

Plans

100% of the provinces 

Activity Plans
developed Health and 
Hygiene Activity Plans

Programmes to improve 
citizens and stakeholders 

-
ing and prioritasation of 
sanitation implemented.

Percentage of commu-
nities and stakeholders 

-
ness programme.

20% of communities 
and stakeholders 

raising programmes.

20% of communities and 
stakeholders reached 

programmes.

Desktop analysis to 
establish baseline infor-
mation to inform targeted 
advocacy programs 
conducted

Baseline analysis 
conducted in the 9 
provinces to inform 
targeted advocacy 
interventions

Baseline analysis con-
ducted in 3 provinces 
to inform targeted 
advocacy interven-
tions

Desktop analysis con-
ducted in Limpopo and 
Eastern Cape on Free 
Basic Services

Indicator removed 
from the APP during 
the third quarter

Sector performance 
monitored and regulated 

Number of sector 
performance reports 
submitted

Annual performance 
report consolidated

Annual performance 
report consolidated

Evaluation of the impact 
of sanitation programmes 
conducted

Evaluation report 
completed

Evaluate the pro-
gramme

Evaluation of the pro-
gramme in process

Professional service 
-

pointed on July 27, 
2010 and contract 
ends July 2011

Regulate compliance 
to sanitation norms and 
standards

Number of munici-
palities complying to 
sanitation norms and 
standards

Identify and intervene 
in 20 municipalities

Identifying and intervene 
in 20 municipalities not 
achieved

this function vacated 
the post

Support municipalities 
to identify and register 
sanitation projects in the 

projects
25 Projects registered A process to register  

projects through RHIP 
has started

Supporting SMMEs to 
register cooperatives 

No of SMMEs sup-
ported and registered

200
SMMEs to DTI database 

in municipal  database
Participating in global 
forums and support 
sanitation programme in 
Africa

policies and funding on 
global arena

Provide support: Support provided to 
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Reasons for major variances

2.2.4  Programme 4: Housing Development Finance
Purpose

Measurable objective

    income households.

 the Division of Revenue Act, so that provinces are able to use all transferred funds.

Service delivery objectives and indicators
Recent outputs

staff members receiving special training.

Departmental monthly reports, interim Financial Statements and Annual Financial Statements for the prior 

-

-
-
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R3 500 and R15 000 per month. This projected is intended to be piloted at Botleng Development Project 
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Service-delivery achievements

     Programme: Housing Development Finance 

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

Manage Financial Sup-
port and Internal Control

Approved Annual 
Financial Statement

Submission of Ap-
proved Interim and 
Annual Financial 
Statements

-
cial Statements and An-
nual Financial Statement 

Not applicable

To manage the Provision 
of Supply Chain Manage-
ment Services

Departmental reports 
on Logistics, Procure-
ment and Transport 
Services compiled and 
submitted to Manage-
ment

Departmental reports 
on Logistics, Procure-
ment and Transport 
Services compiled 
and submitted to 
Management

Departmental reports on 
Logistics, Procurement 
and Transport Services 

-
mitted to Management.

Not applicable

Provide Debtors System 
support to provinces

Number of reports 
on System Support 
provided

Management reports 
on Debtor System 
Support provided

-
ports on System Support 
provided; submitted to 
Management

Not applicable

Provide Budget Manage-
ment Services

Approved Budget 2010 Budget  
approved approved and published

Not applicable

Provide Grant Manage-
ment services

% of funds transferred 
to provinces

100% of funds trans-
ferred to provinces

Achieved; 100% of 
funds have been trans-
ferred to provinces

Not applicable

Provide secretariat 

Disclosure in terms of 
the Act

Number of reports on 
secretariat functions 

-
semination of informa-
tion to provincial and 
municipalities in terms 

secretariat functions 

dissemination of infor-
mation to provincial 
and municipalities in 
terms of HLAMDA 

No report produced on 
secretariat functions 

-
semination of informa-
tion to provincial and 
municipalities in terms of 

Non-appointment of 

of Disclosure; and 
non-coordination and 
dissemination of infor-
mation to provinces 
and municipalities in 

Analysis of information 

to detect lending pat-
tern and practices on 
home loans conducted

Analysis of informa-

institutions to detect 
lending pattern and 
practices on home 
loans conducted

produced on analysis of 

institutions to detect 
lending pattern and 
practices on home loans 
conducted

Not applicable

Annual report on the 
performance and the 

institutions compiled 
and submitted to Man-
agement

Annual report on the 
performance and the 

institutions compiled 
and submitted to 
Management

Annual report on the per-
formance and the ratings 

compiled and submitted 
to Management

Not applicable

Promote investments for 
human settlements and 
infrastructural develop-
ment

Number of reports on 
the implementation of 

-

strategy

implementation of the 

strategy

A report on the  draft 
ODA strategy developed

Finalisation of the 
ODA strategy could 
not be achieved since 

approval.
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     Programme: Housing Development Finance

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual 

A report on the number 
of houses delivered 
through pension-
backed fund

number of houses 
delivered through 
pension-backed fund

A report on the number 
of houses delivered 
through pension-backed 
fund

Not applicable

Facilitate and monitor 
investments in Human
Settlements

Number reports on 

and/or stakeholders on 
funding sources

and/or stakeholders 
on funding sources

-
cial institutions and/or 
stakeholders on funding 
sources

Not application

Number of reports 
on Employer As-

facilitated

Employer Assisted 
-

tated

-
ployer Assisted Housing 

Not applicable

Facilitate increased sup-
ply of affordable housing 

A report on the 
progress of the guaran-
tee fund

the progress of the 
guarantee
fund

progress of the guar-
antee
fund

Not applicable
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Reasons for major variances

-
sure in terms of provisions of the Act.

Furthermore, no coordination and dissemination of information to provincial Human Settlements Depart-

submitted for approval and has not yet been approved.

2.2.5  Programme 5: Strategic Relations and Governance
Purpose

-
grated business information to the Department.

Measurable objectives

Provide oversight management of housing institutions by monitoring performance and corporate 

   delivery of mandates.

   by maintaining databases on housing and human settlements and ensuring quality control, measured  
   by the availability of accurate information, data and solutions.

Provide an integrated communication service through public information and marketing, corporate 

Provide governance management by co-ordinating transversal programmes, measured by adequate 
    comprehensive risk management, internal auditing, programme alignment and reporting.

Service delivery objectives and indicators
Recent outputs

correctness or accuracy of sub-programme actual achievements, against approved targets during each 
performance-reporting period. These performance reports also covered issues requiring urgent and on-
going attention as far as performance of the Department is concerned.
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Plans for the period 2010 to 2013.

information sessions.

branches in incorporating Outcome 8 into the plans.

-

-
mental planning and performance-monitoring processes.

The programme, through the Sub-Programme Information Management Services ensured that systems are 
made available to the user community, and the data is used to develop information products to support hu-

The sub-programme maintained and managed the operational and control-systems environment and pro-
vided assistance to the user community to enable them to effectively administer housing/human settlements  
programmes. Provincial assistance focused on planning and budgeting, contract management, project 

-
by provincial representatives endorsed change request implemented in the various systems releases. 

-
mal Settlements Atlas is also being used to support the achievement of Outcome 8. The national housing-

In order to improve the alignment and accuracy of housing-delivery statistics and project information, the 

-
ing Journal.
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for information in terms of the Act. 

The programme, through the Communication Services sub-programme continued to be enhanced through 
the implementation of innovative strategies and improved sector partnerships. The programme has also put 
a lot of effort into conceptualising high-visibility external marketing and branding campaigns aimed at using 
a variety of multimedia platforms and exhibitions. 

Government in relation to the Human Settlements development programmes.

Opportunities Created by Human Settlements, and Sanitation Programme publications.

holders.

appointed professionals. The look and feel has been maintained by ensuring that all updates are properly 
implemented.

-

Launch, Tau Village, MinMEC and Marabastad in Kroonstad Operation Hlasela Launch; SHRA inauguration; 

interested in State-provided housing via interactive displays of housing products, on-site ability to verify 

played a crucial role in the Ministerial and Departmental events and thereby became instrumental in coordi-
nating branding and marketing during the Impala Platinum Project Launch and handover, SAHF Exhibition 

-
tivism Campaign, Thornhill Eastern Cape Housing Launch, KTC Nyanga Housing Handover, Monitoring 
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-

Drommedaris Social Housing Project Launch; PHP Diepsloot Build.

The programme developed and implemented the advertisement campaign in City Press and Sunday Times, 

second  quarter.

and effectiveness of projects. Thus, the Housing Institutions are formally engaged to participate at events 
and in the programme sources sponsorship.

The achievements stated in this Report aimed to reach and promote internal and external audiences’  

Targets not achieved

The changed focus in communication from housing to human settlements necessitated the need to 
     re-focus messages to include issues like sanitation.

The re-branding of the Department has had cost implications across the board.

The main achievement of the programme through the Housing Entities Governance and Oversight dur-

supply of social-housing stock through the social-housing investment programme. The sub-programme pro-

Regulator.

-

programme facilitated the transfer of 100 percent of the budget appropriation of institutions. 

The vacant positions responsible for policy advocacy and risk-management oversight of institutions have 
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The outcomes-based approach adopted by Cabinet Lekgotla in January 2010 emphasises the role of the 

Housing Development; National Bulk Infrastructure Programme and Increasing the Supply of Affordable  
Housing Finance.This informs the strategic direction of the Department until 2014 and implies realignment 
of resources to achieve the targets of each of the above-mentioned programmes.The Department is recog-

The outcomes-based approach continued to be the core focus area for the programme’s Inter-Departmen-
tal and Inter-sphere functions. The outcomes-based approach gave impetus to the Department’s coordina-
ting role to ensure a convergence of Government mandates, for integrated human settlements delivery. It 

proposed implementation forums for each outcome. It is important to mention that the vertical and horizon-
tal alignment across sectors and Government spheres is the essence of the outcomes-based approach. 
The Department undertook a comprehensive engagement for the development of Delivery Agreements by  
constituting a Task Team made of representatives from provinces, metropolitan municipalities, and the  
national Department and its institutions. 

Settlements and Basic Services Task Team, MinMEC, Technical MinMEC, and a Joint Human Settlements 

informal settlements and to creating affordable rental units, to accrediting municipalities and to rolling out 

services. The Department of Human Settlements agrees to support the Department of Cooperative Gover-

settlements development. 

-

Forum. In order to improve on collaboration and co-ordination, the Department of Human Settlements and 
the Department of Co-operative Governance jointly headed an initiative to establish a high-level Sustainable 
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presented and approved by MinMEC. A report on progress since the Special Human Settlements Presi-

September 2010. 

inter-sphere co-ordination, the programme continued to support accreditation of priori-

-

municipalities and to further facilitate the post-accreditation delegation process for accredited municipalities. 

In order to provide a platform for sharing best practices on managing accredited municipalities and for 
implementing the programme, the Department coordinated and facilitated a National Accreditation Task 

provinces and the prioritised municipalities. In order to provide funding certainty to accredited municipali-

-
ance in respect of the Housing Grant appropriated to each department. 

The continued support to the local-government turnaround strategy led by the Department of corporative 

accreditation process of supporting accreditation priority municipalities. This is achieved and evidenced in 
the accreditation assessments reports. 

the last quarter as planned. The objectives and expected outcomes envisaged in this strategic engagements 

of projects that represent the performance reported to date against Outcome 8 targets. Also to identify risks 
and challenges in meeting the Outcome 8 targets. Project lists, listing all projects covered by the Business 

-

International Relations,
reduced to only our very crucial international commitments. As a result, all study and exposure visits have 



111

area.

Netherlands’ Ministry of Housing and Spatial 

the last Annual Oversight Committee Meeting held in November 2009. Implementation of the agreement  

-

in achieving the desired outputs for rental housing under the Delivery Agreement for Outcome 8. The Dutch 
-

mentation of the 2010 plan and developed a draft Annual Implementation Plan for 2011.

The Department continued to service its existing international commitments, such as the Cities Alliance, 
African Ministers Conference on Housing and 

Urban Development (AMCHUD). -

-

The programme facilitated continued implementation of the Danida

meeting in August 2010 to oversee the implementation of the pilot project. The Danida Steering Commit-
tee is chaired by the Chief of Operations and is comprised of representatives from the Danish Embassy, 

Settlements. The remaining donor funds for implementation of the project have been requested and have 
been transferred into the RDP. 

The Department of Human Settlements participated in preparations of South Africa’s report on the status 
Millennium Development Goals (MDGs), 

opportunity to strengthen collective efforts and partnerships for the push to 2015. 

Furthermore, the Department of Human Settlements participated in the Executive Committee of the  
Cities Alliance

Co-operation agenda. The Exco met for a second time at the end of October to conclude preparation for the 
Cities Alliance Annual Consultative Group meeting in Mexico in November 2010. The Department further 
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The Department of Human Settlements undertook a Technical Visit to Angola from 25 to 30 August 2010 

information on experiences and challenges and undertook several site visits to bring home the scale of the 
human settlement challenge in Luanda. 

President Dos Santos in December 2010. 

Lastly, the Department of Human Settlements, through the programme, has undertaken a process to re-
Cuba on Employment of Cuban Technical Advisors in relevant Provincial 

-
date from housing to human settlements and the recruitment of sanitation engineers under the national 

requirement the President has signed the Presidential Minute authorising the Minister to sign the Exchange 

amendment process. 
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Service Delivery Achievements

   Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance
   Sub programme: Strategic Management

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual

Management of 
the development of 
Departmental Strategic 
and Performance 
Plans

Approved Departmental 
Strategic and Perfor-
mance Plans

Approved Depart-
mental Strategic and 
Performance Plans

Departmental Strategic 
and Performance Plans 

Provide Strategic 
Management support 
to transversal functions 
of the Department

Number of Departmental 
Strategy Management 
Compliance reports

Strategy Management 
Compliance reports

Four Departmental 
Strategy Management 

produced and submitted
Monitor the implemen-
tation of Departmental 
Strategic and Perfor-
mance plans

Approved Departmental 
Annual Performance
Report

Number of Departmental 
Quarterly Performance 
and Evaluation Reports

Approved Departmen-
tal Annual Perfor-
mance  Report

Quarterly Perfor-
mance Reports

The Departmental Annual 
Performance Report 

Quarterly Performance 

ted and submitted to the 

Management of the 
implementation of 
Departmental Perfor-
mance Plans

Number of Departmental 
Performance Evaluation 
Reports

Performance Evalua-
tion Reports

Performance Evaluation 

and submitted to the

Provide data and
information

Number of reports on 
Data and Business 
Information

the availability of data 
-

tion for reporting

4 Reports on the avail-

available

No Variances

Number of Information 
Products available products available 

Atlases; MapServer; 

Handbook; Human 
Settlement Journal; 
Scoreboard; Deeds/Ti-
tle Transfers Matching 
Report; Fact Sheets/

-

Fact Sheets/ Information 
Reports; Human Settle-
ment Journal; Human 

-
tion Handbook.

The Report on Hous-
ing Cooperatives in 

-
piled in response to 
a request by the Par-
liamentary Research 

available - The Spatial 

and made available 
at the request of the 
Ministerial Advisor; no 
additional resources 
utilised.

Services available -

Online Services; PAIA 

No variance
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   Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance
   Sub programme: Integrated Business Solutions

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

Provide systems that 
support sector-busi-
ness processes

% of systems provided 
for budgeting and 
planning

100% of systems pro-
vided for budgeting and 
planning

  analyses of needs

  development and im- 
  plementation of
  systems 

  support  and training
  provided on systems 

100% of systems 
provided for claims and 
payments

  analysis of needs

  development and im- 
  plementation of
  systems 

  support and training
  provided on systems

No variances

% of systems provided 
for project manage-
ment

100% of systems 
provided for project 
management

  analysis of needs

  development and im 
  plementation of
  systems 

  support  and training
  provided on systems 

100% of systems 
provided for project 
management

  analysis of needs

  development and im- 
  plementation of
  systems 

  support and training
  provided on systems 

No variances

% of systems provided 
for contract
management

100% of systems 
provided for contract 
management

  analysis of needs

  development and im 
  plementation of
  systems 

  support  and training
  provided on systems 

100% of systems 
provided for contract 
management

analysis of needs

development and imple-
mentation of systems 

support  and training 
provided on systems 

No variance

% of systems provided 

administration

100% of systems 

administration

analysis of need 

development and imple-
mentation of systems 

100% of systems 

administration

analysis of need

development and imple-
mentation of systems 

No variance
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   Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance
   Sub programme: Integrated Business Solutions

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

  support  and training
  provided on systems

  support and training
  provided on systems

% of systems provided 
for claims and pay-
ments

100% of systems 
provided for claims and 
payments

  analysis of needs

  development and im- 
  plementation of
  systems 

  support  and training
  provided on systems 

100% of systems 
provided for claims and 
payments.

   analysis of need

   development and im 
   plementation of
   systems 

   support and training
   provided on systems. 

No variances
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   Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance 
   Sub programme: Communication

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator Actual performance against target Reason for variance
Target Actual

Provide corporate 
communication
services

Approved corporate 
communication stra-
tegy and plan

Develop, implement 

corporate communica-
tion strategy and plan

Developed, Imple-
mented and Corporate 
Communication strategy 
and plan

Human Settlements 
Communiqué and 
Events Management 

achieved due to:

canned the internal 

to appoint a panel 
of events manage-
ment, marketing and 
communication service 
providers. MINTOP 
of 2011 has again re-
solved that the internal 

to implement that is 

Provide media 
services

Approved media ser-
vices strategy and plan

Develop, implement, 

media services strategy 
and plan

Developed, Implement-
ed and Managed Media 
strategy and plan

Human Settlements 
Communication Forum 
could not be achieved 

an appropriate slot that 
-

meetings
Provide public informa-
tion and marketing 
services

Approved marketing 
and Public Information 
and Marketing Strategy 
and Plan

Develop, implement, 

Public Information 
Strategy and Plan

Developed, imple-
mented and managed 
Public Information and 
Marketing Strategy and 
Plan

The development, 
implementation and 
management of the 
Public Information and 
Marketing Strategy is 
evidenced as stated in 
activities reported and 

reports submitted

Due to on-going delays 
in approval processes 
some of the submis-
sions and activities 

-
mented
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  Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance
  Sub programme: Transformation

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual  

Coordinate and ma-
nage Sector Transfor-
mation Programme

Sector Transformation 
Programme coordi-
nated and managed 

Sector Transforma-
tion Programme 
coordinated and 
managed

Coordinate and 
manage Organisa-
tional Transformation 
Programmes

Organisational Trans-
formation Programmes 
coordinated and 
managed

Organisational
Transformation 
Programmes coordi-
nated and managed

Organisational Transforma-
tion Programmes partially 
coordinated and managed

Some Organisational 
Transformation Pro-
gramme strategies and 
policies are pending 
approval

 Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance 
 Sub programme: Entities governance oversight

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual

Monitor performance 
and corporate plan-
ning of housing enti-
ties against delivery 
mandates

Number of submissions 
recommending approval 
of Entities Strategic 
Plans submitted to the 
Minister

-
sions recommending 
approval of Entities 
Strategic Plans and 
Budgets submitted to 
Minister

recommending approval 
of Entities Strategic Plans 
and Budgets submitted to 
Minister

No variance

Number of Performance 
Monitoring Reports Performance Monitor-

ing Reports produced 
Performance Monitoring 
Reports produced

No variance

Midyear Performance 
Monitoring Report 

-
formance Monitoring 
Report produced

-
ance Monitoring Report
produced

No variance

Number of Annual 
Performance Monitoring 
Reports produced 

-
formance Monitoring 
Report produced 

-
ance Monitoring Report 
produced

No variance

Percentage of transfer of 
funds request evaluated 
and approved

100 % of funds re-
quested evaluated 

100 % of funds requested 
evaluated

No variance

reports on reported in-
formation by institutions 
produced

-

institutions produced 
and submitted to DG 
for noting and/or action 

-
tion visits to housing 
institutions produced

Due to capacity con-
straints, the planned 
visit to the remain-
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 Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance 
 Sub programme: Entities governance oversight

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual

Number of entities es-
tablished or dissolved 

-
lished

The Social Housing 
Regulatory Authority 

The Social Housing 

as a challenge is being 

placement of the last 
remaining staff member

Provide policy ad-
vocacy, governance 
oversight and com-
pliance monitoring 

Number of submissions 
recommending approval 
of shareholder contracts 

Minister

contracts submitted to 
Minister for approval 
and signature 

contracts submitted to 
Minister for approval

Shareholder compact 

SHF as the institution is 
in the process of closure

The shareholder 
compact could not be 

Shareholders compact 

-
tution required further 
discussions regarding 
the contents of the 
document

Reminder letters on 

and Treasury Regula-
tions by housing Entities 

Reminder letters 
issued

Reminder letters for the 
submission of quarterly 
reports and strategic 

sent to Entities

No variance

Report on the evalua-
tion of the performance 
Boards of Entities

-
ation Report produced  
and submitted to DG 
and Minister

 The performance 

reported on the evalua-
tion of the Boards during 
the last quarter of the 

has therefore shifted to 

Number of reports on 
housing institutions gov-
ernance status produced

-
hensive reports on 
governance of housing 
entities developed

reports on governance 
of housing entities 
developed

No variance

Provide secretarial 
function to the NHBRC 
Council Advisory  
Committee

Provide secretarial 
function to NHBRC 
Council Advisory Com-
mittee meetings

Secretarial function 
provided to 100% of 
NHBRC Council Advisory 
Committee meetings 
convened

No variance
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 Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance 
 Sub programme: Entities governance oversight

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual

Number of analysis 
reports on risk manage-
ment by Housing Entities 
produced

on risk management 
by Housing Entities 
produced  and submit-
ted to DG for noting 

necessary

on risk management 
by Housing Entities 
produced  and submitted 
to DG for noting and/or 

No variance

Number of reports on the 
contribution of
Housing Entities to Gov-
ernment priority areas 
produced

contribution of Housing 
Entities to Government 
priority areas produced 
and submitted to DG 
for noting and/or action 

contribution of Housing 
Entities to Government 
priority areas produced 
and submitted to DG 
for noting and/or action 

No variance
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   Programme: Strategic Relations and Governance 
   Sub programme: IGR and IR

Strategic objective Measure / Indicator
Actual performance against target

Reason for variance
Target Actual

Co-ordinate the con-
vergence of mandates 
in support of sustain-
able human settlement 
development through 
interdepartmental co-
operation

Developed and 
implemented Coordi-
nation and Alignment 

settlements develop-
ment

40% of the Macro 
Coordination and 

implemented

The coordination and 

implemented

Not applicable

Facilitate and enhance 
relations across 
spheres of Government 
for the development 
of sustainable human 
settlements

Approved systems and 
procedures to enhance 
vertical integration 
across spheres of 
Government

Inter-sphere systems 
and procedures 

-
mented

Inter-sphere systems 
and procedures 

-
mented

Not applicable

Manage Departmental  
participation in forums 
and activities related 
to the implementation 
of the Government’s 
Programme of Action 

Government strategic 
priorities

prescripts for planning 
and monitoring under 
the POA and other 
strategic priorities 

100% Compliance 

planning and monitor-
ing under the POA and 
other strategic priorities 

100% Compliance 

planning and monitor-
ing under the POA 
and other strategic 
priorities

Not applicable

-
velopment assistance, 
international partner-
ships and bilateral 
relations to support 
the development of 
sustainable human 
settlements

Implemented Interna-
tional Relations Frame-

for the Department of 
Human Settlements

Programme of Interna-
tional Relations is devel-
oped and implemented

Programme of 
International Relations 

implemented

Not applicable

Negotiate and rep-
resent South Africa’s 
position in international 
multilateral and African 
fora related to Human 
Settlements,  and to 
monitor and manage 
the implementation 
of agreements/com-
mitments related to 
Human Settlements

South African position 
on human settlements 
articulated in the 
multilateral and African 
Human Settlements For 
a Report on the status 
of implementation of 
international multilateral 
and African commit-
ments

Multilateral and African 
Human Settlements 
Agenda

Multilateral and African 
Human Settlements 
Agenda submitted

Not applicable
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Members and Attendance:
The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and meets 4 times per annum as per its 

          Number of Meetings
Name of Member                          Scheduled Attended
Ms M Nyathi - Chairperson *3 3

*1 0
*4 4

Ms T Moja 5 5
*4 4
5 5

Mr K Buthelezi - Chairperson 5 5
* The number of audit committee meetings scheduled before a member’s contract expired/ resigned from the Audit  
   Committee. 

Audit Committee Responsibility

the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate 
formal terms of reference as outlined in its Audit Committee Charter and has discharged its responsibilities 
as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control 

there is room for improvement to enhance the effectiveness of the control systems. 

-

of implementing corrective actions and enhancement to the control systems are being addressed by the 
Department.

progress by management in implementing the plan to enable the Audit Committee to evaluate the progress 
made.

The quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the 
Division of Revenue Act. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has: 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Internal audit 
-

fectively and also strives to address the risks pertinent to the department in its audits. 

Auditor-General South Africa

issues.

Mr. Khulekani Buthelezi 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31 May 2011

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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1.1 Strategic overview 

are:

Table 1: Outcome 8 Outputs
Output Description Target
Output 1

  opportunities

Output 2 Access to basic services Water: from 92% to 100%
Sanitation: from 69% to 100%
Refuse removal: from 64% to 75%
Electricity: from 81% to 92%

Output 3

State in the national sphere of 
government for purposes of housing 
and human settlements develop-
ment

6 250 hectares

Output 4 Improved property market 600 000 housing opportunities

of Cooperative Government, be moved to Human Settlements. Cabinet further directed that this grant be 

of bulk services.

Due to underperformance by some provinces Section 20 of the Division of Revenue Act had to be invoked. 
In this regard MinMEC resolved that funds be stopped and re-allocated from under-performing provinces 
to provinces demonstrating ability to spend. This had to be done in the interest of service delivery in the 
country, to avoid loss of funds by the sector and to ensure that outputs under Outcome 8 are achieved.

helped the Department achieve the much needed savings on the operational budget. As a result approval 

    Gauteng to address some of the pressing needs of the citizenry.
R34 million of the savings be used as a transfer payment to Servcon. This helped in reducing that entity’s 

    debts and thus moved it closer to its closure.

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the Republic of South Africa

for the year ended 31 March 2011
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need to align the Department to the expanded human settlements mandate and the achievement of the 
Outcome 8 objectives. It is therefore aimed at ensuring that the Department is able to respond effectively to 

department is undertaking a turnaround strategy process. As a result some vacant positions could not be 

-

1 and 2 accreditation and to facilitate and manage the post accreditation process of the six accredited Met-

1.2 Spending trends
Table 2: Expenditure per programme as at 31 March 2011

Programmes Expenditure
R`000

Total Allocation
R`000

Variance
R`000

% Spent

1. Administration 188 577 221 188 32 611 85.3%

2. Housing Policy, Research and  
    Monitoring

32 636 43 871 11 235 74.4%

3. Housing Planning and Delivery
    Support

158 375 207 196 48 821 76.4%

4. Housing Development Finance 15 624 981 15 674 395 49 414 99.7%
5. Strategic Relations and Gover- 
    nance

87 384 145 109 57 725 60.2%

    Total 16 091 953 16 291 759 199 806 98.8%

The Department’s total expenditure for the period amounted to R16 billion representing 99 percent of the 

to programme. 

1.2.1 Programme 1

Vacant positions and related costs.
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1.2.2 Programme 2

1.2.3 Programme 3
Vacant positions and related costs

    funding.

1.2.4 Programme 4
Vacant positions and related costs.

once its liabilities have been settled.

1.2.5 Programme 5
Vacant positions and related costs.

    good results.  The Department later in the year managed to have an Interim measure put in place. This  
    resulted in a lack of support to provinces on the Housing Subsidy System and thus adversely affected  

1.3  Virements
1.3.1 The following virements were part of the adjustment estimate:

Table 3: Details of virements which were part of the adjustment estimate
Originating Pro-

gramme
Receiving

Programme
Amount
R’000

Reason Approved by

Programme 2 Programme 1 650 Funding for service 
provider to develop a 
turnaround strategy for 
the Department

National Treasury
Programme 3 1 300
Programme 4 850
Programme 5 200

Programme 2 Programme 1 200 Funding of the appoint-
ment of a panel of advi-
sor for the Minister

National Treasury
Programme 3 250
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Originating Pro-
gramme

Receiving
Programme

Amount
R’000

Reason Approved by

Programme 3 Programme 1 8 000 Funding for additional National Treasury
Programme 5 1 000

Programme 5 Programme 1 9 800 Funding compensation 
in respect of the staff 
absorbed from
Thubelisha Homes and 
Servcon

National Treasury

Programme 5 Programme 4 15 000 -
cation of Thokoza Hostel

National Treasury

Total 37 250

1.3.2 The following virements were approved after the adjustment estimate:
Table 4: Details of virements after adjustment estimate

Originating Pro-
gramme

Receiving
Programme

Amount
R’000

Reason Approved by

Programme 2 Programme 1 3 500 To fund expanded man-
date of the Investigation Programme 3 6 000

Programme 4 4 400
Programme 5 9 000

Programme 1 Programme 5 249 Funding for service 
provider to develop a 
turnaround strategy for 
the Department

Programme 3 2 200

Programme 1 Programme 4 12 000 Servcon to fund part of 
its closure costs

National Treasury
Programme 3 4 000
Programme 5 6 000

Programme 1 Programme 4 1 460 Servcon to fund part of 
its closure costs

National Treasury
Programme 2 315
Programme 3 5 825

Total 54 949
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2.  SERVICES RENDERED BY THE DEPARTMENT
The mandate of the National Department of Human Settlements is that of co-ordinating, communicating, 
and monitoring the implementation of policy. This includes:

The setting of appropriate norms and standards for housing development;
Implementation support,  monitoring and evaluation;
Research on human settlements related matters;

Assessment and analysis of appropriate information related to key housing indicators necessary for 
    informed decision-making.

The Department does not render any direct services to the public.

2.1 Tariff policy
As previously indicated the Department does not render any direct services to the public and therefore does 
not have any tariff policy. 

2.2 Free services

planned for the foreseeable future.

2.3 Inventories
Inventories on hand at year-end are disclosed on the Financial Statements disclosure notes.

3.  CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS

4. UTILISATION OF DONOR FUNDS

envisaged.

This necessitated a complete re-planning and re-design of the entire project over a period of some eighteen 
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-

Settlements as implementing agent for the project.

-

-
ation of the pilot project. 

5. TRADING ENTITIES AND PUBLIC ENTITIES

5.1  South  African Housing Fund

to prescripts set out in the Housing Code. In addition, funds transferred to the South African Housing Fund 

Housing MinMEC.

The legislative process to facilitate the disestablishment of not only the South African Housing Fund but also 

5.2 Servcon 

-

In 2006 the shareholders represented by the Banking Council and the Department of Human Settlements 

provinces through a normalisation and regularisation programme.

5.3 Social Housing Foundation
-

and institutional support to the sector. In addition, the foundation has been doing monitoring and evaluation 
in the social housing sector.
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The Social Housing Foundation is currently being dissolved.

5.4 National Urban Reconstruction and Housing Agency (NURCHA)

-

-

5.5 National Home Builders Registration Council (NHBRC)
-

provides an exclusive regulatory function in the home-building environment. 

Since its inception, it has been striving to regulate and provide better services to consumers through the 
registration of homebuilders, the enrolment of homes and home inspections. The institution continues to 

focus of the Council. 

5.6 National Housing Finance Corporation (NHFC)

-

and risk manager.

5.7 Thubelisha Homes 

stock for rightsizing the Servcon Housing Solutions portfolio.

5.8 Rural Housing Loan Fund (RHLF)

through retail intermediaries to its target market to be utilised for incremental housing purposes.

5.9 Housing Development Agency

creation of sustainable human settlements.
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-
ernment across all spheres. It also provides project management expertise in human settlement projects 
and facilitates the development of projects through accelerated and innovative project packaging. Part of 
its role is to enhance the capacity of municipalities and provinces to deliver integrated sustainable human 
settlements

5.10  The Social Housing Regulatory Authority (SHRA)

disbursement of institutional investment and capital grants to social housing institutions.

6. ORGANISATIONS TO WHOM TRANSFER PAYMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE

Table 5
Organisation Amount

R million
Remarks

1 Provinces - Integrated    
                   Housing and
                   Human
                   Settlement
                   Development
                 - Housing
                   Disaster Relief
                   Grant

15 041 763

133 800

This is to fund the national and provin-
cial housing programmes.

2 Habitat Foundation 326 Annual contribution to the forum
3 Cities Alliance 358 Annual contribution to the forum

4 Social Housing Foundation                           6 621 

Social Housing Regulatory Authority 186 771

5 Rural Housing Loan Fund 49 500
6 Servcon 34 000

7 Housing Development Agency 69 300
Total 15 522 439

7.  PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 
No public-private partnership as contemplated in terms of the Treasury Regulations is in place..

8.  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
8.1 Internal Audit

services to management and the Audit Committee on matters pertaining to systems of control, risk manage-
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The Audit Committee continuously assesses the performance of the Internal Audit Directorate to determine 

-
-

ted itself to implement agreed action plans.

8.2  Audit Committee 

-

The Committee has unrestricted access to information and personnel of the Department. A 360-degree 
evaluation of the performance of the Committee is done annually to assess its performance and measures 

8.3 Risk management

-

and monitor the process at strategic management and operational levels.

The Committee is composed of executive and non-executive members including a representative from the 

-

The Committee is supported by a Risk Management Directorate. The Committee meet on a quarterly basis 

are also tabled before the Audit Committee. 

the Department. 

8.4 Special Investigations

detection of corrupt activities and to ensure reduction of corruption in the housing sector is achieved. In 
-
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Deterrence of fraud and corruption;

Taking appropriate action against fraudsters and corrupt individuals, e.g. prosecution, disciplinary 
    action etc.;

investigations into allegations of improper conduct in the housing subsidy systems. This resulted in the 

-

houses and blocked and delayed projects. 

-
pearance.

-

As a deterrent measure, the Department intends to publish the outcomes of court cases and details of civil 

9.  DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES/ACTIVITIES TO BE DISCONTINUED

    ment Act and the Division of Revenue Act.
Disestablish the Fund.
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10.  NEW/PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
10.1  Mortgage Default Insurance Programme 

be achieved is 600 000 households. 

realised value from the sale of the house.

The current proposal is for the MDI Programme to be housed in a subsidiary of the National Housing Fi-

R150 million.

-

10.2 Transfer of functions from the Social Housing Foundation
The Social Housing Foundation is currently undergoing a closure process due to a realisation that there is 
a need for rationalisation of housing institutions. It is envisaged that the Technical Services Programme, 

-
ment.

11.  ASSET MANAGEMENT

12.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

13.  PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
The mandate of the Chief Directorate: Strategic Management is to manage the development of Depart-
mental Strategic and Performance Plans and to monitor the implementation of these plans on quarterly and 

The Chief Directorate’s mandate is derived from the Public Finance Management Act, Chapter 2 of the 

-
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-
going monitoring of Departmental Programmemes’ performance and has the prime responsibility of identify-

The Department is committed to a continuing process of improving organisational performance by maintain-
-

ing communication of the results of efforts to the public. 

The Department is required to report on Departmental performance to the Executing Authority in terms 

Executing Authority is responsible for an Annual Report on the activities of the Department, Public Entity or 

The Directorate: Organisational Performance Monitoring analyses and evaluates the performance of vari-
ous programmes/sub-programmes in the Department on an annual and quarterly basis. The purpose of 
such analyses and evaluation is:

To determine the factual correctness or accuracy of Programmes’ actual achievements against targets as 
    detailed in the approved Branches Annual Performance Plans.

    Performance Report are the same as those indicated in the approved Departmental Strategic and Per- 
    formance Plans.

    Reports.

To advise the Director-General on the implementation of the approved Departmental Strategic and Per-

    2010/11.

    and annually. 
Comparative analysis of the approved Departmental Strategic and Performance Plans and the Depart-

    mental Performance Reports.
Comparative analysis of the ENE 2010/11 and the Departmental Annual Performance Report 2010/11.

    mental Performance Reports

The Chief Directorate is therefore required to submit the Departmental Annual Performance Report to the 

The Chief Directorate is further required to submit the Departmental Annual Performance Evaluation Report 
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planned targets and outputs.

14.  SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

Table 6
Reference to previous 

Audit Report and 
SCOPA Resolutions

Subject Resolution Progress

2005/06
Performance Audit 
Report

Approval and al-
location of housing 
subsidies at Provincial 
Housing Departments.

On its Report Number 76, dated 6 
September 2006 the SCOPA resolved 
that:

duly authorised senior management is 

applications.

to data on the Home Affairs database.

subsidies are enforced.

Parliament on disciplinary action ta-

in fraudulent and corrupt activities.

presented for audit purposes and that 
henceforth the archiving system is in 

Housing institutes a comprehensive 
strategy of co-operation and integra-

progress report to Parliament on the 
status of implementation of instruc-
tions from the Minister.

the previous year’s Annual Report.

the previous year’s Annual Report.

The revision of the current National 

Minister.

various cases of fraud. The Special 
-

lar basis to the National Department 

the previous year’s Annual Report.

-
CIAL DEPARTMENTS 

the previous year’s Annual Report.

-

MINISTER
Previous statements by the Minister 

submitted to Parliament.
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Reference to previous 
Audit Report and 

SCOPA Resolutions

Subject Resolution Progress

2008/09
Performance Audit 
Report

Approval of housing 
subsidies to municipal 
employees and the 

cost housing projects 
by certain Provincial 
Housing Departments

On its 27th Report dated 18 Novem-
ber 2008 the SCOPA recommended 
that:

of income and updated payslips;

documentation regarding spouses 
and dependents;

-
plication forms;

disciplinary action against municipal 

and legal action should be considered 
accordingly;

the safe-keeping of completed sub-
sidy application forms;

-
hold income, consideration should 
be given to give those properties to 
qualifying applicants and that forensic 
investigations into corruption and 
collusion are conducted;

retention and penalty clauses to en-

structures had been successfully 

poor and unsatisfactory; and 

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

assisting the provincial departments 

proven. The Special Investigation 

national and provincial departments 

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

in the previous year’s Annual Report.

in the previous year’s Annual Report.
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         15.  PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

Table 7

and matters of non-compliance
Financial year 

arose

Progress made in clearing/resolving the matter

1. Public Finance Management Act

Thubelisha Homes for a loan to the value of R100 

-
partment may not commit a Department to any liability 

Consequently, the Department reported a contingent 
liability as disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

2008/2009 -
ing staff that all agreements or contracts that 
bind the Department must be presented to Legal 
services for scrutiny and assurance to ensure 

national legislation.

terminate the agreement and not to revive it again.

enquiry instituted.

2. Treasury Regulations
-

Treasury Regulation 8.2.3.

2008/2009 Letters has been sent out to service providers 
requesting that invoices be submitted at SCM. 

Request for quotations has been enhanced such 
that it outlines the terms and conditions one of 
them being that the invoices should be submitted 

by the registry.

-
pliers may send the invoices 

Receiving, recording and distribution of invoices to 

one person.

A circular on the importance of timely payments 
has been sent out to all managers.

The turnaround time in respect of invoices distrib-
uted to Responsibility Managers; approval has 
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and matters of non-compliance
Financial year 

arose

Progress made in clearing/resolving the matter

2.  Treasury Regulations
-

Treasury Regulation 8.2.3

2008/2009

ted.

3.  Irregular Expenditure

incurred, as proper procurement processes had been 

2009/2010
year and is currently under consideration.

         16.  EXEMPTIONS AND DEVIATIONS RECEIVED FROM NATIONAL TREASURY
            No exemptions and deviations have been received from the National Treasury.

         17.  OTHER MATERIAL MATTERS
           There are no other material matters to be reported.

         18.  APPROVAL
          The Annual Financial Statements starting from pages 119 to 214 have been approved by the Accoun- 

Director-General
           31 May 2011
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

on pages 142 to 199.

-

-

Auditor-General’s responsibility

General Notice 1111 of 
2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010.  Those standards require that I comply 

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
-

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

-

audit opinion.

Opinion

prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South 

Emphasis of matters

The outcome of these matters cannot currently be determined, and an amount of R4 920 000 has been 
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statements of the national Department of Human Settlements at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2010.

Irregular expenditure

chain management and Public Service Regulations.

Material underspending of the Rural Household Infrastructure grant
12. As disclosed in the appropriation statement, the department has materially underspent the budget on 
programme 4, sub-programme: Rural Household Infrastructure Development to the amount of R38 386 000 
of a total allocation of R100 000 000. As a consequence, the department has not achieved on certain of its 
objectives of providing sanitation services to the rural communities.

Additional matter

Unaudited supplementary schedules 
-

do not express an opinion thereon.

Financial reporting framework

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 

33872 of 15 December 2010

Predetermined objectives
Usefulness of information

Measurability: The targets are not measurable.

        the required performance.

Reliability of information

Validity: The reported performance did not occur and does not pertain to the entity.

        the actual reported targets could not be obtained; therefore 40 % of the reasons for major variances  

        valid.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

-

Expenditure management 

Procurement and contract management

-

Transfer of funds and/or conditional grants

in respect of the Rural Household Infrastructure grant.

INTERNAL CONTROL
General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 

33872 of 15 December 2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of 

Leadership

Financial and performance management

supported and evidenced by reliable information.

Pretoria
31 July 2011
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after virement):

-
ments.

the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after virement):

4.1              Per Programme Final Appro-
priation
R’000

Actual Ex-
penditure

R’000

Variance  
R’000

Variance as a 
% of Final Ap-

propriation
R’000

Administration 221 188 188 577 32 611 14.74%
Housing Policy, Research and Moni- 
toring

43 871 32 636 11 235 25.61%

Housing Planning and Delivery Support 207 196 158 375 48 821 23.56%
Housing Development Finance 15 674 395         15 624 981 49 414 0.32%

Strategic Relations and Governance 145 109 87 384 57 725 39.78%
Total 16 291 759 16 091 953 199 806 1.23%

Administration     
-

Housing Policy, Research and Monitoring    
Savings can be attributed to the cost-cutting measures reducing travel and subsistence and other adminis-

Housing Planning and Delivery Support 
-

vacancies throughout the branch.

Housing Development Finance     
-

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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-
cial year. Another contributing factor is the late approval by National Treasury of R7.6 million virement for 

Strategic Relations and Governance   

not yield good results and subsequently the Department approached SITA as an interim arrangement to 
assist the Department. Another contributing factor is the cost-savings measures that resulted in a reduction 
in foreign visits and the curtailment of media campaigns. Another contributing factor to the underspending 

by the complexity of the human settlement environment and the alignment of the plan to ensure proper 
service delivery.

Final Appro-
priation
R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Variance  
R’000

Variance as a 
% of Final Ap-

propriation
R’000

Current payments
Compensation of employees 240 095 216 455 23 640 9.85%
Goods and services 307 518 222 457 85 061 27.66%
Interest and rent on land 751         173 578 76.96%

- - - -

Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities 15 175 563 15 175 563 - 0.00%
Departmental agencies and accounts 353 793 346 193 7 600 2.15%
Public corporations and private 
enterprises

1 000 684 316 31.60%

Foreign governments and international 
organisations

- - - -

 -  -  - 0.00%
Households 11 082 10 917 165 1.49%
Gifts and donations - - - -

Payments for capital assets
177 940 108 559 69 381 38.99%

Machinery and equipment 21 103 10 383 10 720 50.80%
Heritage asset - - - 0.00%
Specialised military assets - - - 0.00%
Biological assets - - - 0.00%
Land and subsoil assets - - - 0.00%

2 705 370 2 335 86.32%

209 199 10 4.78% 

Total 16 291 759 16 091 953 199 806 1.23%

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Current expenditure

appointing service providers to maintain and render the necessary support to provinces on the HSS. SITA 

support to provinces on the HSS. The bid did not yield good results and subsequently the Department ap-
proached SITA as an interim arrangement to assist the Department. Another contributing factor is the cost-
savings measures that resulted in a reduction in foreign visits and curtailment of media campaigns. Another 

the Department.

Transfers and subsidies

-

currency than anticipated.

-
-

-

Machinery and equipment

for the acquiring of furniture not being utilised.

Software & other intangible assets

from SITA.

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Note 2010/11
R'000

2009/10
R'000

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 16 291 759 13 604 805
Departmental revenue 2 2 826 749
Aid assistance 3 1 798 -

TOTAL REVENUE           16 296 383           13 605 554

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 4 216 455 156 414
Goods and services 5 222 457 254 173
Interest and rent on land 6 173 250
Aid assistance 3 1 798 -
Total current expenditure 440 883 410 837

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 8 15 533 357 12 952 952
Aid assistance 3 - 1 463
Total transfers and subsidies 15 533 357 12 954 415

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible capital assets 9 118 942 5 724

9 370 626
Total expenditure for capital assets 119 312 6 350

7 199 222

TOTAL EXPENDITURE           16 093 751           13 371 824

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  FOR THE YEAR                202 632              233 730

Voted funds 199 806 234 444
    Annual appropriation 199 759 234 739
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 15 2 826 749
Aid assistance 3 -
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR                 202 632                 233 730

STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2011



173

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

ASSETS
Current assets 200 193 234 738
Cash and cash equivalents 10 201 710 229 962
Pre-payments and advances 11 520 58
Receivables 12 4 718

Non-current assets 880 604 880 604
Investments 13 880 604 880 604

TOTAL ASSETS              1 080 797              1 115 342

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 200 049 234 526
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 199 805 234 444
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surren- 
dered to the Revenue Fund

15 49 31

Payables 16 195 51

TOTAL LIABILITIES                 200 049                234 526

NET ASSETS 880 748 880 816

Note 2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve 880 604 880 604
Recoverable revenue 144 212

TOTAL                 880 748                 880 816

STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Capitalisation reserves
   Opening balance 880 604 880 604
   Closing balance                 880 604                 880 604

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 212 281
Transfers: (68) (69)

-68 -69
Closing balance 144 212

TOTAL                 880 748                880 816

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 16 296 382 13 605 554
   Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 16 291 758 13 604 805
   Departmental revenue received 2 2 826 749
   Aid assistance received 3 1 798 -

6 437 3 316
Surrendered to Revenue Fund
Current payments

Transfers and subsidies paid
17                   91 128                234 429

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 9

              (119 312)                 (6 350)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

                       (68)                       (69)

228 010

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 229 962 1 952

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10                 201 710                229 962

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial State-

Division of Revenue Act, Act No 1 of 2010. 

1. Presentation of the Financial Statements
1.1 Basis of preparation

cash is received or paid. 

1.2 Presentation currency

currency of the Department.

1.3 Rounding

statements.

included in the Appropriation Statement.  

2. Revenue
2.1 Appropriated funds

the date the adjustments become effective.

in the Statement of Financial Position.

as a receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Financial Position. 

No accrual is made for amounts receivable from the last receipt date to the end of the reporting period.  

2.3 Direct Exchequer receipts

as a payable in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.4 Direct Exchequer payments
-

2.5 Aid assistance

All in-kind aid assistance is disclosed at fair value on the date of receipt in the annexures to the annual 

The cash payments made during the year relating to aid assistance projects are recognised as expenditure 

The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of funds is recognised as a receivable in the State-
ment of Financial Position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using aid assistance and any unutilised amounts are recognised as 
payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

during the year relating to CARA earmarked projects are recognised as expenditure in the Statement of 

Inappropriately expensed amounts using CARA funds are recognised as payables in the Statement of 
Financial Position. Any unutilised amounts are transferred to retained funds as they are not surrendered to 
the Revenue Fund.

3. Expenditure
3.1 Compensation of employees
3.1.1 Salaries and wages

Financial Performance or position.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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percent of his/her time on the project.  These payments form part of expenditure for capital assets in the 
Statement of Financial Performance.

3.1.2 Social contributions

statements of the employer department.

3.2 Goods and services
Payments made during the year for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the Statement 

goods and services and not as 
rent on land.

3.3 Interest and rent on land
Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance 

under goods and services.

No provision is made for irrecoverable amounts but an estimate is included in the disclosure notes to the 

3.5 Transfers and subsidies

3.6 Unauthorised expenditure

until such time as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsi-

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Performance on the date of approval.

3.7 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

according to the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement.  If the 

off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

3.8 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance.  If the ex-

off as irrecoverable.   

4. Assets
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

held, other short-term, highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.3 Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are carried in the Statement of Financial 
Position at cost.

4.4 Receivables
Receivables included in the Statement of Financial Position arise from cash payments made that are re-

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus any ac-
crued interest.  Amounts that are potentials irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.5 Investments

the investment may be impaired.  Any impairment loss is included in the disclosure notes.  

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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4.6 Loans

that are outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus accrued 
interest.

Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.7 Inventory

no cost, or for nominal consideration, their cost shall be their fair value at the date of acquisition.

4.8 Capital assets
4.8.1 Movable assets
Initial recognition

register at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 are included in the register as at R1.

Subsequent recognition
-

project.

-
formance.

4.8.2 Immovable assets
Initial recognition

unless the fair value for the asset has been reliably estimated.

Subsequent recognition

-
ment that is accountable for the asset.

-
formance.

5. Liabilities
5.1 Payables

are carried at cost in the Statement of Financial Position.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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5.2 Contingent liabilities

potential is probable but cannot be measured reliably.

5.3 Contingent assets

5.4 Commitments
Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability or as expenditure in the 
Statement of Financial Performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5 Accruals
Accruals are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability or as expenditure in the 
Statement of Financial Performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

the disclosure notes to the Financial Statements.  These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance or the Statement of Financial Position.

5.7 Lease commitments
Finance lease
Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.  Finance 
lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance and are appor-

notes to the Financial Statements.

Operating lease
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance. The 
operating lease commitments are disclosed in the discloser notes to the Financial Statement.

5.8 Impairment and other provisions

-

instrument.

6. Receivables for Departmental revenue
Receivables for Departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual Financial State-
ments.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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7. Net assets
7.1 Capitalisation reserve

-

funds are received.

7.2 Recoverable revenue
-
-

8. Related party transactions

9. Key management personnel
-

cluded in the disclosure notes.

10. Public-private partnerships
A description of the PPP arrangement, the contract fees and current and capital expenditure relating to the 
PPP arrangement is included in the disclosure notes.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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1. Annual Appropriation 
1.1  Annual Appropriation

2010/11 2009/10

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
Funds

received

Funds not 
requested/

not
received

Appro-
priation
received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
 Administration 221 188 211 997 9 191 167 770
Housing Policy, Research and Monitoring 43 871 47 686 67 175
Housing Planning and Delivery Support 207 196 225 221 169 506
Housing Development Finance 15 674 395 15 649 194 25 201 13 033 695
Strategic Relations and Governance 145 109 157 660 166 659
Total    16 291 759    16 291 758                    1    13 604 805

Department.

2. Departmental revenue 
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Tax revenue - -
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 123 91
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 23 46

2.3 2 680 612
Departmental revenue collected             2 826                 749

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the Department 121 90
   Sales by market establishment 35 31
   Other sales 86 59

2 1
Total                123                  91

2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land 
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Interest 23 46
Total                   23                   46

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Receivables 128 132
Other receipts including Recoverable Revenue 2 552 480
Total             2 680                612

3. Aid assistance 
3.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Foreign
Opening Balance - 1 463
Revenue 1 798 -
Expenditure (1 798) (1 463)
Current -
Transfers - 1 463

Closing Balance                     -                     -  

3.2 Total assistance
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Opening Balance - 1 463
Revenue 1 798 -
Expenditure
Current -
Transfers -

Closing Balance                     -                     -

4. Compensation of employee
4.1 Salaries and wages

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Basic salary 147 186 104 120
3 538 3 425

Service Based 370 906
Compensative/circumstantial 4 416 3 558

36 688 27 703
Total         192 198         139 712

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.2 Social contributions
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Employer contributions
Pension 17 320 12 188
Medical 6 904 4 500
Bargaining council 33 14
Total            24 257           16 702

Total compensation of employees         216 455        156 414

Average number of employees               696               552

5. Goods and services 
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Administrative fees 156 77
Advertising 5 295 24 346
Assets less then R5 000 5.1 1 753 1 466

1 144 789
Catering 1 359 3 844
Communication 7 323 6 762
Computer services 5.2 28 177 57 763
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5.3 82 161 79 367
Entertainment 121 225

5.4 6 542 5 184
Inventory 5.5 5 215 8 155
Operating leases 18 658 1 431

5.6 6 189 4 790
Travel and subsistence 5.7 41 590 43 858
Venues and facilities 10 811 10 374
Training and staff development 3 025 2 301
Other operating expenditure 5.8 2 938 3 441
Total          222 457         254 173

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011

5.1 Assets less than R5 000
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Tangible assets 1 744 1 466
   Machinery and equipment 1 744 1 466
Intangible assets 9 -
Total              1 753              1 466

5.2 Computer services
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

SITA computer services 24 140 53 623
External computer service providers 4 037 4 140
Total            28 177           57 763

5.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Business and advisory services 75 042 46 971
Legal costs 988 2 081
Contractors 2 353 1 715
Agency and support/outsourced services 3 778 28 600
Total            82 161            79 367

5.4 Audit cost – external 
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Regularity audits 6 541 5 184
Performance audits 1 -
Total              6 542             5 184

5.5 Inventory
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Learning and teaching support material - 4
Food and food supplies 14 9
Fuel, oil and gas 392 312
Other consumable materials 621 758
Maintenance material 35 20
Stationery and printing 4 153 7 052
Total              5 215             8 155
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5.6 Property payments
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Municipal services 5 240 4 076
Other 949 714
Total              6 189             4 790

5.7 Travel and subsistence
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Local 40 158 42 047
Foreign 1 432 1 811
Total            41 590           43 858

5.8 Other operating expenditure
Note

5
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Professional bodies’ membership and subscription fees 136 164
Resettlement costs 986 1 294
Other 1 816 1 983
Total              2 938             3 441

6. Interest and rent on land 
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Interest paid 173 250
Total                 173                250

Note
7.1

2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

199 222
Total                 199                222

7.1 Debts written off
Note

7
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Nature of debts written off
5 11

Bad debts 6 35
Damage vehicles 186 176

2 -
Total                 199                 222

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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8. Transfers and subsidies
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Provinces and municipalities 32 15 175 563 12 592 276
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1A 346 192 352 613
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1C 684 745
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1B - 108
Households Annex 1D 10 888 6 986
Gifts, donations and sponsorships made Annex 1E 30 224
Total     15 533 357     12 952 952

9. Expenditure for capital assets 
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Tangible assets 118 942 5 724
31 108 558 -

   Machinery and equipment 29 10 384 5 724

Software and other intangible assets 370 626
30 370 626

Total                  119 312              6 350

9.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2010/11
Voted funds

R’000
Aid

assistance
R’000

Total
R’000

Tangible assets 118 942 - 118 942
108 558 - 108 558

   Machinery and equipment 10 384 - 10 384

Software and other intangible assets 370 - 370
370 - 370

Total          119 312                      -          119 312

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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9.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2009/10
Voted funds

R’000
Aid

assistance
R’000

Total
R’000

Tangible assets 5 724 - 5 724
   Machinery and equipment 5 724 - 5 724

Software and other intangible assets 626 - 626
626 - 626

Total              6 350                   -             6 350

10. Cash and cash equivalents
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 238 514 240 442
Disbursements
Cash on hand 45 25
Total          201 710          229 962

11. Pre-payments and advances
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Travel and subsistence 58
Advances paid to other entities 520 -
Total                 520                  58

12. Receivables
                                                                                          2010/11   2009/10

Note Less than 
one year

R’000

One to 
three years

R’000

Older than 
three years

R’000

 Total
R’000

Total
R’000

Claims recoverable 12.1
Annex 3

6 1 351 2 1 359 3 753

Recoverable expenditure 12.2 38 53 102
Staff debt 12.3 153 9 - 161 290
Other debtors 12.4 237 227 - 465 573
Total          (3 717)              1 625                   55              (2 037)              4 718

12.1 Claims recoverable
Note
12

2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

National Departments 1 359 3 753
Total              1 359              3 753
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12.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts)
Note
12

2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Damages 394 367
Total            (4 022)                102

12.3 Staff debt
Note
12

2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

9 13
Study 55 82
Vehicle 2 55
Tax - 8

1 -
Housing guarantee 9 11
Resettlement - 5
Salaries 85 116

Total                 161                290

12.4 Other debtors
Note
12

2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Suppliers
227 573

238 -

Total                 465                573

13. Investments
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Non-current
Shares and other equity
NHFC 880 000 880 000
Servcon 604 604
Total non-current          880 604         880 604

2010/11
R’000

2010/11
R’000

Analysis of non-current investments
Opening balance 880 604 880 604
Closing balance          880 604         880 604
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14. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Opening balance 234 444 8 215
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 199 806 234 444
Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 -
Paid during the year
Closing balance         199 805         234 444

15. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Opening balance 31 34
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 2 826 749
Paid during the year
Closing balance                  49                 31

16. Payables – current
Note 2010/11

Total
2009/10
R’000

Clearing accounts 16.1 195 51
Total                195                  51

16.1 Clearing accounts
Note
16

2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Salary Income Tax: CL 189 42
Pension Fund 5 8
Medical Aid 1 1
Total                195                  51
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Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

202 632 233 730
Add back non-cash/cash movements not deemed operating 
activities

(111 504) 699

6 755 3 300
26

144
Expenditure on capital assets 119 312 6 350
Surrenders to Revenue Fund
Voted funds not requested/not received -

           91 128         234 429

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account 238 514 240 442
Disbursements
Cash on hand          45          25
Total 201 710 229 962
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These amounts are not recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and are disclosed to enhance the useful-
ness of the Annual Financial Statements.

19. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
19.1 Contingent liabilities

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Liable to Nature
Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 2A - 36
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A 102 398
Claims against the department Annex 2B 4 920 72 438

- Annex 4 78 22

Total                5 100           72 894

20. Commitments
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Current expenditure 80 909 68 039
Approved and contracted 69 386 67 926
Approved but not yet contracted 11 523 113

Capital expenditure 2 527 6 019
Approved and contracted 2 505 6 019
Approved but not yet contracted 22 -

Total commitments            83 436            74 058

1 year                  2-3 years               3 years                  3 years and above
R67 295               R125                     R1 731                  R336

21. Accruals
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
Goods and services 856 7 203 8 059 13 635
Interest and rent on land - - - -
Capital assets 8 - 8 -
Other - - - 374
Total               864            7 203                   8 067             14 009
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Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Listed by programme level
Administration 4 914 5 657
Housing, Policy, Research and Monitoring 174 61
Housing, Planning and Delivery Support 760 2 991
Housing Development Finance 1 095 178
Strategic Relations and Governance 1 124 5 122
Total               8 067             14 009

Annex 5 1 147 1
Annex 5 4 558 -

Total             5 705                     1

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Leave entitlement 4 815 4 059
5 386 4 115
4 335 -

Capped leave commitments 6 900 6 951
Total            21 436            15 125
2009/10 Staff Receivables R775
2010/11 Staff Receivables R1 121

23. Lease commitments
23.1 Operating leases expenditure

Spe-
cialised
military

equipment
R’000

Land
R’000

Build-
ings and 

structures
R’000

Machinery
and equip-

ment
R’000

Total 
R’000

2010/11
Not later than 1 year - - 22 070 - 22 070
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 
years

- - 107 404 - 107 404

Later than 5 years - - 105 380 - 105 380
Total lease commitments - -          234 854 -          234 854

2009/10
Not later than 1 year - - 18 658 - 18 658
Later than 1 year and not later than 
5 years

- - 82 255 - 82 255

Later than 5 years - - 163 206 - 163 206
Total lease commitments - -          264 119 -          264 119
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23.2 Finance leases expenditure**

Specialised
military

equipment
R’000

Land
R’000

Buildings
and other 

-
tures
R’000

Machinery
and equip-

ment
R’000

Total
R’000

2010/11
Not later than 1 year - - - 857 857
Later than 1 year and not later than 
5 years

- - - 78 78

Later than 5 years - - - - -
Total lease commitments - - -                     935                 935
LESS:  Finance costs - - - 46 46
Total present value of lease liabilities - - -                 889                 889

Specialised
military

equipment
R’000

Land
R’000

Buildings
and other 

-
tures
R’000

Machinery
and equip-

ment
R’000

Total
R’000

2009/10
Not later than 1 year - - - 1 879 1 879
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 
years

- - - 611 611

Later than 5 years - - - - -
Total lease commitments - - -             2 490             2 490
LESS:  Finance costs - - - 181 181
Total present value of lease liabilities - - -             2 309             2 309

* * This note excludes leases relating to public private partnership as they are separately disclosed to note no 39.

24. Irregular expenditure
24.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Opening balance 2 659 1 739
526 -

12 100 920
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation           15 285             2 659

Current year 109 920
Prior years 1 739
Total                 109             2 659
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24.2 Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings
2010/11
R’000

Requested for condonation 109
Appointments  Exco 60 152
Advertised period Kaleo Consulting Exco 57 1 819
Quotations Bay Technologies, Maphalang Exco 50 223
Stipulations Practice note 8 of 2007/08 9 797
Total             12 100

25. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
25.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Note 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Opening balance 3 -
- 3

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement                     3                     3

26. Related party transactions
List related party relationships
South African Housing Fund
Servcon
Social Housing Foundation

National Home Builders Registration Council
National Housing Finance Corporation
Thubelisha Homes
Housing Development Agency
Social Housing Regulatory Authority

27. Key management personnel
No of Indi-

viduals
2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

3 277 2 956

   Level 15 to 16 8 223 10 715
20 110 18 535

Total           31 610              3 206
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DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28. Impairment and other provisions
Note 2010/11

R’000
2009/10
R’000

Provisions
Staff debtors 100 269
Total                 100                 269

Other provisions
73 -

Total                   73                     -

Total                 173                269

29. Movable Tangible Capital Assets
Movement in movable tangible capital assets per Asset Register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Opening
balance
R’000

Curr Year 
Adjust-

ments to 
prior year 
balances

R’000
Additions

R’000
Disposals

R’000

Closing
Balance

R’000
Machinery and Equipment 41 564 (1 531) 9 056 833 48 256
Transport assets 1 193 - 489 - 1 682
Computer equipment 16 781 6 993 619 22 973

14 030 886 54 13 626
Other machinery and equipment 9 560 688 160 9 975

Total Movable tangible capital assets           41 564           (1 531)                 9 056               833           48 256

29.1 Additions
Additions to movable tangible capital  assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Cash
R’000

Non-cash
R’000

Capital
work in 

progress
current

costs and 

lease pay-
ments
R’000

Received
current,
not paid 

(Paid cur-
rent year, 
received

prior year)
R’000

Total
R’000

Machinery and equipment 10 384 - (1 328) - 9 056
Transport assets 489 - - - 489
Computer equipment 6 993 - - - 6 993

2 214 - - 886
Other machinery and equipment 688 - - - 688

Total Additions to movable tangible  
           capital assets         10 384                                       -          (1 328)                    -             9 056
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29.2 Disposals
Disposal of movable tangible capital  assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Sold for 
cash
R’000

Transfer 
out or de-
stroyed or 
scrapped

R’000

Total dis-
posals
R’000

Cash
received

actual
R’000

Machinery and equipment 62 771 833
Computer equipment - 619 619 -

- 54 54 -
Other machinery and equipment 62 98 160 -

Total Disposal of movable tangible  
             capital assets                  62                771               833                    -

29.3 Movement for 2009/10
Movement in movable tangible capital  assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Opening
balance
R’000

Additions
R’000

Disposals
R’000

Closing
balance
R’000

Machinery and Equipment 38 697 5 724 2 857 41 564
Transport assets 1 221 574 602 1 193
Computer equipment 15 929 2 425 1 573 16 781

12 790 1 678 438 14 030
Other machinery and equipment 8 757 1 047 244 9 560

Total Movable tangible capital assets              38 697                5 724                2 857             41 564

29.4 Minor assets
Movement in minor assets of the department as at 31 March 2011

Spe-
cialised
military
assets
R’000

Intangible
assets
R’000

Heritage
assets
R’000

Machin-
ery and 
equip-
ment
R’000

Biological
assets
R’000

Total
R’000

Opening balance - 1 069 - 10 240 - 11 309
Additions - 28 - 1 652 - 1 680
Disposals - - - 316 - 316
Total Minor assets                   -            1 097                  -         11 576                   -          12 673

Number of R1 minor assets - 5 - 65 - 70
Number of minor  assets at cost - 1 026 - 7 334 - 8 360
Total Number of minor assets                   -           1 031                  -           7 399                               -           8 430
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Minor assets of the department as at 31 March 2011
Spe-

cialised
military
assets
R’000

Intangible
assets
R’000

Heritage
assets
R’000

Machin-
ery and 
equip-
ment
R’000

Biological
assets
R’000

Total
R’000

Minor  assets - 1 069 - 10 240 - 11 309
Total                   -           1 069                  -         10 240                   -          11 309

Number of R1 minor assets - - - 89 - 89
Number of minor  assets at cost - 1 017 - 6 790 - 7 807
Total Number of minor assets                   -           1 017                  -                   6 879                   -           7 896

30. Intangible capital assets
Movement in intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Opening
balance
R’000

Current
Year 

Adjust-
ments to 
prior year 
balances

R’000
Additions

R’000
Disposals

R’000

Closing
Balance

R’000
3 202 94 370 - 3 666

Total Intangible capital assets             3 202                  94               370             3 666

30.1 Additions
Additions to intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Cash
R’000

Non-cash
R’000

Develop-
ment

work in 
progress
– current 

costs
R’000

Received
current

year, not 
paid

(Paid cur-
rent year, 
received

prior year)
R’000

Total
R’000

370 - - - 370
Total Additions to intangible capital  
           assets               370                    -                      -                     -                370

30.2 Movement for 2009/10
Movement in intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Opening
balance
R’000

Additions
R’000

Disposals
R’000

Closing
balance
R’000

2 576 626 - 3 202
Total Intangible capital assets                2 576                   626                       -                3 202
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31. Immovable tangible capital assets
31.1 Additions

Additions to immovable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2011

Cash
R’000

Non-cash
R’000

Capital
work in 

progress
current

costs and 

lease pay-
ments
R’000

Received
current

year, not 
paid

(Paid cur-
rent year, 
received

prior year)
R’000

Total
R’000

108 558 (108 558) -
108 558 -

Total Additions to immovable tangible  
             capital assets        108 558       (108 558)                     -

32. Transfer of functions

failed to submit supporting documents.

-

sign.
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ANNEXURE 1D
Statement of Transfers to Households

Households

Transfer Allocation Expenditure 2009/10

Adjusted
Appro-
priation

Act
R’000

Roll-
overs
R’000

Adjust-
ments
R’000

Total
Available

R’000

Actual
Transfer

R’000

% of
Available 

funds
Trans-
ferred

Appro-
priation

Act
R’000

Transfers
Bursaries 4 006 - 7 076 11 082 9 636 87% 6 986
Leave gratuity 1 005 - 257 1 262 1 252 99% -
Total             5 011                   -          7 333         12 344           10 888                 -             6 986

ANNEXURE 1E
Statement of gifts, donations and sponsorships made; and remmissions, refunds and payments made as an 
act of grace

Nature of gift, donation or sponsorship 2010/11
R’000

2009/10
R’000

Paid in cash
Total of various gifts bought by Minister 5
R M Mathebula retirement 5

7
166

T M Sharp retirement 5
5

24
K Savage Retirement 5

2
5

10
5
5
5

TOTAL                         30                     224

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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ANNEXURE 2A
Statement of Financial Guarantees issued as at 31 March 2011 – Local

Guarantor
institution

Guar-
antee in 
respect

of

Original
guaran-

teed
capital
amount
R’000

Opening
balance
1 April 
2010
R’000

Guar-
antees
draw-
downs
during

the
year

R’000

Guar-
antees
repay-
ments/

can-
celled/

reduced/
released
during

the year
R’000

Re-
valua-
tions
R’000

Closing
bal-

ance 31 
March
2011
R’000

Guar-
anteed
inter-

est for 
year

ended
31

March
2011
R’000

Real-
ised

losses
not

recov-
erable

i.e.
claims
paid
out

R’000
Motor
vehicles

Standard Bank 4 4 - 4 - 0 - -
Subtotal                4                4               -                  -              -              0              -             -
Housing

Standard Bank 69 69 - - - 69 - -
FirstRand Bank 48 48 - 48 - - - -
ABSA 193 193 - 193 - - - -
FNB 38 38 - 38 - - - -
Old Bank 17 17 - - - 17 - -
Mpumalanga 16 16 - - - 16 - -

Subtotal            381            381                         -             279               -           102              -              -

TOTAL            385           385                   -             283               -           102                  -                      -  

ANNEXURE 2B
Statement of Contingent Liabilities as at 31 March 2011

Nature of liability

 Open-
ing

Balance
1 April 
2010
R’000

Liabili-
ties in-
curred
during

the
year

R’000

Lia-
bilities
paid/
can-

celled/
reduced
during

the year
R’000

Lia-
bilities
recov-
erable
(Pro-
vide

details
hereun-

der
R’000)

 Closing 
Bal-

ance 31 
March
2011
R’000

Claims against the department    
Opening balance  72 438 - - - 72 438
Verern Builders CC/Thubelisha Homes - 1 330 -
Ibuyile Development Consortium/Government of RSA - 70 200 -
Eric Sefu/Minister of Housing 30 - - 30
Trutees of Giancarlo Vessio Family Trust vs Minister of 
Human Settlements 

300 - - 300

Residents of Ekurhuleni/Minister of Human Settlements 
and others 

50 - - 50

Juta/Minister of Housing 50 - - 50
Kriegler/Minister of Housing 50 - - 50
Andre Grobler/Minister of Housing 68 - - 68

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Kabonga Longo/KZN Tribuna 60 - - 60
50 - - 50

Residents of Joe Slovo/Minister of Human Settlements 200 - - 200
Madibeng Municipality 50 - - 50

- 100 - - 100

-
ments

1 000 - - 1 000

40 - - 40
40 - - 40
40 - - 40
40 - - 40

Another
40 - - 40

40 - - 40
40 - - 40
40 - - 40

Another
40 - - 40

40 - - 40
40 - - 40

Another
40 - - 40

40 - - 40
40 - - 40

Another
40 - - 40

40 - - 40
40 - - 40
40 - - 40

Barone Grand Sedibe/Minister of Housing 40 - - 40
40 - - 40
40 - - 40
40 - - 40

400 - - 400
Mpange Zithulele/Minister of Human Settlements 160 56 - 104

20 - - 20
Eagle Valley v Illegal Occupants 300 - - 300
City of Johannesburg v Blue Moonlight  615 315 -  300
TOTAL        72 438        4 383        71 901                  -          4 920

Nature of Liability

 Open-
ing

Balance
1 April 
2010
R’000

Liabili-
ties in-
curred
during

the
year

R’000

Li-
abilities

paid/
can-

celled/
reduced
during

the year
R’000

Li-
abilities
recov-
erable
(Pro-
vide

details
hereun-

der
R’000)

 Closing 
Bal-

ance 31 
March
2011
R’000

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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ANNEXURE 3
CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

Government Entity
outstanding outstanding

Total

31/03/2011
R’000

31/03/2010
R’000

31/03/2011
R’000

31/03/2010
R’000

31/03/2011
R’000

31/03/2010
R’000

Department
SARS - - - 16 - 16
GCIS - - 500 31 500 31
Department of Home Affairs - 22 - 6 - 6
Gauteng Community Safety - - 22 - 22 22
International Relations and - - 19 35 19 35

- - 1 1 1 1
- - 1 1 1 1

Department of Safety and 
Security

- - - 19 - 19

Department of Defence and 
Military Veterans

- - 1 328 2 151 1 328 2 151

Department of Correctional 
Services

- - - 2 - 2

- 1 - - - 1
Department of Justice - - - 14 - 14
Department of Labour - - - 66 - 66

- - - 21 - 21
- - - 1 362 - 1 362

Gauteng Housing - - 1 1 1 1
Limpopo Provincial Government - - - 5 - 5
Department of Health - - 5 - 5 -
Subtotal                    -                 23             1 877              3 731                 1 877             3 754

Other Government Entities
National Home Builders Registra-
tion Council

- - - 32 - 32

National Housing Finance 
Corporation

- - - 5 - 5

South African Social Security 
Agency

- - 1 1 1 1

Subtotal                    -                    -                    1                   38                     1                   38

TOTAL                    -                  23             1 878              3 769              1 878              3 792

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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ANNEXURE 4
Inter-Government Payables

Government Entity
outstanding outstanding

Total

31/03/2011
R’000

31/03/2010
R’000

31/03/2011
R’000

31/03/2010
R’000

31/03/2011
R’000

31/03/2010
R’000

Departments
Current

Tourism, KZN
- 1 - - - 1

- - - 22 - 22
Department of Justice and Con-
stitutional Development

714 - - - 714 -

Mpumalanga Provincial Govern-
ment

14 - - - 14 -

Presidency 67 - - 67 -
318 - 76 - 394 -

Health and Social Development 32 - - - 32 -
South African Police Service 2 - - - 2 -
Total            1 147                     1                 76                  22            1 223                 23

Other Government Entities
Current

66 - 2 - 68 -
PALAMA 57 - - - 57 -

4 435 - - - 4 435 -
-

Total            4 548                    -                    2                   -            4 560                    -

ANNEXURE 5
Inventory

Inventory Note Quantity 2010/11
R’000

Quantity 2009/10
R’000

Opening balance 7 517 41 18 785 57

year balance
- - - -

Add:  Additions/Purchases - Cash 53 160 294 27 897 114
Add:  Additions - Non-cash - - 1 337 5

-

-

price range
- 8 - -

Closing balance                 29 905                     170                   7 517                       41

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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SA HOUSING FUND MANAGEMENT REPORT
for the year ended 31 March 2011

The change in focus in housing delivery to quality housing and a shift to alternative forms of housing tenure have 

and draft legislation is in the process of being approved to give effect to that decision. A draft Bill has been submitted 

November 2003.

2. Accounting Authority’s emoluments

3. Auditors

of the South African Housing Fund. 

4. Approval of Financial Statements

ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER     DIRECTOR-GENERAL
31 May 2011       31 May 2011
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Introduction

      214.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

General Notice 1111 
 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010. Those standards require that I  

5.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

 or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s  

 circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s  
 internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and  

 audit opinion.

Opinion

 ments of the General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010.

Emphasis of matters 

Basis of Accounting

Disestablishment of the SA Housing Fund

 African Housing Fund.

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE SOUTH AFRICAN HOUSING FUND



212

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE SOUTH AFRICAN HOUSING FUND

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Ga-

 zette 33872 of 15 December 2010

 department.

Predetermined objectives

Compliance with laws and regulations

  the entity.

INTERNAL CONTROL 
General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government

 Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for 

 regulations.

Pretoria
31 July 2011     
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Notes 31 March 
2011
R’000

31 March 
2010
R’000

Assets     
Current Assets 32 585 32 585
Trade and other receivables 1 -  -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 32 585  32 585
Total Assets                 32 585               32 585
                   
Equity and Liabilities     
Capital and Reserves  31 958  31 958
Treasury Reserves  -   -
Non Distributable Reserves   -  - 

 31 958  31 958
Current Liabilities  627  627
Trade and other payables 2 627  627

Total Equity and Liabilities                 32 585               32 585

SA HOUSING FUND 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2011
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SA HOUSING FUND 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2011

Notes 31 March 
2011
R’000

31 March 
2010
R’000

 -   - 

 -  - 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 32 585 32 585

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 4                32 585               32 585
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1. Basis of Preparation

-
ing Act to be amended.

1.1 Financial Instruments
Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, receivables and credi-
tors.

Measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are 

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at cost.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised at cost.

1.2 Administration Costs
All administration costs are borne by Department of Human Settlements.

SA HOUSING FUND 
SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the year ended 31 March 2011
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1. Trade and other Receivables
31 March 

2011
R’000

31 March 
2010
R’000

Debtors 421  421
Less: Provision for bad debt

                        -                           -

2. Trade and other Payables
31 March 

2011
R’000

31 March 
2010
R’000

627  627
                    627                    627

       
       
3. Disestablishment of the S A Housing Fund    
At the meeting of the MinMEC Committee of 15 August 2003, MinMEC approved the disestablishment of the 
South African Housing Fund and the Provincial Housing Development funds established in terms of various 

National Treasury for consideration and input. The department is also considering repealing the Housing Act 

4. Cash and cash equivalents
31 March 

2011
R’000

31 March 
2010
R’000

     Cash on hand 25 229 25 229
7 356 7 356

               32 585               32 585

SA HOUSING FUND 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2011
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
 TABLE 1.1 - Main service for service delivery improvement and standards

Main services Actual customers Potential custom-
ers

Standard of 
service

Actual achievement 
against standards

None

None

None

 TABLE 1.2 - Consultation arrangements for customers
Type of arrangement Actual customers Potential customers Actual achievement

None

None

None

 TABLE 1.3 - Service delivery access strategy
Access strategy Actual achievements

None

None

None

 TABLE 1.4 - Service information tool
Type of information tool Actual achievements

None

None

None

 TABLE 1.5 – Complaints mechanism
Complaints mechanism Actual achievements

None

None

None
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TABLE 2.1 – Personnel costs by Programme

   Programme Total 
Voted Ex-
penditure

(R’000)

Compen-
sation of 
Employ-
ees Ex-

penditure
(R’000)

Training 
Expen-
diture
(R’000)

Profes-
sional
and

Special
Services
(R’000)

Compen-
sation of 

Employees
as percent-

age(%)
of Total 

Expendi-
ture

Average 
Compen-
sation of 

Employees
Cost per 

Employee
(R’000)

Employ-
ment

DHS: Administration 188 598 73 423 0 0 38.9  106 696
DHS: Housing delivery support 0 0 0 0 0 0 696
DHS: Housing development 15 626 545 26 534 0 0 0.2 38 696

          supp 
156 830 57 326 0 0 36.6  82 696

          monitor 
32 642 19 890 0 0 60.9 29 696

DHS: Housing policy 0 0 0 0 0 0 696

DHS: Strat relation and govern 87 386 39 282 0 0 45 56 696

0 0 0 0 0 0 696
Total as on Financial Systems 
(BAS)

16 092 000 216 455 0 0 1.3 311 696

 TABLE 2.2 – Personnel costs by salary band

  Salary bands Compensation
of employee 
cost (R’000)

Percentage of 
total person-
nel cost for 
Department

Average com-
pensation cost 
per employee 

(R)

Total person-
nel cost for 

Department in-
cluding goods 
and transfers 

(R’000)
Number of 
employees

2 634 1.2 97 556 219 831 27
8 917 4.1 133 090 219 831 67

Highly skilled production 40 215 18.3 217 378 219 831 185

87 174 39.7 377 377 219 831 231

Senior management 54 226 24.7 753 139 219 831 72

828 0.4 19 714 219 831 42
347 0.2 18 263 219 831 19

4 590 2.1 208 636 219 831 22
6 798 3.1 323 714 219 831 21
8 601 3.9 860 100 219 831 10

Abnormal Appointment 77 0 3 850 219 831 20
TOTAL 214407 97.5 299451 219831 716
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 TABLE 2.3 – Salaries, overtime, home-owners allowance and medical assistance by programme

 Programme Salaries
(R’000)

Salaries
as % of 

personnel
cost

Overtime
(R’000)

Overtime
as % of 
person-
nel cost

HOA 
(R’000)

HOA as % 
of person-
nel cost

Medi-
cal ass 
(R’000)

Prog 1: Administration 58940 78.4 577 0.8 2113 2.8 2586

Prog 2: Housing Policy Research 14217 76.3 38 0.2 366 2 497

Prog 3: Housing Planning and
              Delivery Support 41316 72.9 151 0.3 1363 2.4 1535

Prog 4: Housing Development
              Finance 19584 72.5 537 2 659 2.4 970

Prog 5: Strategic Relations and
             Governance 33170 78.3 18 0 833 2 1280

Prog 1: Administration31000000 11 100 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 167238 76.1 1321 0.6 5334 2.4 6868

 TABLE 2.4 – Salaries, overtime, home-owners allowance and medical assistance by salary

 Salary bands
Salaries
(R’000)

Salaries
as % of 

personnel
cost

Overtime
(R’000)

Overtime
as % of 
person-
nel cost

HOA 
(R’000)

HOA 
as % of 
person-
nel cost

Medi-
cal ass. 
(R’000)

1739 66 17 0.6 200 7.6 239

5963 65.8 333 3.7 463 5.1 720

Highly skilled production 28726 70.2 546 1.3 1252 3.1 2567

Highly skilled supervision 66546 73.5 355 0.4 1519 1.7 2557

Senior management 44044 79.6 0 0 1860 3.4 743

822 97.3 7 0.8 0 0 0

327 94.2 9 2.6 0 0 0

4486 97.5 52 1.1 0 0 0

6330 91.9 4 0.1 0 0 27

8178 94.4 0 0 40 0.5 15

Abnormal appointment 77 96.3 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 167238 76.1 1323 0.6 5334 2.4 6868
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TABLE 3.1 – Employment and vacancies by Programme at end of period

Programme
Number of 

posts
Number of 

Vacancy 
rate
(%)

Number of 

additional
to the 

establish-
ment

Prog 1: Administration - permanent 316 281 11.1 39

              permanent 82 60 26.8 1
Prog 3: Housing Planning and Delivery Support - 
             permanent 203 144 29.1 7
Prog 4: Housing Development Finance - permanent 105 87 17.1 6
Prog 5: Strategic Relations and Governance - 
             permanent 157 124 21 13
TOTAL 863 696 19.4 66

TABLE 3.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary band at end of period

Salary band
Number of 

posts

Number
of posts 

Vacancy 
rate
(%)

Number of 

additional
to the 

establish-
ment

28 27 3.6 0
81 67 17.3 4

241 185 23.2 13
316 231 26.9 10
83 72 13.3 0
42 42 0 15
19 19 0 0
22 22 0 13
21 21 0 8
10 10 0 3

TOTAL 863 696 19.4 66
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  TABLE 3.3 – Employment and vacancies by critical occupation at end of period

Critical occupations
Number of 

posts
Number of 

Vacancy 
rate
(%)

Number of 

additional
to the 

establish-
ment

Administrative related, permanent 189 134 29.1 3
-

nent 19 18 5.3 0

permanent  34 31 8.8 0
Economists, permanent 48 35 27.1 0
Engineers and related professionals, permanent 12 8 33.3 0
Finance and economics related, permanent 33 26 21.2 2
Financial and related professionals, permanent 14 10 28.6 1
Financial clerks and credit controllers, permanent 35 31 11.4 3

7 7 0 0

permanent 8 3 62.5 0

permanent 1 1 0 0
Household food and laundry services related, perma-
nent 10 9 10 4

permanent 19 18 5.3 8
Human resources clerks, permanent 32 29 9.4 13
Human resources related, permanent 10 9 10 0
Librarians and related professionals, permanent 1 1 0 0
Library mail and related clerks, permanent 26 24 7.7 12
Light vehicle drivers, permanent 2 2 0 0
Logistical support personnel, permanent 82 73 11 8
Material-recording and transport clerks, permanent 12 9 25 0
Messengers, porters and deliverers, permanent 11 8 27.3 0

permanent 58 51 12.1 4
Other occupations, permanent 4 3 25 0
Risk management and security services, permanent 10 7 30 0

64 48 25 4
23 22 4.3 1

Senior managers, permanent 99 79 20.2 3
TOTAL 863 696 19.4 66
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 TABLE 4.1 – Job evaluation

Salary band
Number
of posts

Number
of jobs 
evalu-
ated

Posts
evalu-
ated
(%)

Number
of posts 

up-
graded

Up-
graded
posts
evalu-
ated
(%)

Number
of posts 
down-
graded

Down-
graded
posts
evalu-
ated
(%)

28 0 0 0 0 0 0
42 0 0 0 0 0 0
19 0 0 0 0 0 0
22 0 0 0 0 0 0
21 0 0 0 0 0 0
6 0 0 0 0 0 0
1 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 0 0 0 0 0 0

81 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production

241 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled supervision

316 22 7 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service 
Band A 54 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service 
Band B 22 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service 
Band C 5 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management Service 
Band D 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 863 22 2.5 0 0 0 0

 TABLE 4.2 – 
                          upgraded

African Asian Coloured White Total
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 4.3 – Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation  
                          (i.t.o PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation Number of 
employees

Job evalua-
tion level

Remunera-
tion level

Reason for 
deviation

No of 
employees

in Dept
Total 0 0 0 0 0
Percentage of total employment 

0 0 0 0 0
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upgraded
African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 5.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band

Salary band
Employment
at beginning 

of period 
(April 2010)

Appoint-
ments

Termina-
tions

Turnover 
rate
(%)

24 10 0 0
58 12 4 6.9

158 39 7 4.4

                                          permanent
199 21 11 5.5

Senior Management Service Band A, permanent 46 0 0 0
Senior Management Service Band B, permanent 18 1 0 0
Senior Management Service Band C, permanent 3 1 1 33.3
Senior Management Service Band D, permanent 2 1 0 0

0 43 12 0
3 23 5 166.7

27 30 34 125.9
14 15 10 71.4

4 2 0 0
0 0 1 0
0 1 0 0
3 0 1 33.3

TOTAL 559 199 86 15.4
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TABLE 5.2 – Annual turnover rates by critical occupation

Occupation

Employ-
ment at 

beginning
of period 

(April 2010)
Appoint-

ments
Termina-

tions

Turnover 
rate
(%)

Administrative related, permanent 98 19 12 12.2
1 0 0 0

Civil engineering technicians, permanent 4 0 0 0
23 2 0 0

permanent 4 0 0 0

Communication and information related, permanent 9 0 0 0
7 0 2 28.6

Custodian personnel, permanent 1 0 0 0
Economists, permanent 39 1 3 7.7
Engineering sciences related, permanent 5 0 0 0
Engineers and related professionals, permanent 9 2 0 0
Finance and economics related, permanent 28 4 3 10.7
Financial and related professionals, permanent 8 2 0 0
Financial clerks and credit controllers, permanent 32 36 14 43.8

6 0 0 0
-

nent 4 0 0 0

-
nent 1 0 0 0

0 1 0 0
Health sciences related, permanent 1 0 0 0
Household food and laundry services related, permanent 0 5 1 0

1 0 0 0

permanent 13 7 0 0

Human resources clerks, permanent 16 17 1 6.3
Human resources related, permanent 6 0 0 0
Information technology related, permanent 1 0 0 0

permanent 2 0 0 0

Legal related, permanent 2 0 0 0
Librarians and related professionals, permanent 1 0 0 0
Library mail and related clerks, permanent 14 15 2 14.3
Light vehicle drivers, permanent 2 0 0 0
Logistical support personnel, permanent 4 34 0 0
Material-recording and transport clerks, permanent 9 7 1 11.1
Medical research and related professionals, permanent 1 0 0 0
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Messengers porters and deliverers, permanent 7 0 0 0
Natural sciences related, permanent 3 0 1 33.3

37 25 15 40.5
3 0 1 33.3

Other information technology personnel., permanent 3 0 0 0
Other occupations, permanent 5 0 0 0

2 2 1 50
67 12 24 35.8

Security guards, permanent 5 0 1 20
19 4 1 5.3

Senior managers, permanent 45 4 3 6.7
Social sciences related, permanent 10 0 0 0

permanent 1 0 0 0

TOTAL 559 199 86 15.4

TABLE 5.3 – Reasons why staff are leaving the Department

   Termination type

Number

Percent-
age of total 

resigna-
tions(%)

Percent-
age of 
total

employ-
ment(%) Total

Total em-
ployment

Resignation, permanent 23 26.7 4.1 86 559
Expiry of contract, permanent 55 64 9.8 86 559
Transfers, permanent 1 1.2 0.2 86 559
Dismissal-misconduct, permanent 1 1.2 0.2 86 559
Retirement, permanent 6 7 1.1 86 559
TOTAL 86 100 15.4 86 559

Occupation

Employ-
ment at 

beginning
of period 

(April 2010)
Appoint-

ments
Termina-

tions

Turnover 
rate
(%)
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TABLE 5.4 – Promotions by critical occupation

   Occupation

Employ-
ment at 

beginning
of pe-

riod (April 
2010)

Promo-
tions to 
another

salary level

Salary
level pro-
motions
as % of 
employ-

ment

Progres-
sions to 
another
notch

within sal-
ary level

Notch pro-
gressions

as % of 
employ-

ment
Administrative related 98 21 21.4 42 42.9
Agriculture related 0 1 0 0 0

1 0 0 0 0
Civil engineering technicians 4 2 50 1 25

23 2 8.7 14 60.9

4 2 50 2 50

Communication and information related 9 1 11.1 6 66.7
7 1 14.3 2 28.6

Custodian personnel 1 0 0 0 0
Economists 39 2 5.1 21 53.8
Engineering sciences related 5 0 0 0 0
Engineers and related professionals 9 2 22.2 2 22.2
Finance and economics related 28 6 21.4 14 50
Financial and related professionals 8 3 37.5 3 37.5
Financial clerks and credit controllers 32 5 15.6 12 37.5

6 0 0 4 66.7

-
als 4 1 25 3 75

prof 1 0 0 1 100

Health sciences related 1 0 0 0 0
1 0 0 1 100

relate prof 13 4 30.8 4 30.8

Human resources clerks 16 0 0 12 75
Human resources related 6 3 50 1 16.7
Information technology related 1 0 0 0 0

commun 2 0 0 2 100

Legal related 2 0 0 0 0
Librarians and related professionals 1 0 0 1 100
Library mail and related clerks 14 0 0 6 42.9
Light vehicle drivers 2 0 0 2 100
Logistical support personnel 4 6 150 1 25
Material-recording and transport clerks 9 1 11.1 4 44.4
Medical research and related professionals 1 0 0 0 0
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Messengers porters and deliverers 7 0 0 3 42.9
Natural sciences related 3 0 0 1 33.3

-
ers 37 6 16.2 20 54.1

3 1 33.3 1 33.3
Other information technology personnel. 3 0 0 3 100
Other occupations 5 0 0 2 40
Risk management and security services 2 2 100 1 50

67 3 4.5 29 43.3
Security guards 5 0 0 2 40

19 0 0 15 78.9
Senior managers 45 4 8.9 18 40
Social sciences related 10 2 20 4 40

-
sion 1 1 100 0 0

TOTAL 559 82 14.7 260 46.5

TABLE 5.5 – Promotions by salary band
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Pr
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ev

el
No

tc
h

pr
og
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s-

sio
ns

 as
 %

 
of

 em
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-

m
en

t

24 0 0 14 58.3
58 6 10.3 31 53.4

permanent 158 20 12.7 91 57.6

permanent 199 49 24.6 95 47.7
-

nent 69 7 10.1 28 40.6
3 0 0 0 0

27 0 0 0 0
14 0 0 0 0

7 0 0 1 14.3
TOTAL 559 82 14.7 260 46.5

   Occupation

Employ-
ment at 

beginning
of pe-

riod (April 
2010)

Promo-
tions to 
another

salary level

Salary
level pro-
motions
as % of 
employ-

ment

Progres-
sions to 
another
notch

within sal-
ary level

Notch pro-
gressions

as % of 
employ-

ment
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TABLE 6.1 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) per occupational  
                     category (SASCO)

Occupational categories Ma
le

Af
ric

an

Ma
le

Co
lo

ur
ed

Ma
le

In
di

an

Ma
le:

To
ta

l 
Bl

ac
ks

Ma
le

W
hi

te

Fe
m

ale
Af

ric
an

Fe
m

ale
Co

lo
ur

ed

Fe
m

ale
In

di
an

Fe
m

ale
:

To
ta

l 
Bl

ac
ks

Fe
m

ale
W

hi
te

To
ta

l

-
ers, permanent 

20 1 2 23 6 17 2 2 21 2 52

Professionals, permanent 68 1 2 71 6 73 3 2 78 12 167
Technicians and associate professionals, 
permanent

73 1 2 76 2 70 1 3 74 5 157

Clerks, permanent 68 2 0 70 2 149 7 6 162 13 247
17 0 0 17 0 13 0 1 14 0 31

Plant and machine operators and assem-
blers, permanent

1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Elementary occupations, permanent 12 1 0 13 1 25 1 0 26 1 41
TOTAL 259 6 6 271 17 347 14 14 375 33 696

 TABLE 6.2 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) per occupational  
                       band

        Occupational bands

Ma
le,

Af
ric

an
Ma

le,
 C

ol
-

ou
re

d

Ma
le,

 In
di

an

Ma
le 

To
ta

l 
Bl

ac
ks

Ma
le,

 W
hi

te

Fe
m

ale
,

Af
ric

an

Fe
m

ale
,

Co
lo

ur
ed

Fe
m

ale
,

In
di

an
Fe

m
ale

,
To

ta
lB

 la
ck

s

Fe
m

ale
,

W
hi

te
To

ta
l

Top Management, permanent 3 0 1 4 0 1 0 1 2 0 6
Senior Management, permanent 29 1 2 32 8 20 1 1 22 4 66

specialists and mid-management, permanent 95 2 3 100 4 104 4 6 114 13 231

foremen, permanent
50 2 0 52 2 106 5 5 116 15 185

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making, permanent 28 0 0 28 1 37 0 1 38 0 67

permanent 6 1 0 7 0 19 1 0 20 0 27

2 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

1 0 0 1 1 4 1 0 5 0 7

permanent 8 0 0 8 0 12 0 0 12 1 21

10 0 0 10 0 10 2 0 12 0 22

9 0 0 9 0 10 0 0 10 0 19
18 0 0 18 0 24 0 0 24 0 42

TOTAL 259 6 6 271 17 347 14 14 375 33 696



230

TABLE 6.3 – Recruitment: New appointments per occupational band

       Occupational band

Ma
le

Af
ric

an

Ma
le

Co
lo

ur
ed

Ma
le

In
di

an
Ma

le:
 To

ta
l 

Bl
ac

ks
Ma

le 
W

hi
te

Fe
m

ale
Af

ric
an

Fe
m

ale
Co

lo
ur

ed
Fe

m
ale

In
di

an

Fe
m

ale
:

To
ta

l 
Bl

ac
ks

Fe
m

ale
W

hi
te

To
ta

l

Top Management, permanent 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Senior Management, permanent 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

specialists and mid-management, perma-
nent

6 1 2 9 0 11 0 0 11 1 21

foremen, permanent
19 0 0 19 1 19 0 0 19 0 39

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision mak-
ing, permanent 1 0 0 1 0 10 0 1 11 0 12

permanent 3 0 0 3 0 7 0 0 7 0 10

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 2

-
nent 7 0 0 7 0 7 0 0 7 1 15

13 0 0 13 0 16 1 0 17 0 30
12 0 0 12 0 11 0 0 11 0 23
19 0 0 19 0 24 0 0 24 0 43

TOTAL 82 1 3 86 2 107 1 1 109 2 199

TABLE 6.4 – Promotions

     Occupational Band

Male Female

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

To
ta

l

Top Management
Senior Management

-
ment

-
ment, supervisors, foreman and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

TOTAL

Employees with disabilities
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TABLE 6.5 – Terminations

    Occupational band

Male Female

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

To
ta

l

Top Management
Senior Management

-
ment

-
ment, supervisors, foreman and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

TOTAL

Employees with disabilities

 TABLE 6.6 – Disciplinary action
Male Female

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

To
ta

l

Desciplinary action

TABLE 6.7 – Skills development

   Occupational categories

Male Female

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

Af
ric

an

Co
lo

ur
ed

In
di

an

W
hi

te

To
ta

l

Professionals
Technicians and associate professionals
Clerks

Plant and machine operators and assemblers
Elementary occupations
TOTAL
Employees with disabilities
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TABLE 7.1 – Performance rewards by race, gender and disability

Demographics Number of Total em-
ployment

Percentage
of total em-
ployment

(%) Cost (R’000)

Average 
cost per 

(R)
African: Female 114 347 32.9 1 631 14 310
African: Male 68 258 26.4 1 000 14 711
Asian: Female 5 13 38.5 148 29 644
Asian: Male 0 6 0 0 0
Coloured: Female 4 14 28.6 57 14 363
Coloured: Male 2 6 33.3 24 12 120
Total Blacks: Female 123 374 32.9 1 837 14 935
Total Blacks: Male 70 270 25.9 1 025 14 637

19 33 57.6 428 22 538
5 17 29.4 153 30 690
2 2 100 50 24 991

TOTAL 219 696 31.5 3 493 15 951

 TABLE 7.2 – Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management 
                       service

Salary band Number 
-

ciaries

Total 
employ-

ment

Percent-
age of 
total

employ-
ment

Cost
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

ben-

(R)

14 27 51.9 66 4 714

28 67 41.8 176 6 286
71 185 38.4 725 10 211
89 231 38.5 1 827 20 528

0 42 0 0 0
0 19 0 0 0
0 22 0 0 0
2 21 9.5 61 30 500

Abnormal Appointment 0 20 0 0 0
TOTAL 204 634 32.2 2855 13995



233

TABLE 7.3 – Performance rewards by critical occupation

Critical occupations Number 
-

ciaries

Total 
employ-

ment

Percent-
age of 
total

employ-
ment

Cost
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

ben-

(R)
Administrative related 38 109 34.9 863 22 711
Agriculture related 0 1 0 0 0
Civil engineering technicians 3 3 100 17 5 667

15 25 60 77 5 133
2 6 33.3 12 6 000

Communication and information related 1 8 12.5 8 8 000
3 7 42.9 30 10 000

Custodian personnel 1 1 100 21 21 000
Economists 13 38 34.2 317 24 385
Engineering sciences related 2 3 66.7 24 12 000
Engineers and related professionals 6 13 46.2 138 23 000
Finance and economics related 12 33 36.4 280 23 333
Financial and related professionals 5 11 45.5 89 17 800
Financial clerks and credit controllers 12 56 21.4 93 7 750

4 6 66.7 24 6 000
3 3 100 95 31 667
1 1 100 11 11 000
0 1 0 0 0

Household food and laundry services related 0 5 0 0 0
1 1 100 6 6 000
5 23 21.7 82 16400

Human resources clerks 8 31 25.8 115 14 375
Human resources related 1 7 14.3 21 21 000

1 2 50 7 7 000
Legal related 0 2 0 0 0
Librarians and related professionals 0 1 0 0 0
Library mail and related clerks 6 25 24 63 10 500
Light vehicle drivers 1 1 100 5 5 000
Logistical support personnel 3 40 7.5 23 7 667
Material-recording and transport clerks 2 14 14.3 20 10 000
Medical research and related professionals 0 1 0 0 0
Messengers porters and deliverers 2 7 28.6 14 7 000
Natural sciences related 1 2 50 28 28 000

15 58 25.9 171 11 400
1 3 33.3 5 5 000
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Other information technology personnel. 2 3 66.7 29 14 500
Other occupations 0 5 0 0 0
Risk management and security services 2 4 50 16 8 000

18 56 32.1 211 11 722
Security guards 3 3 100 18 6 000

9 18 50 56 6 222
Senior managers 10 49 20.4 411 41 100
Social sciences related 7 9 77.8 92 13 143

0 1 0 0 0
TOTAL 219 696 31.5 3492 15945

TABLE 7.4 – Performance-related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for Senior Management  
                      service
SMS Band

Number
-

ciaries

Total 
employ-
ment

Percent-
age of 
total
employ-
ment
(%)

Cost
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 
ben-

(R)
Band A 7 52 13.5 323 4 614
Band B 7 21 33.3 280 4 000
Band C 0 4 0 0 0
Band D 0 5 0 0 0
TOTAL 14 82 17.1 603 4307.1

TABLE 8.1 – Foreign workers by salary band

    Salary band

Em
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m

en
t
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in

ni
ng

 
pe

rio
d

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
to

ta
l (

%
)

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

t 
en

d 
of

 p
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%
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%
)
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ta

l e
m

pl
oy

-
m

en
t a

t b
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m
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d

To
ta

l c
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ng
e i

n 
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pl
oy

m
en

t

3 100 3 100 0 0 3 3 0

TOTAL 3 100 3 100 0 0 3 3 0

Critical occupations Number 
-

ciaries

Total 
employ-

ment

Percent-
age of 
total

employ-
ment

Cost
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

ben-

(R)
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TABLE 8.2 – Foreign workers by major occupation

    Major occupation
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 p
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f p
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Professionals and managers 3 100 3 100 0 0 3 3 0

TOTAL 3 100 3 100 0 0 3 3 0

 TABLE 9.1 – Sick leave: Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

    Salary band

To
ta

l D
ay

s

%
 D

ay
s w

ith
 m

ed
ica

l  

Nu
m
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r o

f e
m

pl
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- 
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 To
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e d
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s p
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Es
tim
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st

 
 (R

’00
0)

To
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r
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in

g 
sic

k l
ea

ve

To
ta

l n
um

be
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f  
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 w

ith
 m

ed
ica

l

294 96.6 21 4.6 14 62 460 284
371 89.5 51 11.1 7 109 460 332

Highly skilled production 1129 80.1 138 30 8 626 460 904

1241 80.3 175 38 7 1 492 460 997

319 74.3 49 10.7 7 932 460 237
10 80 4 0.9 3 2 460 8

7 85.7 3 0.7 2 2 460 6
36 72.2 12 2.6 3 20 460 26
18 83.3 6 1.3 3 24 460 15
12 100 1 0.2 12 59 460 12

TOTAL 3437 82.1 460 100 7 3328 460 2821

TABLE 9.2 – Disability leave (temporary and permanent): Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

Salary band
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l d
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TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



236

 TABLE 9.3 – Annual Leave for Jan 2010 to Dec 2010
Salary band Total days taken Average days per 

employee
Number of employ-
ees who took leave

465 18 26
1111 17 66
3263 17 194
4472 18 247
1603 22 73
133 4 37
23 8 3

309 10 30
218 12 18
92 10 9

TOTAL 11689 17 703

TABLE 9.4 – Capped leave for Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

Total 
days of 
capped
leave
taken

Average 
number
of days 

taken per 
employee

Average 
capped

leave per 
employee

as at 
31 Dec 
2010

Number
of em-

ployees
who took 
capped
leave

Total 
number

of
capped
leave

available
at

31 Dec 
2010

Number
of em-

ployees
as at 

31 Dec 
2010

23 12 48 2 1538 32
6 3 37 2 2198 59
3 3 58 1 1855 32
4 4 8 1 8 1

TOTAL 36 6 45 6 5599 124

 TABLE 9.5 – Leave payouts
Reason

Total amount 
(R’000)

Number of 
employees

Average 
payment per 
employee ®

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 
2010/2011 

62 6 10333

Current leave payout on termination of service for 
2010/2011 

25 3 8333

TOTAL 87 9 9667
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 TABLE 10.1 – Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

risk of contracting HIV and related diseases (if any)
Key steps taken to reduce the risk

None N/A

 TABLE 10.2 – Details of Health Promotion and HIV and AIDS Programmes (tick Yes/No and provide  
                         required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes
1. Has the Department designated a member of the   
    SMS to implement the provisions contained
    in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service
    Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name
    and position. 

 Director Organisational Transformation

2. Does the Department have a dedicated unit or

    are involved in this task and the annual budget
    that is available for this purpose. 

Deputy Director and Assistant Director: 

3. Has the Department introduced an Employee
    Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for 
your
    employees? If so, indicate the key elements /
    services of the programme. 

Short term counselling for various psycho
social problems to employees and 
their families, Employees orientation 
services,managerial consultancy and training 
services,health promotion activities.

    the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so,
    please provide the names of the members of

    represent. 

No

    policies and practices of your department to
    ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate
    against employees on the basis of their HIV
    status? If so, list the employment policies/prac 

The Recruitment and Selection Policy

6. Has the Department introduced measures to
    protect HIV-positive employees or those peceived 
    to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list  
    the key elements of these measures. 

No

7. Does the Department encourage its employees
    to undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If  
    so, list the results that you have achieved. 

participation and an increase in the number 

8. Has the Department developed measures /

    your health promotion programme? If so, list 
these
    measures/indicators. 

No

 TABLE 11.1 – Collective Agreements 
Subject matter Date
NONE
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 TABLE 11.2 – Misconduct and discipline hearings inalised
Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of Total

TOTAL 2 0

TABLE 11.3 – Types of misconduct addressed and disciplinary hearings
Type of misconduct Number % of Total

TOTAL 2 0

TABLE 11.4 – Grievances lodged
Number of grievances addressed Number % of Total

TOTAL 21 0

TABLE 11.5 – Disputes lodged
Number of disputes addressed Number % of total

0 0
Dismissed 1 33.3
Total 3

TABLE 11.6 – Strike actions
Strike actions

54
R55 292.99
R55 292.99

TABLE 11.7 – Precautionary suspensions
Precautionary suspensions
Number of people suspended 3

2
Average number of days suspended 126

R117 647.54
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Occupational categories Gender Number of 
employees

as at 1 
April 2010

period
Learner-

ships
Skills
Pro-

grammes
and other 

short
courses

Other
forms of 
training

Total

managers
Female
Male

Professionals Female
Male

Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female
Male

Clerks Female
Male
Female
Male
Female
Male

-
ers

Female
Male

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers

Female
Male

Elementary occupations Female
Male

Subtotal Female
Male

Total

 TABLE 12.2 – Training provided

Occupational categories

Gender
Employ-

ment
Learner-

ships

Skills pro-
grammes
& other 
short

courses

Other
forms of 
training Total

managers
Female
Male

35
55

0
0

8
4

0
0

8
4

Professionals Female
Male

125
108

0
0

7
6

0
0

7
6

Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female
Male

0
0

0
0

8
5

0
0

8
5

Clerks Female
Male

63
40

0
0

6
5

0
0

6
5

Female
Male

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Female
Male

180
179

0
0

6
8

0
0

6
8

Craft and related trades Female
Male

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
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Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers

Female
Male

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Elementary occupations
Female
Male

52
18

11
5

4
2

0
0

15
7

Gender subtotals
Female
Male

455
400

11
5

39
30

0
0

50
35

Total 855 16 69 0 85

TABLE 13.1 – Injury on duty
Nature of injury on duty
Required basic medical attention only 
Temporary total disablement 
Permanent disablement 
Fatal
Total 

TABLE 14.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds

Project title

Total 
number of 
consult-
ants that 
worked
on the 
project

Duration:
Work 
days

Contract
value in 

Rand

Development and Implementation of a Case Management System into 
Rental Housing Tribunals

4 365 5996970

Determine the Institutional Arrangement for a Human Settlements 
Development Finance Entity and to Project Manage the Establishment 
thereof

6 365 4149600

Programme Management and other ancillary services for the Imple-
mentation of the Rural Household Infrastructure Programme

37 365 41654553

Provision of Support for the Implementation of the Post 1994 Bucket 
Replacement Programme

16 365 10000000

Implementation of Sustainable Sanitation Job Creation Programme in 18 365 11485803

education, Human Settlements, Health and Cooperative and Traditional 

15 365 4000000

12 365 4415996

10 365 2000000

Occupational categories

Gender
Employ-

ment
Learner-

ships

Skills
programs
& other 
short

courses

Other
forms of 
training Total
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implementation of Free Basic Sanitation Implementation Strategy.
15 365 9550900

Implementation of Rural Household Infrastructure Programme, 21 
municipalities in 5 provinces - EC, Free State, KZN, Mpumalanga and 

151 365 82909754

Conducting a household survey for the Impact Assessment Study 

Mpumalanga

15 365 5356597

The appointment of a Service Provider for the Facilitation of the Turn 
Around Strategy

13 365 10764602

3 365 995302

The implementation of Rural Household Infrastructure programme in 115 365 11410232

Appointment of a service provider for the Study of the Economic Impact 
of Government Housing Programmes

10 365 1149006

Total number of projects Total 
individual
consult-

ants

Total 
duration:

Work 
days

Total con-
tract value in 

Rand

15 440 5475 205839315

 TABLE 14.2 – Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, i.t.o. HDIs 

    Project title

Percentage
ownership

by HDI 
groups

Percentage
manage-
ment by 

HDI groups

Number of 
consult-

ants
from HDI 
groups

that work 
on the 
project

Development and Implementation of a Case Management System into 
Rental Housing Tribunals 100 100 4

Determine the Institutional Arrangement for a Human Settlements 
Development Finance Entity and to Project Manage the Establishment 
thereof

50 50 3

Programme Management and other ancillary services for the Imple-
mentation of the Rural Household Infrastructure Programme 100 100 37

Provision of support for the Implementation of the Post 1994 Bucket 
Replacement Programme 100 100 16

Implementation of Sustainable Sanitation Job Creation Programme in 100 100 18

Education, Human Settlements, Health and Cooperative and Traditional 100 100 15

Project title

Total 
number of 
consult-
ants that 
worked
on the 
project

Duration:
Work 
days

Contract
value in 

Rand
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    Project title

Percent-
age

owner-
ship

by HDI 
groups

Percent-
age

manage-
ment

by HDI 
groups

Number
of con-
sultants

from
HDI

groups
that
work

on the 
project

100 100 12

100 100 10

-
mentation of Free Basic Sanitation Implementation Strategy 100 100 15

Implementation of Rural Household Infrastructure Programme, 21 municipalities Trust Trust 151

Conducting a household survey for the Impact Assessment Study in the Informal 80 80 13

The appointment of a service provider for the Facilitation of the Turn Around 
Strategy 70 70 10

30 60 2

rural areas Trust Trust 115

Appointment of a service provider for the Study of the Economic Impact of 
Government Housing Programmes 100 100 10

 TABLE 14.3 – Report on consultant appointments using donor funds
Project title Total number of consult-

ants that worked on the 
project

Duration: Work days Donor and contract 
value in Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration: Work 
days

Total contract value in 
Rand

N/A N/A N/A N/A

TABLE 14.4 – Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, i.t.o. HDIs
Project title % Ownership by HDI 

groups
% Management by 

HDI groups
Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project

N/A N/A N/A N/A



243

5



244

OTHER INFORMATION
5.1   LIST OF ACRONYMS

 ACIP  Accelerated Community Infrastructure Programme

 APP  Provincial Annual Performance Plans 

 BCC Black Construction Council
 BCEA Basic Conditions of Employment Act
 BER  Bureau for Economic Research
 BIFSA Building Industries Federation of South Africa  
 CIDB Construction Industry Development Board
 CODHI Community Driven Housing Initiatives
 CoGTA Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
 CRO Community Resource Organisations 
 CRB Community Reinvestment Bill

 D Soc Department of Social Development
 DBA Database Administrator
 DBSA Development Bank of Southern Africa
 DHS Department of Human Settlements
 DM  District Municipality
 DOAFF Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries
 DOT Department of Transport
 DPE Department of Public Enterprise
 DPSA Department of Public Services and Administration

 DSTT District Sanitation Task Team
 EE Employment Equity
 EEA Employment Equity Act
 EIP Environmental Implementation Plans
 EMP Environmental Management Plans
 EMT Executive Management Team
 ENE Estimates of National Expenditure
 ENPAT Environmental Potential Atlas
 FBS Free Basic Sanitation

 FLISP Finance Linked Individual Subsidy Programme
 FMS Financial Management System
 FOSAD Forum of South African Directors-General
 GBG  Great Basin Gold
 GDP Gross Domestic Product

 GIS Geographical Information System

 HDA  Housing Development  Agency
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 HDRG Housing Disaster Relief Grant 
 HLAMDA Home Loan and Mortgage Disclosure Act
 HLGC Home Loan Guarantee Company
 HSS Housing Subsidy System
 HSDG  Human Settlement Development Grant 

 IRDP Intergrated Residential Development Programme
 IBSA India Brazil South Africa Dialogue Forum
 IDPs Integrated Development Plans
 ITC Information Technology Committee

 LRA Labour Relations Act
 MDG Millennium Development Goals 
 MEC Member of Executive Council
 MEIA Monitoring Evaluation and Impact Assessment
 MIG Municipal Infrastructure Grant
 MinMEC  Human Settlements Minister and MECs

 MTAS Municipal Turn Around Strategy

 NAFCOC National African Chamber of Commerce Construction
 NARS National Archives and Records Service
 NCR National Credit Regulator
 NEDLAC National Economic Development and Labour Council
 NHBRC National Home Builders Registration Council
 NHFC National Housing Finance Corporation
 NHSDB National Housing Subsidy Database 
 NHTL National house of Traditional Leaders

 NSTT National Sanitation Task Team

 PDOHS Provincial Department of Human Settlements
 PFMA Public Finance Management Act
 PHB Professional Housing Body
 PDHS Provincial Department of Human Settlements
 PHP People’s Housing Process
 PHPT People’s Housing Partnership Trust
 PMDS Performance Management and Development System

 PSTT Provincial Sanitation Task Team

 RHIP Rural Household Infrastructure Programme
 RHLF Rural Housing Loan Fund
 RHT Rental Housing Tribunal
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 RHTQM Rental Housing Tribunal Quarterly Meeting
 RZ Restructuring Zones

 SAAHI  South Africa Angola Housing Initiative
 SACTSP  The South African Cuban Technical Support Programme 
 SAFCEC South African Civil Engineering Council
 SAHT South African Housing Trust
 SALGA South African Local Government Association

 SGB School Governing Body
 SHI Social Housing Institution
 SHRA Social Housing Regulatory Authority
 SITA State Information and Technology Agency

 SLA Service Level Agreements
 SMME Small Medium and Macro Enterprises
 Stats SA Statistics South Africa 
 STRAT MAN Strategic Management Committee
 SHSBTT Sustainable Human Settlements and Basic Services Task Team 
 TRC Truth and Reconciliation Commission

s
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5.2  Contact details

National Department of Human Settlements
Private Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001
240 Walker Street, Sunnyside, Pretoria

 Minister
The Hon Minister of Human Settlements

 T M G Sexwale: MP

 Private Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 421 1309, Fax:  012 341 8513

 2nd

 Tel:  021 466 7600, Fax:  021 465 3610

 Deputy Minister
The Hon Deputy Minister of Human Settlements

 Z Kota-Frederricks: MP

 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 421 1311, Fax:  012 341 8513

 2nd

 Tel:  021 466 7600, Fax:  021 465 3610

 Mr T Zulu

 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 421 1312, Fax:  012 341 2998

 2nd

 Tel:  021 465 7295/6/7, Fax:  021 465 3610
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 Deputy Directors-General

Ms N Letsholonyane

 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 421 1607

Mr M Maphisa
 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 444 5072

Mr K Kabagambe
 National Department of Human Settlements
 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 444 5247

Mr N Chainee
 National Department of Human Settlements
 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 421 1603

Mr N Mbengo
 National Department of Human Settlements
 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel:  012 421 1568

Mr M D Moerane
                                       Performance Plans

National Department of Human Settlements
 P/Bag X644, Pretoria, 0001

 Tel. 012 4211363 / 1510, Fax:  012 421 1616



249

 TA
BL

E 
1:

 P
ro

gr
es

s R
ep

or
t: 

Ou
tc

om
e 8

  –
 1 

Se
pt

em
be

r t
o 

en
d 

Oc
to

be
r 2

01
0

Ou
tco

me
 8:

 S
us

tai
na

-
ble

 H
um

an
 S

ett
lem

en
ts 

an
d I

mp
ro

ve
d Q

ua
lity

 of
 

Ho
us

eh
old

 Li
fe

In
di

ca
to

rs
In

di
ca

to
r N

am
e

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et
Ac

tu
al

Da
ta

 S
ou

rc
e

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

8.1
: In

cre
as

ed
 nu

mb
er

 of
 

qu
ali

ty 
ac

co
mo

da
tio

n, 
ba

sic
 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

se
cu

rity
 of

 te
nu

re
 -

ce
ss

 to
 so

cia
l s

er
vic

es
 an

d 

re
as

on
ab

le 
dis

tan
ce

se
ttle

me
nts

: 4
00

 00
0 

ho
us

eh
old

s

0

Af
for

da
ble

 re
nta

l 
ho

us
ing

: 8
0 0

00
0

8.2
: In

cre
as

ed
 ac

ce
ss

 to
 

de
ve

lop
me

nt
loa

ns
0

Ou
tpu

t 1
: A

cc
ele

ra
ted

 
de

liv
er

y o
f h

ou
sin

g 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

In
di

ca
to

rs
In

di
ca

to
r N

am
e

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et
Ac

tu
al

Da
ta

 S
ou

rc
e

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

 
  

 
 

Su
b-

ou
tpu

t 1
.1:

 

in 
inf

or
ma

l s
ett

lem
en

ts 

ten
ur

e a
nd

 ba
sic

 
se

rvi
ce

s

In
di

ca
to

rs
In

di
ca

to
r N

am
e

Ba
se

lin
e

Ta
rg

et
Ac

tu
al

Da
ta

 S
ou

rc
e

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

1.1
.1:

 N
um

be
r o

f h
ou

se
ho

lds
 in

 
inf

or
ma

l s
ett

lem
en

ts 
pr

ov
ide

d 

to 
ba

sic
 se

rvi
ce

s t
hr

ou
gh

 in
 si

tu 
up

gr
ad

ing
 an

d/o
r r

elo
ca

tio
n.

 1.
2 m

illi
on

 ho
us

eh
old

s 
in 

2 6
29

 in
for

ma
l s

et-
tle

me
nts

-
mu

lat
ive

 ta
rg

et:
 

40
0 0

00

TO
TA

L: 
                                 

43
 26

0 
sit

es
Qu

ar
ter

ly 
Pr

o-
vin

cia
l P

er
for

m-
an

ce
 R

ep
or

ts,
 

su
pp

or
ted

 by
 th

e 
HS

S 
an

d M
EI

A 
Sy

ste
ms

Th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
re

po
rte

d 

of 
Inf

or
ma

l S
ett

le-
me

nts
 P

ro
gr

am
me

me
.  

Pr
ov

inc
ial

 H
um

an
 

Se
ttle

me
nts

 D
ep

ar
t-

me
nts

 ha
ve

 al
ign

ed
 to

 
Ou

tco
me

 8 
pr

inc
ipa

ls.
 

Va
rio

us
 in

ter
ac

tio
ns

 

PH
SD

s a
nd

 m
etr

os
 

an
d a

re
 pl

an
ne

d t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at 
bu

sin
es

s 
pla

ns
 fo

r 2
01

1/2
01

2 
ar

e a
lig

ne
d t

o p
rin

ci-
ple

s o
f O

utc
om

e 8
.

EC
 59

 40
0

10
 86

2
FS

 26
 40

0
2 0

00
GP

 96
 80

0
18

 22
3

KZ
N 

76
 20

0
7 2

79
LP

 31
 20

0
1 1

53
MP

 26
 48

0
0

NC
 9 

32
0

1 5
30

1 0
58

2 2
12

5.3  Additional information
5.3.1  Status Report: Achievement of Outcome 8 Outputs  – 1 September to end December 2010
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5.3.2  Key stakeholders of the Department

Provincial Governments

Natal and the Free State.

Housing Institutions
-

Local Government: All South African municipalities and SALGA

Private sector

-
-

Governmental stakeholders

Services: National Council of Provinces, Clusters of Ministries, Governmental Custodians of Service Stand-

of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, National Treasury, Department of Minerals and Energy, metros and 

The general public

Service providers
-

  Private
Banking sector
Developers
Material suppliers

Organised Professional Bodies
Other referrals on: Alternative building technology and materials suppliers such 

   as cement and steel.
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